
TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
ReSstered Office: 4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbal,
Maharashtra, PIN: 400001. Telephone: 00 91 (22) 2266 3150

_a__--           cHErvi

Fax: 00 91 (22) 2282 8181 E-mail: info@amphrav.com
Wchsite: www.triochemDroducts.com Corporate Identity Number: L24249MH 1972PLC015544

Ref No: TPI, PP 202203912022; 26th August 2022

To

Corporate Relationship Department

BSE Limited

Phiroze jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai -400 001

Sub: Submission of Annual Reoort aDDroved and adopted bv the members in Annual General Meeting

Ref: Security Code No.512101  -ISIN No.:  INE 331E0101

®

®

Dear Sir / Madam,

We hereby submit the Annual Report for the FY 2021-22 duly approved and adopted by the members as

per provisions  of the  Companies Act,  2013,  in  the Annual  General  Meeting  of the  Company held  on
Friday,   26th  August  2022  at  03.00  p.in.   at  Registered  Office  of  the  Company  at  4th  Floor,   Sanbava

Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai -400001.

You are requested to take same on records.

Thankingyou,

Yours faithfully,

For TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

RAMU S. DEORA

DIRECTOR



®

®

Triochem Products Limited

(Corporate Identity No. : L24249MH1972PLC015544)

50th Annual Report 2021 -2022



Index

®

Corporate Information 03

Notice and its Annexures 04

Directors Report & Management Discussion Analysis Report with Annexures 23

Independent Auditors' Report 62

Balance Sheet 73

Statement of Profit and Loss 74

Cash Flow Statement 75

Statement of changes in equity 77

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements 78

Investor Services Formats for KYC 101

Proxy Form 111



Board of Director and Corporate Information

Board of Directors:

Mr, Ramu S. Deora (DIN 00312369)

Mr. Sunil S. ]hunjhunwala (DIN 00312529)

Mr. Shyam Sunder Sharma @IN 01457322)

Mrs. Grace R. Deora @IN 00312080)

Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalia @IN 00032757)

Mr. Rajesh R. Deora PIN 00312316)

Company Secretary:

Ms. Ureca Shirish Shirole

StatutoryAuditors:

M/s. Kanu Doshi Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

203, The Summit, Hanuman Road,

Western Express Highway,

Vile Parle qast), Mumbai: 400057

®

Cost Auditors:

M/s. N. RItesh & Associates

Cost Accountant

602, Matruprabha Building, Cama Lane,

Kirol Road, Ghatkoper (West), Mumbai 400086

Secretarial Auditors :

Ragini Chokshi & Co

Company Secretaries

34, Kamer Building, 5th Floor,

38 Cawasji Patel Street, Fort, Mumbai: 400001

Bankers:

State Bank of India

Rectstrar & Transfer Agent:

M/s Link Intime India Private Limited

C  101,  247 Park,  L. 8. S. Marg,

Vikhroli Ovest), Mumbai: 400083

Phone:  +  91 -22 -49186270

Fax:  +  91 -22 -49186060

E-mail: mt.helpdesk@linkintine.co.in

wow.Iinkintime.co.in

Registered Office:

Triochem Products Limited

Corporate Identity Number (GIN)

L24249MH1972PLC015544

4th Floor, Sambava Chambers,

Sir P. M. Road,

Forty Mumbai: 400001

Phone:  +  91 -22 -22663150

Fax:  +  91 -22 -22024657

E-mall : investor@ triochemoreducts. com

www.triochemoroducts.com

Factory:

Plot No:  10/2 MIDC Industrial Area,

Village Morivali, Ambemath (West) ,

Dist, Thane, Maharashtra -421501



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Registered Office: 4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Forty
Mumbai, Mcharashtra, PIN: 400001. Telephone: 00 91  (22) 2266 3150
Fax: 00 91  (22) 22202 4657 E-mail: info@amohrav.com
Website : www.triochemDroducts. com Corporate

a

_a___`
CHEM

_a-..
CHEM

Identity Number: L24249MH1972PLC015544

Notice
;;;;;;isherebygiventhatthe50thAnnualGeneralMeeting(AGM)oftheMembersofTRIOCHEMPRODUCTS

LIMITED  (CIN: L24249MH1972PLC015544) will be held at the Registered Office of the Company at Sambava

Chambers, 4th Floor, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai -400001 on Friday, 26th August 2022 at 3.00 P.M. to transact

the following business:

Ordinary Bu siness
1.   Adoption of Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year

ended March 31, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2.    Re.Appointment  of Mr.  Rajesh  Ramu  Deora (DIN:  00312316)  as  a  Director,  lial)le  to  retire  by
rotation, who had offered himself for re.appointment:

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajesh Ranu Deora PIN: 00312516), who retires by rotation, and

being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

3.    Re-appointment of statutory Auditors and fix their remuneration:
To consider and if thought fit,  to pass the following resolution, with or without modification(s),  as an

O rdinary Resolution :

"RESOLVED  THAT Pursuant to Section  139,  141,  142 and all other applicable provisions,  if any,  of the

Companies Act,  2013 read with rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification(s)  or re-

enactment thereof)  and  pursuant  to  the  recommendations  of the Audit  Committee  and  the  Board  of

Directors   of  the   Company,   M/s.   Kanu  Doshi  Associates  LLP,   Chartered  Accountants,   having  Firm

Registration  No.  104746W/W100096  be  and  are  hereby re-appointed  as  the  Statutory Auditors  of the

company for term of five consecutive years, who shall hold office from the conclusion of this 50th Annual

General Meeting till conclusion of the 55th Annual General Meeting to be held in the financial year 2027-

28 on such remuneration as may be recommended by the Audit Committee and decided by the Board of
Directors  in  consultation with  the  Statutory Auditors  of the  Company in  addition to  applicable  taxes,

reimbursement of all  outof-pocket expenses as  may be  incurred  in  connection with the  audit of the
accounts of the Company,

RESOI,VED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to sign and

execute all applications, documents, whtings and fflling of requisites forms that may be required on behalf

of the Company and generally to do all acts, deeds and things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or

incidental for the purpose of giving effect this resolution."\2-
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Special Business
4.    Re-Appointment of Mr.  Ramu  Sitaram Deora (DIN:  00312369) as a Director, liable to retire by

rotation, who had offered himself for re-appointment:

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ramu Sitaram Deora PIN: 00312369), who retires by rotation and

being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and towards this, to consider and if thought fit, to pass
with or without modifications, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

"RES01,VED TIIAT pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company and Section

152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors)

Rules, 2014, Regulation 17(1A) of the SEBI ousting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015,  as  amended,  and  other  applicable  provisions,  including  any  statutory  modification(s)  or  re-

enactment thereof for the time-being in force, Mr. Ramu Sitaram Deora @IN: 00312369), Non-Executive

and Non-Independent Director of the Company, who has exceeded the age of 75 years and who retires by

rotation  and  being  eligible,  offers  himself for  re-appointment,  be  and  is  hereby reappointed  as  Non-

Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.."

5.   Authorization for Related party Transaction
To consider and if though fit, to pass with or without modiflcation, the following Resolution as a Special

Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in continuation of and in addition to the Resolution passed through Special resolution

inAnnualGeneralMeetingheldon25thSeptcmber,2021andpursuanttotheSection188oftheCompanies

Act,  2013  read  with  Companies  04eeting  of Board  &  its  Powers)  Rules,  2014  and  other  applicable

provisions,  if any,  of the Act,  and such other approvals, sanctions,  consents and permissions as may be
deemed necessary consent be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company or any

Committee thereof, to enter into contracts / agreements as defined in the Companies Act, 2013  with the

related parties up to maximum per annum amounts with effect from April  1, 2022, as appended herein

below:

Name of Related Parties / Companies Transaction defined u/s 188(1) of Companies Act, 2013

Qs. in Crores)
Name of Related Parties Sale of any Purchase of any E Payment of Expenses

Companies goods and goods and and Reimbursement

materials materials Paid

On Actual basis, exempted being in the ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis. (Subject

to a maximum of amount p.a. as mentioned agalnst the name of the Company).

G Amphray Pharmaceuticals Pvt Ltd 15 20

Triochem Laboratories Pvt Ltd 15 20

Ambemath Plasto Packaging Pvt Ltd 10 20

PROPRIETORSHIP FIRM:

G Amphray I,aboratories 60 40 20

DIRECTORS/KMPsAIIATrvES OF DIRECTORS & KMPs/OTHER FIRMS & COMPANIES in which

Director have some interest as per the provisions of section 206) of the Companies Act, 2013L
5
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Mrs. Grace R. Deora

Mr. Rajesh R. Deora

Mr. Rajiv R. Deora

Ramu M. Deofa HUF

Ramu S. Deora HUF

Any Contract or transaction with au the above parties for selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying,

property of any kind to be on market value and on arm lengths relationship basis only.

RESOIJVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any Committee thereof, be and

are hereby authorized to execute the documents, deeds or writings required to be executed in relation to

the and other incidental documents, make applications to regulatory and government authorities for the

purposes of obtaining all approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions required by the Company and to
do all acts and deeds to give effect to this resolution."

NOTES:

1.    Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting

("AGM") is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himselftherself and the proxy need not
be a Member of the Company. The proxy form, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company's

Registered Office not less than 48 hours before the Meeting.  Proxies submitted on behalf of companies,

societies,  partnership  firms,  etc.  must be  supported by appropriate  resolution/authority,  as applicable,

issued on behalf of the nomination organization. The proxy form is annexed to this notice.

2.    Members are requested to note that a person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50
and holding in aggregate  not more than  10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting

rights. If proxy is proposed to be appointed by Members holding more than 10% of the total share capital

of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or

Members.

3.    In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of name
will be entitled to vote.

4.    Entry to the place of meeting will be regulated by an attendance slip which is annexed to this notice. The

Members#roxies attending the meeting are kindly request to complete the enclosed attendance slip and

affix their signature at the place provided thereon and hand it over at the venue of the meeting.

5.    Route map showing direction to reach the venue of the 50th Annual General meeting is given at the end of
the Notice.

6.    The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 setting out material facts

concerning the business under Item No. 4 and 5 of the Notice is annexed hereto. The Board of Directors

have  considered  and  decided  to  include  Item No.  4  and  5  as  given  above,  as  Special  Business  in the

forthcoming AGM as they are unavoidable in nature. However, for Item No. 3, the company has provided

necessary explanations and details  about re-appointment  of statutory auditor for another term  of five

consecutive years on basis. Further, for Item No. 2 and 4 relevant details of director seeking re-
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appointment  by way  of retire  by  rotation  as  required  under  SEBI  LODR  Regulations  and  Secretarial
Standards-2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is annexed to this

Notice.

7.    The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section
170  of the  Companies Act,  2013  (`the  Act')  and  the  Register  of Contracts  or Arrangements  in which

Directors are interested,  maintalned under Section 189 of the Act will be available for inspection by the

Members at the Annual General Meeting.

8.    In line with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report

2021-22 is being sent through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered

with the CompanyDepositories. The Notice conveying the 50th AGM has been uploaded on the website of

the Company at www.triochemDroducts.com under `Investor Relatious' section and may also be accessed

on the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The Notice is also availal]le

on the website of CDSL at www.evotingindia.com.

9.    Pursuant to section 91 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 read with Rule 10 of the Companies Q4anagement and
Administration)   Rules,   2014   and   Regulation   42   of  the   SEBI   ousting   Obligations   and   Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will

remain closed from Saturday, August 20,  2022, to Friday, August 26,  2022  Goth days inclusive) for the

purpose of 50th AGM.
a)    For Shares held in electronic form: To an the beneficial Ouners as at the end of the day on Friday,

August  19,  2022,  in the list of beneficial  owners to be furnished by NSDL and Central Depository

Service qndia) Limited (`CDSL'); and

b)    For Shares held in physical form: To all Members in respect of shares held in physical form after giving

effect to valid transmission and transposition request lodged with the  Company as of the close of

business house on Friday, August 19, 2022.

10,  Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has stopped accepting any flesh transfer requests for securities held

in physical form. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares, Members holding

shares in physical form are requested to dematerialised their holdings. Members may contact RTA i.e. Link

lntime India Pvt. Ltd, Addess:  C-101,  let Floor,  247 Park, L. 8. S. Marg Vikhroli  Ovest), Mumbal 400 083,

Maharashtra at mt.helodesk@linkintime.co.in for assistance in this regards. Members may also refer to

Frequently Asked Questions (`FAQs') on the Companys website at

httos:/twrww.triochemoroducts.comfuDloads/Investor-relations/bdfstheciuenltv-askedquesatioris-faa-

HREra

11.  The  format of the  Register of Members prescribed  by the  MCA under the Act requires  the  Company/

Registrar to records additional details of Members, including their PAN details, e-mail address, bank details

for payment of dividend, etc. A form for capturing additional detalls is available on the Company's website

under the section ` Investor Relatious' tab ` Investor Service' at httus:/furww.triochemDroducts.com/investor-

relations/investor-relations.asoxivear= 2022-23  as also attached to this Annual Report.  Member holding

shares in physical form are requested to submit the filled-in form to the Company or to the Registrar in

V- i
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physical mode as per instructions mentioned in the form. Members holding shares in electronic form are
requested to submit the details to their respective DPs only and not to the Company or RTA.

Membersarerequestedtointimatechanges,if any,pertainingtotheirname,postaladdress,e-mailaddress,

telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, registering of nomination, power of attorney registration, Bank Mandate

details,   etc.  to  their  DPs  in  case  the  shares  are  held  in  electronic  form  and  to  the  Registrar  at

mt.helndesk@linkintime.co.in in case the shares are held in physical form, quoting their folio number.

Further, Members may note that SEBI has mandated the sul>mission of PAN by every participant in the

securities market.

12.  Nomination Fachity: As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the froility for making nomination is

avallable for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members holding shares in single name

and who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form

No. SH-13ASR-3. If a member desire to cancel the earlier nomination and record fresh nomination, he may

submit the same in Form No. SH-14HSR-5. Both Forms are appended at the ended of the Annual Report.

Members holding shares  in physical form  are  requested  to  submit the  forms to  the  Company's  Share

Registrars and Transfer Agents. Members holding shares in electronic form may obtaln form from their

respective Depository Participant.

15.  Consolidation of Physical Share Certificates: Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order

of names, in more than one folio are requested to send to the Company or RTA, the details of such folios

together with the  shares certificates for consolidating their holdings in one folio. A consolidated share

certificate will be issued to such Members after making requisite changes.

14.  To prevent fraudulent transaction, Members are advised to exercise due dhigence and notfty the Company

of any change in address or demise of any Members as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to

leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from

the concerned DP and holdings should be verified from time to time.

15.  Process for registering e-mail address to receive this Notice along with credentials for remote e-voting:

a.     Online update on web portal at httDs:/Ainkintime,co.in/EmailReg/Email  Register,html

b.    For  Physical  shareholders:  please  provide  necessary  details  like  Folio  No.,  Name  of shareholder,

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card),

AADIIAR   (self-attested   scanned   copy   of  Aadhar   Card)   by   email   to   CompanyflTA   email   to

mt.helodesk@linkintime.co.in

c.     For Demat shareholders: please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-

16  digit DPID+CLID),  Name,  client  master or copy of Consolidated Account  statement,  PAN  (serf-

attested  scanned  copy  of  PAN  card),  AADIIAR  (self-attested  scanned  copy  of  Aadhar  Card)  to

CompanyflTA email to mt.helndesk@linkintime.co.in

d.    The  companyflTA  shall  coordinate  with  CDSL  and  provide  the  loctn  credentials  to  the  above-

ment,onedshafi
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16.  Remote e-voting before/during the AGM:

1.    Pursuant  to  the  provisions  of Section  108  of the  Companies Act,  2013  read with  Rule  20  of the

Companies  quanngement and Administration) Rules,  2014,  Regulation 44 of Listing Regulations,  as

may be  amended,  and  MCA Circulars,  the  Company is providing facility of remote  e-voting to  its

Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 50th AGM. For this purpose, the Company

has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services ¢ndia) Limited (` CDSL') for fachitating

voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes by a

member using remote e-voting system on the date of the 50th AGM will be provided by CDSL.

2.    Members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in electronic form as on the cutoff

date  of Saturday, August  20,  2022,  may cast their vote by remote  e-voting. A person who is not a

Member as on the Cutoff date should treat this Notice for information purpose only. A person whose

name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the

Depositories as on the cutoff date only shall be entitled to avail the fachity of remote e-voting before

as well  as  during  the AGM.  Any non-individual  shareholders  or shareholder holding  securities  in

physical mode who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after the
dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as on the cutroff date i.e. Saturday, August 20,  2022, may

obtain the User ID and Password by sending a request at helodesk.evotinE@cdslindia.com.

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, who acquire shares of the Company and

become a Member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as of the cutoff
date i.e, Saturday, August 20, 2022 may follow the login process mentioned below in point 18.

5.    The remote e-voting period commences on Tuesday, August 23, 2022, at 9.00 a.in. ¢ST) and ends on
Thursday, August 25, 2022, at 5.00 pin ¢ST). The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL

for voting thereafter.  Once the vote on resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be

allowed to change it subsequently.

The voting rights of the Members (for voting through remote e-voting before/during the AGM) shall be

proportion to their share of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cutoff Saturday,
August 20, 2022.

4.    The remote e-voting module during the AGM shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 15 minutes after the

conclusion of the Meeting.

17.  Mrs. Ragini Chokshi,  Practicing Company Secretary (C.P. No.  1456) has been appointed by the Board of

Director of the Company as Scrutiniser for providing fachity to the Members of the Company to scrutinise

the remote e-voting process as well as voting through Poll paper at the Meeting, in a fair and transparent

marmer.

The Scrutiniser shall, immediately after the conclusion of e-voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast at

the Annual General Meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through e-voting in the presence of two

witnesses not in the  employment of the  Company.  Scrutinizer shall,  submit within the time stipulated

nder the applical?le laws, a consolidated scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if
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any to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in whting who shall counterrsign the same. Thereafter,

the Chairman or the person authorized by him in writing shall declare the results of the voting forthwith,

The  Results  declared  along  with  the  Scrutinizers  Report  shall  be  placed  on  the  Company's  website

www.triochemoroducts.com under the section `Investor Relatious' tal] `Annual General Meeting / Report /

Retum' and on the website of CDSL immediately after the result is declared by the Chairman/Authorized

person and the results will also be communicated to the Stock Exchange where the shares of the Company
are listed,

18.  THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SIIAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

i.)        The remote remote e-votingperiod begins on 23rdAugust 2022 at o9.00 a.in. and ends on 25thAugust

2022 at 05.00 p.in. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical

form  or  in  dematerialized  form,  as  on  the  cutoff  date  20th  August  2022  may  cast  their  vote

electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Shareholders who

have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

ii.)        Pursuant to SEBI circular No. SEBITO/CFDroMDroIR/P#020#42 dated o9.12.2020, under Regulation

44  of Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of India  qisting  Obligations  and  Disclosure  Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in

respect of all shareholders' resolutions. Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers asps)

providing e-voting fachity to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and
maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been

decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through

their demat accountstwebsites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would

be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only fachitating

seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

iii.)        In terms ofsEBI circular no. SEBIToroFDroMDroIR/P¢020#42 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting

facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are

allowed   to  vote   through   their  demat   account   maintained  with   Depositories   and   Depository

Participants.  Shareholders are advised to update  their mobile number and emall Id in their demat

accounts in order to access e-Voting fachity.

Pursuant to  above  said  SEBI  Circular,  Login  method for e-Voting and joining virtual  meetings  for

Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type ofshareholders Login Method

Individual 1)    Users of who have opted for CDSI.'s Easi / Easiest facility,  can login through

Shareholders their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-

Holding Voting page without any further authentication. The URLs for users to login to

securities inDematmode \ Easi / Easiest are : httDs:/tweb.cdslindia.com/mveasithomeAofin

or www.cdslindia.com and click on Lotln icon and select New System Myeasi.

|a
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with CDSL 2)    After successful login the  Easi / Easiest user will be  al]le  to  see  the  e-Voting

Menu.  On  clicking  the  e-voting  menu,  the  user will  be  al]le  to  see  histher

holdings along with links of the respective e-Voting service provider i.e. CDSI/

NSDL/ KARVY/ LINK INTIME as per information provided by Issuer / Company.

Additionally, we are providing links to e-Voting Service Providers, so that the

user can visit the e-Voting service providers' site directly.

3)    If the  user  is  not  registered  for  EasvEasiest,  option  to  register  is  available
at  httos:/tweb.cdslindia.com/mveasi.flefistration/ EasiRedstration

4)    Altemativcly,  the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat

Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page.

The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile &

Emall as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user

will be provided links for the respective ESP where the e-Voting is in progress

during or before the AGM.

Individual

Shareholders

holding

securities in

demat mode
with NSDL

1)    If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS fachity, please visit the e-Services

website   of   NSDL.   Open   web   browser   by   typing   the   following   URL:

httDs://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once

the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the "Beneficial Owner" icon

under "Login" which is avallable under `IDeAS' section. A new screen will open.

You   will   have   to   enter   your   User   ID   and   Password.   After   successful

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on "Access to e-

Voting" under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click

on  company  name  or  e-Voting  service  provider  name  and  you  will  be  re-

directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting,

2)    If the user is not registered for IDeAS erservices, option to register is availal]le

at httos://eservices.nsdl.com. Select "Register Online for IDeAS "Portal or click

at httos : //eservices. nsdl. comrsecurewebAdeasD ire ctReg. i so

3)    Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the fouowing
URL:  httos:/twrww.evotinq.nsdl.com/ either  on  a  Personal  Computer or  on  a

mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, dick on the icon
"Login" which is available under `ShafeholderAIember' section, A new screen

will open. You will have to enter your User ID  (i.e. your sixteen digiv demat

account number hold with NSDL),  PasswordroTP and a Verification Code as

shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to

NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page.  Click on company

name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting

service  provider  website  for  casting  your  vote  during  the  remote  e-Voting

period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

\t,
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Individual

Shareholders

tholding
securities in

demat  mode)
lotln
through
their

Depository

Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your

Depository  Participant  registered  with  NSDI,/CDSL  for  e-Voting  facility.     After

successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting

option,  you  will  be  redirected  to  NSDL/CDSL  Depository  site  after  successful

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-

Voting  service  provider  name  and  you  will  be  redirected  to  e-Voting  service

provider's  website  for  casting  your vote  during  the  remote  e-Voting  period  or

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User

ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

HelpdeskforlndividualShareholdersholdingsecuritiesindematmodeforanytechnicalissuesrelated

to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact

holding securities in Demat CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

mode with CDSL helodesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or

contact at 022-23058738 and 22-2305854243.

Individual Shareholders Members  facing  any  technical  issue  in  login  can  contact

holding securities in Demat NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evotinq@nsdl.co.in

mode with NSDL or Call at toll free no.:  18001020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

iv.)        Login   method   for   e-Voting   for   shareholders   other   than   individual   shareholders   &   physical

shareholders.

1)    The shareholders should lng on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com

2)    Click on "Shareholders" medule.

5)    Now enteryour user ID
a.     For CDSL:  16 digits beneficiarylD,

b.     For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c.     Shareholders holding shares in physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with

the company.             OR

Altematively,  if you  are  registered  for  CDSL's  EAST/EASIEST  etservices,  you  can  lng-in  at

httDs:/rfuww.cdslindia.com  from  Login  -  Myeasi  using  your  login  credentials.  Once  you

successfully lng-in to CDSL's EASI/EASIEST e-services,  dick on e-Voting option and proceed

directly to cast your vote electronically.
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5)    If you are holding shares in demat form and hid logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted
on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6)    If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your  10rdialt alpha-numeric  *PAN  issued  by Income  Tax Department

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
® Shareholders  who  have   not  updated  their  PAN  with  the  Company/

Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by

CompanyflTA or contact CompanyflTA.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Detalls or Date of Birth  (in dd/mmAryryy format)  as

Bank Details recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.
OR ® If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please

Date of Birth enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details fleld as

@08) mentioned in instruction (v).

7)    After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab.

8)    Shareholders  holding  shares  in  physical  form will  then  directly reach  the  Company selection

screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach `Password Creation'

menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password
field.  Kindly note  that  this  password  is  to  be  also  used  by  the  demat  holders  for voting  for

resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts
for e-voting through CDSL platform, It is strongly recommended not to share your password with

any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

9)    For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

10)  Click on the EVSN for TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED on which you choose to vote,

11)  On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option
"YESINO"  for voting.  Select the  option YES or NO as desired.  The  option YES implies that you

assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

12)  Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

13) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confrmation box

will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click

on "CANCEL" and accordingly modfty your vote.

14)  Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modfty your vote.tr
13
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15) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to print" option on the Voting

Page.

16)  If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password, then Enter the User ID and the image

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system,

17)  Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app in-Voting. The in-Voting app can be

downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users can download the app from

the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively.

v.)       Facility for Non -Individual shareholders and custodians -Remote voting
•     Non-Individual  shareholders  (i.e.  other  than  Individuals,  HUF,  NRI  etc.)  and  Custodians  are

required to log on to www.evotinrfudia,com and register themselves in the "Corporates" module.

•     A scanned  copy of the  Registration Form bearing the  stamp  and sign of the  entity should be

cmailed to helDdesk.evotin£@ cdslindia.com,

•     After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote
On.

•     The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and

on approval of the accounts they would be al]le to cast their vote,

•     A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney ¢OA) which they have issued in

favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer

to verify the same.

•     Altematively,    Non   Individual    shareholders    are    required    to    send    the    relevant    Board

Resolution/Authority letter etc. tngether with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the emall address

investor@triochemoroducts.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in

the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

19.  INSTRUCTIONS FOR SIIAREHOLDERS E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1)    The procedure e-Voting on the day of the AGM is sane as the instructions mentioned above for Remote

e-voting.

2)    Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However,

they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM

20.  PROCESS   FOR   THOSE   SIIAREHOLDERS   WIIOSE   EMAIL  ADDRESSESAIOBILE   NO.   ARE   NOT

REGlsTERED wlTH THE cOMPANyroEposlTORIEs FOR OBTAINING LOGIN cREDENTIArs FOR E-
VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:

i+
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1)    For Physical  shareholders  - please  provide  necessary details  like  Folio  No.,  Name  of shareholder,

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card),

AADIIAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to CompanyflTA email Id.

2)    For Demat shareholders -please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-

16 digit DPID  +  CLID),  Nanie,  client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement,  PAN  (self-

attested  scanned  copy  of  PAN  card),  AAI)HAR  (self-attested  scanned  copy  of Aadhar  Card)   to

CompanyATA email Id.

3)    For Individual Demat shareholders . Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant  @P) which is mandrtory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings though

Depository

21.  For assistance / queries for E-voting ctc;
1)    If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System,

you  can write  an  email  to helodesk.evotinq@cdslindia.com or contact at  022- 23058738  and 022-
23058542/43.

2)    All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be address to Mr. Rakesh

Dalvi,  Manager,  (CDSL),  Central  Depository Services  qndia)  Limited, A Wing,  25th  Floor,  Marathon

Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel Cast), Mumbai -400013 or send an

email to helpdesk.ecotin£@cdsindia.com or call on 022-2358542/43.

22.  GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

1.    Members  may  avail  dematerialization  fachity  by  opening  Demat  Accounts  with  the  Depository

Participants of wither National Securities Depository Limited or Central Depository Services  Qndia)

Limited and get the equity share certificate held by them dematerialized. The ISIN No. of the Company

is INE331E01013

2.    Members may also note that an electronic copy of the 50th Annual Report including Notice along with

attendance     slip    and    proxy    form    will    be     available     on    the     Company's    website     at

www.triochemDroducts.com  Even  after  registering  for  e{ommunication,  Members  are  entitled  to

receive such communication in physical form, upon making such a request for the sane free of cost.

For any communication, the shareholders may also send their request to the Company's investor E-

mail Id : investor@triochemoroducts.com

By order of the Board of Directors

For Triochem Products Limited

j?=e&R9eo£®fu
Director

Ra1
_I-
uS.

Director

DIN: 00312080                     DIN: 00312369

Place: Mumbai; Dated:  28th May 2022

Regivend Office:
4th Floor, SanbavA Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai: 400 001

Email : investor@triochemproducts.com: Website : www.triochemDroducts. com

ne No.: 9122  22663150; Fax No.: 9122 22024657
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Arme"re to Notice
Item No.2:
PROFILE  OF  DIRECTORS  SEERING  APPOIN"ENT/REAPPOIN"ENT  AT  THE  ANNUAL  GENERAL
MEETING

Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI qisting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

and pursuant to clause 1.2,5 of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) the details of the Directors

seeking appointment/re-appointment at the 50th Annual General Meeting is furnished below:

Name Of Director Mr. Rajesh Ramu Deora

Director Identification Number 00312316

Designation Non-Executive Director Non-Independent

Age 48 Years

Qualification Graduate in Economics & Industrial Management and Bachelor

of Science Degree from Carnegie Mellon University qusA).

Expertise He  stared  his  career  with  Amphray  Laboratories  as  Export  -

Import Manager. He has over 22 years of experience in all aspect

of  the   Business   including  Finance   &  Accounting,   Logistics,

Import-Export, Products and Business Development.

Date of first appointment in the current 28th May,  2019.

designation

Shareholding in the Company as on 31St 36,000

March, 2022.

Directorships and Committee Nil

memberships held in other companies

as on 31St March, 2022  @xcluding Private

Companies)

Inter-se relationships between Directors Mr. Ramu Sitaran Deora PIN 00512369) Gather)

and Key Managerial Personnel Mrs. Grace Ramu Deofa @IN 00312080)  quother)

No. of Board Meetings attended during 4 of 4.

the financial year 2021-22.

Terms and conditions of re-appointment AspertheresolutionpassedbytheShareholdersoftheCompany

on the 47th Annual General Meeting held on 24th August,  2019,

Mr. Rajesh Ranu Deora has been appointed as a Non-Executive

Non-Independent Directors, liable to retire by rotation.

Details of proposed remuneration Nil

The  Board  of  Directors  proposed  the  appointment  of  Mr.  Rajesh  Ramu  Deora  as  Non-Executive  Non-

Independent Director on the Board of Directors of the Company and recommends the resolution as set out at

Item no.  2 of the Notice and explanatory statement for the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual

General Meeting.

Except Mr. Ramu Sitaram Deora; Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora and Mr. Rajesh Ramu Deora and no other Director or

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the appointment of
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Mr. Rajesh Ramu Deora as a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company,  expect to extent of

their shareholding, if any, in the Company.

Item No.4:
PROFILE  0F  DIRECTORS  SEERING APPOINTMENT /  RE-APPOIN"ENT AT  THE  ANNUAL  GENERAL

MEETING

Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI qisting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

and pursuant to clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) the details of the Directors

seeking appointment/re-appointment at the 50th Annual General Meeting is furnished below:

Name Of Director Mr. Ramu Sitaram Deora

Director Identification Number 00312569

Designation Non-Executive Director

Age 85 Years

Qualification B.A.,  L.L.B.

Expertise Having  wide  ranging  experience  in  administration,  industrial

development   &   management,    export   promotion,    strategy

leadership, Finance, Investment.

Date of first appointment in the current 3oth June,1975

designation

Shareholding in the Company as on 31St 34,500

March, 2022

Directorships and Committee Nil

memberships held in other companies

as on 31St March, 2022 ¢xcluding Private

Companies)

Inter-se relationships between Directors Mrs. Grace R. Deora PIN 00312080) Ovife)

and Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Rajesh R. Deora @IN 00312316)  (Son)

No. of Board Meetings attended during 4of4

the financial year 2021-22.

Terms and conditions of re-appointment As per the resolution passed by the Shareholders of the Company

on the 47th Annual General Meeting held on 24th August,  2019,

Mr.  Ranu  S.  Deora  has  been  appointed  as  a  Non-Executive

Directors, liable to retire by rotation.

Details of proposed remuneration Nil

The  Board  of Directors  proposed  the  re-appointment  of Mr.  Ramu  Sitaram  Deora  as Non-Executive  Non-

Independent Director on the Board of Directors of the Company and recommends the special resolution as set

out at Item no. 4 of the Notice for the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

However, Regulation 17(1A) of the Listing Regulations provides that no person who has attained the age of 75

years after April 1, 2019 shall be appointed/reappointed as a non-executive director unless a special resolution
is passed to that effect in which case the explanatory statement annexed to the Notice for such motion shall

the justification for appointing such a person.
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Mr. Ramu Sitaram Deora, Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company has exceeded the age of

75yearsandisretiringbyrotationatthenextAnnualGeneralMeeting.TherelevantdetailsofMr.RanuSitaram
Deora seeking reappointment under Item No,  4 of the Notice subject to approval by shareholder by special

resolution, as required under Regulation 36 (5) of the Listing Regulations read with applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 and relevant accounting standards are given below:

1)    Mr. Ramu Sitaram Deora PIN: 00312369) was appointed as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director at

the 47th Annual General Meeting held on 24th August 2019 and that he is liable to retire by rotation.

2)    As  per Regulation  17(1A)  of the  SEBI  qisting Regulations),  which  came  into  effect from April  1,  2019

provides that no listed entity shall appoint a person or continue the directorship of any person as a non-
executive director who has attained the age of seventy five years unless a special resolution is passed to

that effect in which case the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion shall indicate

the justification for appointing such a person.

®               3)    Mr.  Ramu  sitaran Deora,  aged  85 years,  having wide ranging experience  in  administration,  industrial

development & management, export promotion, strategy leadership, Finance, Investment, etc. He was also

associated  in  various  trade  facilitation  forum/promotion  council  like  Board  of  Trade  GOT);  FIEO;

CHEMEXCIL; FICCI; All India Shippers Council; ECCG; etc. spanning over 40 years, Mr. Deora has spent

55 years in the field of industrial development and management.

®

4)    The Board of Directors is of the opinion that Mr.  Ramu Sitaram Deora has been an integral part of the

Board, has provided valuable insights to the Company and possesses relevant expertise and vast experience

in the field of administration,  leadership,  and business. His guidance in the past has been notable and

supportive to the Company in dealing with complex matters. Accordingly, it is felt that his association as

non-executive director will be beneficial and in the best interest of the Company. In line with the provisions

of SEBI  qisting  Regulations),  your  directors  recommend  his  appointment  as  Non-Independent  Non-

Executive Director at the 50th Annual General Meeting by way of Special resolution and that he is liable to

retire by rotation.

5)    The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the Special Resolution as mentioned at item no. 4 of this

Notice for approval of the Members of the Company,

Except Mr. Ramu Sitaram Deora; Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora and Mr. Rajesh Ranu Deora and no other Director or

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or interested in the re-appointment

of Mr. Ramu Sitaram Deora as a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company, expect to extent of

their shareholding, if any. In the Company, in the Special Resolution set out at Items No. 4 of the Notice.
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Amemre to Notice
Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,  2015 (`the act'), the following Explanatory Statement sets out

all material facts relating to the Business mentioned under Item no. 3 to 5 of the accompanving Notice dated

28th May,  2022.

Item NO. 3:

This explanatory statement is provided through strictly not require as per Section 102 of the Act.

M/s. Kanu Doshi Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company

at 45th Annual General Meeting (`AGM') held on 26th August, 2017 for a period of 5 years, up to the conclusion

of 50th AGM. M/s. Kanu Doshi Associates LLP are eligible for re-appointment for a further period of 5 years. M/s.

Kanu  Doshi Associates  I,LP have  given  their consent for their re-appointment  as  Statutory Auditors  of the

a           :roe:cpn?bneyda::d::tisesuperdo;:ro:[sca:: sce°cT:I:39g t:fatt::eciror:;aip[:in;:t::t6 [if3?:d:'A¥; ::dwt£:tfnmt[t: ]i:;t:
thereunder. M/s. Kanu Doshi Associates LI,P have confirmed that they are eligible for the proposed appointment

under the Act, the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and the rules or regulations made thereunder,

a

Based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, it is hereby proposed to

re-appoint   M/s.   Kanu   Doshi   Associates   LLP,    Chartered   Accountants,   having   Firm   Registration   No.

104746W/W100096, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the second and fmal term of five consecutive

years, who shall hold office from the conclusion of this 50th Annual General Meeting till conclusion of the 55th
Annual  General  Meeting  to  be  held  in  the  financial  year  2027-2028  on  such  remuneration  as  may  be

recommendedbytheAuditCommitteeanddecidedbytheBoardofDirectorsinconsultationwiththeStatutory

Auditors of the Company in addition to applicable taxes, reimbursement of all out of-pocket expenses as may

be incurred in connection with the audit of the accounts of the Company. The firm holds the `Peer Review'

certificate as issued by `ICAI'.

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the Members by way

ofanOrdinaryResolution.NoneoftheDirectorsorKeyManagerialPersonneloftheCompanyortheirrelatives

are interested or concerned, financiauy or otherwise, in the resolution.

Item No. 4:

Mr. Ramu Sitaram Deora, age 85, is the Non-Executive Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation. He

is  also  one  of the  promoters  of the  Company.  In  accordance  with  Regulation  17(1A)  of the  SEBI  qisting

Obligations  and  Disclosure  Requirements)  Regulations,  2015,  no  listed  entity  shall  appoint  a  person  or

continue the Directorship of any person as a Non-Executive Director who has attained the age of seventy-five

years after April 1, 2019 shall be appointed/reappointed as a non-executive director unless a special resolution
is passed to that effect in which case the explanatory statement annexed to the Notice for such motion shall

indicate the justification for appointing such a person.

Mr. Ramu Sitaran Deora, Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company has exceeded the age of

ears and is retiring by rotation at the next Annual General Meeting. The relevant details of Mr. Ramu Sitaran

J9



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED •_a_'`
CHEM

Deora seeking reappointment under Item No. 4 of the Notice subject to approval by the shareholder by special

resolution, as required under Regulation 36 (5) of the Listing Regulations read with applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 and relevant accounting standards are given below:

1)    Mr. Ramu Sitaram Deora @IN: 00312369) was appointed as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director at

the 47th Annual General Meeting held on 24th August 2019 and that he is liable to retire by rotation.

2)    As  per Regulation  17(1A)  of the  SEBI  qisting Regulations),  which  came  into  effect from April  1,  2019

provides that no listed entity shall appoint a person or continue the directorship of any person as a non-
executive director who has attained the age of seventy five years unless a special resolution is passed to

that effect in which case the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion shall indicate

the justification for appointing such a person.

3)    Mr.  Ramu  Sitaram  Deora,  aged  85  years,  having wide  ranging  experience  in  administration,  industrial
development & management, export promotion, strategy leadership, Finance, Investment, etc. He was also

associated  in  various  tl.ade  facilitation  forum/promotion  council  like  Board  of  Trade   GOT);  FIEO;

CHEMEXCIL; FICCI; All India Shippers Council; ECCG; etc. spanning over 40 years, Mr, Deora has spent

55 years in the fleld of industrial development and management.

4)    His brief profile is given below:

®

Qualification BA.,  L.L.B.

Expertise is specific functional areas Having   wide   ranging   experience   in   administration,

industrial     development     &     management,     export

promotion, strategy leadership, Finance, Investment.
Shareholding in the Company as on 31St 34,500

March,  2022

Directorships and Committee memberships Nil

held in other companies as on 31S' March,

2022 ¢xcluding Private Companies)

Relationships between Directors and Key Mrs. Grace R. Deora @IN 00512080) Ovife)

Managerial Personnel Mr. Rajesh R. Deora @IN 00312316)  (Son)

5)    The Board of Directors is of the opinion that Mr. Ramu Sitaram Deora has been an integral part of the
Board, has provided valual]le insights to the Company and possesses relevant expertise and vast experience

in the field of administration,  leadership,  and business.  His guidance in the past has been notable and

supportive to the Company in dealing with complex matters. Accordingly, it is felt that his association as

non-executive director will be beneficial and in the best interest of the Company. In line with the provisions

of SEBI  qisting  Regulations),  your  directors  recommend  his  appointment  as  Non-Independent  Non-

Executive Director at the 50th Annual General Meeting by way of Special resolution and that he is liable to

retire by rotation,

6)    The Board of Directors accordingly recommends the Special Resolution as mentioned at item no. 4 of this
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The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the Members by way

of an Special Resolution. Except Mr. Ramu Sitaram Deora; Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora and Mr. Rajesh Ramu Deora

and  no  other  Director  or  Key  Managerial  Personnel  of the  Company or  their  relatives  are  concerned  or

interested in the re-appointment of Mr. Ramu Sitaram Deora as a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of

the Company, expect to extent of their shareholding, if any. In the Company, in the Special Resolution set out

at Items No. 4 of the Notice.

Item no. 5:
Pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), read with Rule 15 of the Companies queetings

of Board  and  its  Powers)  Rules,  2014  the  Company is required  to  obtaln consent  of the  Board  and prior

approval of the members by Special Resolution in case certain Related Party Transactions exceed such sum as
is specified in the Rules. The aforesaid provisions are not applicable in respect transactions entered into by the

Company in the  ordinary course of business on arm's length basis.  Though the Company always does the

business with  its  related parties  at  arm length  and in ordinary course  of business but there  may be  some

transactions done in the interest of the Company and for which your approval is required under the provisions

of the Act.

The proposal outlined above  is in the  interest of the  Company and the  Board recommends the resolution

setting out in accompanying Notice as Special Resolution.

None  of the  Director or Key Managerial  Personnel of the  Company is concerned or interested in the  said

resolution  expect  to  extent  of  their  shareholding  in  the  company  or  any  other  interest  as  Director  or

shareholder or partner or otherwise in such related party entity, if any.

The Board recommends this Resolution for your Approval.
By order of the Board of Directors

For Triochem Products Limited

f7#R?neDora+ ±u=ra
D ire ctor                                D irector

DIN:  00312080                     DIN:  00312369

Place: Mumbai; Dated:  28th May 2022

Registered Office:
4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai: 400 001

Emafl: investor@triochemDroducts.com: Website : www.triochemDroducts.com

Phone No.: 9122  22663150; Fax No.: 9122  22024657
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BOARD'S REPORT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAIYSIS

To the Members,
Your  directors  are  pleased  to  present  their  50th Annual  Report  on  the  business  and  operation  of the

Company along with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ('FY') ended 31St March 2022.

FINANCIAL RESUI,TS                                                                                                                     Qupee in Lakh)

Particulars Year endedMarch2022 Year endedMarch2021*

Revenue from Operation 882.16 1,393.84

Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization 189.95 (33.33)
Less: Finance Cost 1.71 10.90

Less: Depreciation and Amortization Expense 11.92 13.88

Profit before exceptional items and tax 176.32 (58.11)

Exceptional Items

Profit Before Tax 176.32 (58.11)

Less: Tax Expense 44.04 (13.41)
Profit for the period from continuing operations 132.28 (44,70)
Profit before tax from discounted operations

Tax expense of discontinued operations

Profit for the period from discontinued operations
Profit for the period 132,28 (44.70)
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) 1,20 (1.75)
Total Comprehensive Income 1.20 (1.75)
Opening balance in Retained Eandngs 970.63 1,015.33

Closing balance in Retained Earnings 1,102.91 970.63
* Previous year figure has been recast/restated.

COMPANY'S PERFOMANCE:

During  the  financial  year  2021-22,  revenue  ffom  operation  decreased  to  Rs.882.16  lakhs  as  against

Rs.1,393.84lakhsinpreviousyear.Costofgoodssoldasapercentagetorevenuefromoperationdecreased

to71.39%asagainst90.4791ointhepreviousyear.Employeecostasapercentagetorevenuefromoperations

increase to 5.63% as against 4.80% in the previous year. Other expense as a percentage to revenue from

operations decrease to 7.85% as against 8.08% in the previous year. The profit after tax for the current year

is Rs.132.28 lakhs against loss of 44.70 lakhs in the previous year. Decreased in cost of goods sold resulted
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TThe Company is taking all necessary measures in terms of mitigating the impact of the challenges being

faced in the business. The Company is working towards being reshient in order to sail through the current
situation.  It is focused on controlling the  fixed  costs,  maintaining liquidity and closely monitoring the

supply chain to ensure that the manufacturing fachities to restart smoothly.

DIVIDEND:

Since there is inadequate profit, the directors are unable to recommend any dividend for the financial year

ended March 31, 2022. The Dividend Distribution Policy of the Company is set out as "Annc"re A" and

the same is posted on the Company's website at following the link:

httDs:/twrww.triochemoroducts.comfuDloadsThvestor-relations/bdfe/dividendrdistribution-oolicv-507.Ddf

COVID.19:

TThe outbreak of coronavims  (COVID-19)  has caused significant disruption and slowrdown of economic

activities during the last two years. The year 2021 started on a positive note with strong signs of recovery

after the first wave of COVID-19. However, the second wave again disrupted the market, led by localized

lockdowns and a dampened consumer sentiment. Repeated waves of infection, supplychain disruptions
during the year and more recently, inflation and geo-political teusious have created challenging times for

the  industry in general,  The  successful rollout  of the world's largest vaccination drive  has limited  the

negative economic impact of successive waves of infection.  Our operations have been adversely affected

during April-June 2021 and January-March 2022 due to various restrictions imposed by State Government,

with things now normalizing, operations are on the recovery path, though inflationary pressure continues
to impact the margins on an overall basis.

In these dfficult tines of the Covid-19 pandemic, reshience for an organization is paramount, during the

year,  the  Company  focused  on  achieving  its  business  goals  hand-in-hand  with  inproving  cash  from
operations and cutting costs. Necessary efforts were made towards business continuity and reshience.

BUSINESS OPERATIONS:

During the year under review temporarily reduce activity due to the ongoing impact of Covid-19 pandemic

in  India  as weu  as  its  customers  markets.  The  business  requires  personal presentation  &  relationship

building has taken a tremendous hit & is unlikely to see any possibhity of revival with the addition of new
customers in the immediate future due to uncertainties on account of the prevalent worldwide pandemic,

business from the regular customers is shrink by 80%, massive disruptions across supply of chain. Wc do

not see  significant improvement till  overseas  markets open  completely.  The  Company have  completed

pending orders and new order received from regular customers. The Company will temporarily reduce
activities till a dearer picture emerges.

The  Company's  operations  for  the  financial year  have  been  impacted  by the  spread  of Covid-19.  The

MManagement of the Company has assessed the impact of the pandemic on its financial statements/position

such as trade receivables,  investments,  inventories,  trade payables and based on its best judgement and

reasonable  estimate,  has  concluded  that  there  are  no  material  adjustments  required  in  the  Financial

Statements. The Company has carried out this assessment based on available internal and external sources

nation up to the date of approval of these financial statements and believes that the impact of Covid-EE
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19 is not material to these financial statements and expects to recover the canying amount of its assets.

However, the impact assessment of Covid-19 is a continuous process, given the uncertainties associated

with its duration and nature, it is not possible to estimate the future inpact as at the date of approval of

this financial statement. The Company continues to monitor the economic effects of the pandemic while

taking steps to improve its execution efficiencies and the flnancial outcome.

The management expects no impairment to the canying amounts of these assets. The Management win

continue  too  closely  monitor  any changes  to  future  economic  conditions  and  asses  its  impact  on  the

operation, The Company has sufficient liquidity to meet its financial obligations. There is no major inpact

on the collection from our customers and we are also making regular payments to our suppliers, employees,

and other concerned persons. The liquidity position of the company is in comfortable zone.

The market is expected to be stal)le during the end of FY2022-23, with the expectation of an improvement

in the market conditions during the year, the Company will endeavor to perform better than last year.

As regards to infrastructure, Your Company's head office and factory are adequately equipped to provide

complete  support  to  the  customer.   Internal  control  systems  have  been  well  established  and  cost

consciousness in factory operation will lead to improved profitability in the long run. Your Directors are

confident that the company will improve the performance in the current year

SHARE CAPITAL:

During the financial year under review Rs.24,50,000/-comprising of 2,45,000 equity shares of Rs.10/-each

continues to be the issued and paid-up capital of the Company. During the financial year 2021-2022, the

Company has not issued any Equity Shares with differential voting rights, granted stock options nor issued

sweat Equity Shares.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

The Company has not transferred any amount to the Reserve for the financial year ended March 51, 2022.

The Board of Directors have decided to adjust the entire amount of profit for the FY 2021-22 in the profit

and loss account.

DEPOSIT:

During the year under review, the Company did not accept any fixed deposits within the meaning of section

73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,

2014. No amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on date

of the Balance Sheet.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF THE BUSINI]SS, IF ANY:

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year.

RATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCLEL POSITION OF THE

COMPAJW.
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There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company,

which occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements related and the date

of the Report i.e. between 31St March 2022 to 28th May 2022, except Covid-19 pandemic as explain above.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES:

During the year under  review,  Company does  not have  any subsidiaries,  joint ventures,  or  associated

companies, therefore disclosures in Form AOC-1 are not provided in this report. The policy for determining

Material  Subsidiaries  in  terms  of Regulation  16(1)(c)  of the  Listing  Regulation  is  not  applical]le  to  the

Company.

PROJECTS & EXPANSION PIANS:

The Company assesses the future infrastructure requirements and continuously invests in the sane on need

basis.  During  the  financial  year  under  review  the  Company  has  spent  Rs.5.92  lakhs  towards  capital

expenditure.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF):

Your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore,

therewerenofundswhichwererequiredtobetransferredtolnvestorEducationandProtectionFund¢EPF).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAIYSIS:

In terms of the provision of the Securities and Exchange Board of India qisting Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations,  2015  ("SEBI LODR"), the Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms

part of the Amual Report,
1)   Outlook 2021-2022: Going forward, the growth is expected to slow even more. Despite the downturn,

the predicted expansion rate will be sufficient to get the economy back on track. In 2023, aggregate

advanced-economy output will return to  its pre-pandemic pattern.  Global trade  has recovered as a

result of a shift in alobal demand, A solid rebound is projected for investment and stronger trade

policies.

2)   Global Development and Their Effect: The last two years have been difficult for the world economy
on account of COVID-19 pandemic. Repeated waves of infection, supplychain disruptions and more

recently, inflation and geo-political tensions have created particularly challenging times for business &

industry and for policy making. The advance estimates suggests that the Indian economy in FY22  is

poised for a sharp recovery compared to that in the previous financial year. Despite COVID-19 related
uncertainties, there were expectations of a strong doublerdigit recovery but an intense second wave of

COVID-19 pandemic and the recent surge of third wave driven mostly by `Omicron' which has led to

localized lockdowns and other mobility restrictions derailed this growth  and dampened consumer
sentiments.

3)    Indian Economy: The Indian economy is estimated to have grown by nearly 8,2% in 2021-22 fiscal

year. The successful roll-out of the world's largest vaccination drive, pick-up in government spending
and better preparedness compared with first wave, limited the negative economic impact. The Central

vt, has plans to boost capital expenditure with govt. spending taking the lead and attracting private
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investments in turn. The real GDP growth of the Indian economy in FY23 is expected to be near 8%

andfiscaldeficitisprojectedtobe6.4%ofGDP,lowerthanthefiscaldeficitof6.9%oftheGDPinFY22.

However,  the  recent  geo-political  tensions  and  conflict  in  Ukraine  will  weigh  on  alobal  growth

projections. The overall CPI inflation could remain elevated in the near future due to high input costs

pressure,  largely  stemming  from  supply-chain  disruption,  shortage  of critical  inputs  and  upward

pressure on crude oil. The other downward risk to the tlobal growth outlook is the emergence of new
COVID-19 variants and increased occurrences of extreme climate events.

4)   Effect on Manufacturing Sector: The manufacturing sector was drastically impacted by the pandemic.
China,  which  is the  manufacturing hub  of the world,  was  severally impacted by the  lockdowns.  It

brought the manufacturing facilities to a standstill, derailing the entire tlobal supply chain. Mandatory

closures,  changes  in  buyer  behaviour,  disruptions  to  the  supply  chain,  amongst  other  factors,

contributed to the overall risk that the manufacturing industry is facing. The industry felt most of the

impact, causing unemployment, decreases in revenue, and notable delays in production.

5)   Specialty  Performance  Chemicals  and  Solutions  Manufacturing  Industry:  India  occupies  a
significant position in global API market. The Indian API industry has been gamering a lot of attention

alobally due to the good quality of Apls, which are being manufactured in the country. Recently, the
Indian API industry has been witnessing a fabulous growth owing to a number of factors. Some of these

factors  are  patent  expiry  of blockbuster  drugs,  increasing  demand  for  low  costing  genetics,  and

innovation  of  new  generation  of Apls.  Apart  from  these,  rise  in  geriatric  population,  increasing

disposable income, rising healthcare expenditure, and increasing incidences of chronic diseases are the

other reasons which are driving the growth of the Indian API industry. According to report on "Indian

API Market Outlook 2022",  the Indian API domestic consumption market is forecasted to grow at a

CAGR of around 10% from FY2016 -FY2022. This report provides the share of India in the global API

market.  Furthermore,  it gives information about the current scenario of the Indian API market, and

future forecasts related to it,  RNCOS analysts have mentioned the major drivers of the market,  and

factors hindering growth of the market.  The Indian API market has been segmented on the basis of

various parameters, such as type of manufacturing, type of API, and type of therapeutic area.

6)   Challenges Galore: Few Manufacturers in the API Industry. India was once a favoured destination for

sourcing low-cost, good quality API for manufacturing pharmaceutical formulations. However, China

took over this market by creating huge capacities. Also, the price of Apls from China is 15-20% less than

their production cost in India, making it more viable for the Indian companies to import. Consequently,

several  companies  shifted  their focus from  the  manufacturing of Apls to  developing formulations.

Another reason for the reduced number of API manufacturers is low profit margin in the API business

compared to the formulations business. All these factors have therefore led to the decline in number
of API manufacturers in India. Inadequate Infrastructure Facilities Infrastructure is the main area where

India lacks  in  comparison with  other  countries.  The  small  &  medium  enterprises  engaged  in API

manufacturing face a lot of problems in terms of infrastructure, as they do not have enough supply of

water or electricity; also they do not have warehouses where they can keep their excess stock or raw

materials.  In other countries such as China, there are free trade zones, high tech parks,  and export

rocessing zones.  In India,  the recommendations for the  development of API parks are  still under\\_
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consideration and will take time to get implemented. Therefore,  infrastructure development for API

production is  extremely essential  for the  entcaprises  to  manufacture  the  items  to their mainum
c;apalcrty qndian API Market Outloch 2022 by The Associated Cbanbers of Commerce and Industry Of
India)

7)   Way forward: Given the fact that the domestic API industry has been struggling for a long time because
of high dependence on China, it becomes even more prudent for the country to revive the domestic

industry in the wake of an ongoing pandemic. To achieve that, Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers;

has recently issued the guidelines of the scheme "Strengthening of Pharmaceutical Industry (SPI)  in

llth March 2022 with the objectives of:  (a) To strengthen the existing infrastructure facilities in order

to make India a global leader in the Pharma Sector by providing Financial assistance to pharma clusters

for creation of Common Facilities; a) to upgrade the production facilities of SMEs and MSMEs, to meet

national and international regulatory standards, by providing interest subvention or capital subsidy on

their capital loans;  (c) to promote knowledge and awareness about the Pharmaceutical and Medical

Devices Industry by taking up studies, building databases and brining industry leaders, academia and

policy makers  together to  share  their knowledge  and  experience.  The  total  financial  outlay of the
scheme for a peried of five years from 2021-22 to 2025-26.

Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers strives to inprove the infrastructural facilities of the pharma sector

in the country towards making India, a tlobal leader in the sector.  (a) In order to make the country

Atmanirbhar  in  pharmaceuticals,  the  Department  of Pharmaceuticals  has  launched  the  Production

Linked  Incentives  ¢LI)  Scheme  for  promotion  of domestic  manufacturing  of critical  Key  Starting

Materials qsMs)rorug Intermediates @Is) , and Active Pharmaceuticals Ingredients (Apls) in India. The

outlay  of  the   scheme   tenure   from   2021-30.   a)   Production   Link  Incentive   ¢LI)   scheme  for

Pharmaceuticals has been launched with tenure from FY2021 -FY2029. The scheme intends to enhance

India's  manufacturing  capabilities  by  increasing  investment  and  production  in  the  sector  and

contributing to product diversification to high value goods in pharmaceuticals sector. The eligible drugs

under this scheme include Apls among other categories of pharmaceutical's products.  (c) Scheme to

provide further support to API pharma companies through providing, financial assistance to the States
for  establishing  three  Bulk Drug  Parks.  (d)  Support  to  the  pharma  clusters  for  creating  common

infrastructure facilities under Assistance to Pharmaceuticals Industry for Common Facilities (APICF).

(e)  Pharmaceutical Technology Upgradation Assistance Scheme  ¢TUAS)  has also been approved to
support SME units in pharmaceutical sector for quality & technology upgradation.  (Re/erence Re/ease
ID:  1812312; Posted On: 01 APR 2022 3:29 PM by PIB Delhi)

8)   Risk management: As per provision of the Companies Act, 2015 and good corporate governance, the
Company has laid down procedures to inform the Board about the risk assessment and minimisation

procedures and the Board shall be responsible for frandng,  implementing,  and monitoring the risk
management plans for the Company. The aim is to ensure sustainable business growth with stability

and to promote a pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating, and resolving risks associated with the

business. The Audit Committee of the Company has periodically reviewed the various risk associates

with business of the Company. Such review includes risk identification, evaluation and mitigation of

risk.

\L-
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9)   Company's Financial Performance & Analysis: During the year under review, gross revenue is lower
by 36.71% at Rs.882.16 lakhs as against Rs.1,393.84 lakhs in the previous year. There is operating profit

¢BIDTA)  of Rs,189.95  lakhs  in  the  financial  year  2021-22  as  agalnst  loss  of Rs.33.33  lakhs  in  the

previous year. The gross revenue is lower because of temporarily reduce in manufacturing activities.

10) Internal Control Systems: Your Company has evolved a system of internal controls to ensure that the
assets are safeguarded, and transactions are authorised, recorded and correctly reported. The internal

control system is supplemented by management reviews and independent periodical reviews by the

outside chartered accountancy firms which evaluate the functioning and quality of internal controls

and provides assurance of its adequacy and effectiveness.  The scope of internal audit covers a wide

variety of operational methods and, as a minimum, ensures compliance with specified standards with

regard  to  awilability  and  suitability of policies  and  procedures,  extent  of adherence,  reliability of

management information  system  and  authorization  procedures  including steps for safeguarding of

assets.  The  reports  of  internal  audit  are  placed  before  Audit  Committee  of the  Directors.  Audit

Committee reviews such audit findings and the adequacy of internal control systems. The Statutory

Auditors and the Internal Auditors of the Company also interact with the Audit Committee to share

their flndings and the status of corrective actions under implementation.

11) Human Recourses: The Company lays great emphasis on proper management of human resources
and believes that this is the most important ingredient for achieving excellence in performance and

sustainable growth. The management constantly reviews the skill mix and takes appropriate steps to

achieve desired skill mix. For upgrading the skill,  special emphasis is laid on training.  Selective and

intensive training is being imparted to employees at various levels.

12) Cautionary Statement: Statements in the Board's Report and the Management Discussion & Analysis

describing the  Company's  objectives,  expectations  or forecasts  may be  forward-looking within  the

meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those

expressed in the statement. Important factors that could influence the Company's operations include

global and domestic demand and supply conditions affecting selling prices,  changes in government
regulations,  tax laws,  economic  development regulations within the  country,  lockdown conditions

arising out of pandemic or otherwise and other factors such as litigation and industrial relations,

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Based on the framework of internal financial control and compliance system established and maintained by

the Company, work performed by the Internal, Statutory, Cost and Secretarial Auditors, including audit of

the internal financial control over financial reporting by the Statutory Auditor and the reviews performed

by Management and the relevant Board Committee,  including the Audit Committee,  the Board is of the

opinion that the Company's internal financial controls were adequate and effective during the financial year

2021-22'

Accordingiv, pursuant to Section 134(3) (c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory

modiflcation(s) for the time being in force) the Board of Directors of your Company, to the best of their

and ability, conflrm that for the year ended March 31, 2022:\, 29
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1)    In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the applicable

accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule Ill to the Act, have been followed

and there are no material departures from the same;

2)    the  Directors  have  selected  such  accounting  policies  and  applied  them  consistently  and  made

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and of the profitAoss of the Company for the financial

year from April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022.

3)    the Directors have taken proper and sufflcient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in  accordance with  the  provisions  of the Act  for safeguarding  the  assets  of the  Company and  for

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

4)    the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a `going concem' basis;

5)    the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and.

6)    the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable

laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

DIRECTORS AND FEY MANAGERLEL PERSONNEL:

The Board received a declaration from all the directors under section 164 and other applicable provisions,

if any,  of the Companies Act,  2013  that none of the directors of the company is disqualified under the

provision  of  the  Companies  Act,  2013  (`Act')  or  under  the  SEBI  qisting  Obligations  and  Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

1)   Appointment: No changes have taken place in the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

q{MP) from the date of last Annual Report.

2)   Retirement  by rotation  and  subsequent  re-appointment:  In accordance with the  provision of
Section  152  and  other  applicable  provisions,  if any,  of the  Companies  Act,  2013,  read  with  the

Companies   (Appointment  and  Qualification  of  Directors)   Rules,   2014   (including  any  statutory

modiflcation(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and the Articles of Association

of the Company. Mr. Rajesh Ramu Deora PIN: 00312316)  Olon-Executive Non-Independent) and Mr.

Ramu Sitaran Deora @IN:  00312369)  OJon-Executive Non-Independent)  Director of the Company,

retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment. In

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder, the

Listing Regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company, the Independent Directors and the

Managing Director of the Company are not liable to retire by rotation.

The  said  re-appointment  and  terms  and  conditions  thereof shall  be  approved by the  members  at

ensuing AGM as per the provision of the Act and Listing Regulations, Accordingly, a resolution is being

proposed in the notice of 50th AGM for the approval of the members of the company refer to item no.



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

fl

TR,a
CHEM

Pursuant   to   the   provision  of  Regulation   36   of  the   SEBI   qisting  Obligations  and   Disclosure

Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meeting issued by Institute of

Company Secretaries of India ¢CSI), brief particulars of the directors proposed to be appointed/re-

appointed are provided as an annexure to the notice convening the AGM.

3)   Composition of the Board: The Company's policy is to have an appropriate blend of non{xecutive
and independent directors, to maintain the independence of the Board functions of governance and

management, No changes have talken place in the Composition of the Board from the date of last Annual

Report.

The composition of the Board of Directors is fully complied with the provision of the Companies Act,

2013 and Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations, including the appointment of requisite number of

Independent Directors and Woman Director. As on 31 March 2022, the Board comprised of two (2)

Non-Executive   Independent  Directors   and  four   (4)   Non-Executive   Non-Independent  Directors,

including  Woman  Director  is  a  Non-executive  Non-Independent  Directors.   The  Board  has  no

institutional director.

4)   Independent Directors with materially significant, pecuniary, or business relationship with the
Company:  There is no pecuniary or business relationship between the Non-ExecutiveAndependent

Directors and the Company. A declaration to this effect if also submitted by all the Directors at the

beginning of each financial year.

5)   Independent  Directors:  The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent
Director under Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria of independence

laid down in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 along with declaration received pursuant to

sub rule (5) of Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualiflcation of Directors) Rules, 2014. They

have  also  furnished  the  declaration  pursuant  to  Regulation  25(8)  of the  SEBI  Listing  Regulations

affirming compliance to the criteria of Independence as provided under Regulation  16(1)a)  of the

SEBI Listing Regulations.

Based on the declarations and confirmation of the Independent Directors and after undertaking due

assessment of the  veracity of the  same,  the  Board  of Directors  recorded their opinion  that  all  the

Independent Directors are  independent of the Management and have fulffled all the conditions as

specified under the governing provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Further, the Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company's
code of conduct.

6)   Statement of Board of Directors: The Board is of the opinion that all the Independent Directors of
the Company possesses requisite qualifications, experience and expertise in chemicals/manufacturing

industry, strategy, auditing, tax and risk advisory services, financial services, corporate governance, etc.

and that they hold standards of integrity. They have played a pivotal role in safeguarding the interests

of all stakeholders. The Company has also issued formal appointment letters to all the Independent

\.-i,,
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Directors  in  the  manner  provided  under  the  Companies  Act,  2013  read  with  the  Rules  issued

thereunder. The terms and conditions for appointment of independent director and a sample letter of

appointment issued to the, are posted on the Company's website under the section `Investor Relations'

tab `Appointment of Non-Executive Independent Director' at following the link:

httDs:/rfurww.triochemDroducts.com/investor-relations/investor-relations.asDx

The Independent Directors of the Company got included their names in the data bank of Independent

Directors maintalned with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the Act

read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

7)   Familiarization  programme  for  the  lndqudent  Directors:  The  Independent  Directors  are
familiarized through various programmes on a continuing basis including: (a) Nature of the industry in

which Company operates;  a)  business  model of the  Company;  (c)  roles,  rights,  respousibhities of

Independent Directors etc. ,

In Compliance with the requirements of SEBI Regulations, finiliarization programme along with their

role, rights and responsibhities as Directors, the working of the Company, nature of the industry in

which the Company operates,  business model,  etc.  it is also display on website of the Company at

fouowing the link:

httos:/furww.triochemoroducts.comfuDloads/Investor-relations/Ddfolfinilarization-Droqrani-for-

indeoendentrdirectors-31.odf

8)   Code of Conduct: The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the
Members of the Board and all employees in day-torday business operations of the company. The Code

lays  down  the  standard  procedure  of business  conduct which  is  expected  to  be  followed  by the
Directors and the designated employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters relating

to  integrity in the workplace,  in business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. All the  Board

Members and the Senior Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code. The Code

has been displayed on website of the Company at following the link:

httos:/tw7ww.triochemDroducts.comfuoloads/Investor-relations/bdts/directorsuenior-manaEement-

oersormel-24.Ddf

9)   Prevention of insider Trading: Pursuant to SEBI ¢rohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
as amended, the Company has adopted the Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for Regulating,

Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by Designated Persons and their Immediate Relatives along with

Code of Fair Disclosures. The Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by employees

and other connected persons has been displayed on websitc of the Company at following the link:
httos:/twww.triochemi]reducts.comfuoloadsThvestor-relations/bdfo/regulate-monitor-and-reDort-

tradingbv€mDlovees-and-connected-Person-23.Ddf

BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR:

Board of Director: The Board of Directors met four (4) times during the financial year. The dates on

the  meetings were  held  are  29thjune  2021,  14th August  2021,  13th  November  2021,  and  12th
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February 2022. The maximum gap between any two Board Meetings did not exceed one hundred and

twenty days.

2)    Independent  Director:  Schedule  IV  of the  Companies Act,  2013  and  the  Rules  thereunder  and

Regulation 25(3) of SEBI qoDR) Listing Regulation 2015, the independent director held their separate

meeting  on  31St  March  2022,  without  attendance  of  non-independent  directors  and  members  of

Management, to inter alia: All Independent directors were present in meeting.

3)   Attendance of Directors: Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings held during the financial year
ended 31st March 2022 and at last AGM:

Name of Director(inalphabeticalorder) Category Number of meetings Attendance at the last AGM

Held Attended Held on 25th September 2021.

Mr. Girish Kumar Non-Executive, 4 4 Yes

Pungalia Independent

Mrs. Grace R. Deora Non-Executive 4 4 Yes

Mr. Shyam SunderShama Non-Executive 4 3 Yes

Mr. Sunil S. Non-Executive, 4 4 Yes

]hunjhunwala Independent

Mr. Rajesh R. Deora Non-Executive 4 4 Yes

Mr. Ramu S. Deora Non-Executive 4 4 Yes

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI qisting Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board had the following Three (3) Committees as on 31St

March  2022,  along  with  their  composition,  number  of meetings  and  attendance  at  the  meetings  are

provided:
1)   Audit Committee: The Audit Committee function in accordance with Section 177 of the Act, 2013 read

with the Rules issued thereunder and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations and its Charter adopted

by the Board. The term of reference of the Audit Committee. The members of the Audit Committee are

financially literate and have experience in financial management. The Audit Committee comprises of

the following directors and Attendance of Directors at the Committee Meetings held during the financial

year ended 51 March 2022. No changes have taken place in the members of the Committees from the
date of last Amual Report.

Name Status Category Meeting

Held Attended

Mr. Sunfl S. ]hunjhunwala Chairman Non-Executive - Independent Director 4 4

Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalia Member Non-Executive - Independent Director 4 4

hds. Grace R, Deora Member Director 4 4

There have been no instances during the year when recommendations of the Audit Committee were

accepted by the Board.EE 33
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2)   Nomination and Remuneration Committee: The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (`NRC ')
functions in accordance with Section 178 of the Act, Regulation 19 of the Regulations and its Charter

as adopted by the Board. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprising of the following

directors and Attendance of Directors at the Committee Meetings held during the financial year ended

31 March 2022. No changes have taken place in the members of the Committees from the date of last
Annual Report.

Name Status Category Meeting

Held Attended

Mr, Sunil S. ]hunjhunwala Chairman Non-Executive - Independent Director 4 4

Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalia Member Non-Executive - Independent Director 4 4

Mrs. Grace R. Deora Member Director 4 4

All the recommendations made by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were accepted by the

Board of Directors of the Company.

3)   Stakeholders'  Relationship  Committee:  The  Stakeholders Relation Committee  (`SRC')  looks into
various aspects of interest of shareholders. The Committee oversees performance of the Registrar and

Share  Transfer Agents  of the  Company relating to  investor service  and  recommends  measures  for

improvement.  The  company  is  having  a  Stakeholders  Relationship  Committee  comprising  of the

following directors and Attendance of Directors at the Committee Meetings held during the financial

year ended 31 March 2022. No changes have taken place in the members of the Committees from the
date of last Annual Report.

Name Status Category Meeting

Held Attended

Mr. Sunil S. jhunjhunwala Chairman Non-Executive - Independent Director 4 4

Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalia Member Non-Executive - Independent Director 4 4

Mrs. Grace R. Deora Member Director 4 4

a
All  the  recommendations made by the  Stakeholders Relationship  Committee were accepted by the

Board of Directors of the Company.

EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INI)IVIDUAI, DIRECTORS:

1)    Key Managerial Personnel (`KMP'): Mr. Ramu S. Deora, Director; Mr. Puran]. Parmar, Chief Financial

Officer;  and Ms.  Ureca Shirish Shirole, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, are Key Managerial

Persormel  of  the  Company  in  accordance  with  the  provisions  of  Section  2(51),  and  203  of  the

Companies  Act,  2013  read  with  the  Companies  (Appointment  and  Remuneration  of  Managerial

Personnel)  Rules,  2014  and  Regulations  6(1)  of Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of India  qisting

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)  Regulations,  2015. There has been no change in the Key

Managerial Personnel quMP) during the financial year.

2)   Remuneration  of directors,  key managerial  personnel,  and  particulars  of employees:  The
remuneration paid to the Directors is in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration policy

in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the listing
-_---.`,`"
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Regulations (including any statutory modifications(s) or re{nactments (s) thereof for the tine being in

Force) . The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies

(Appointment  and  Remuneration  of  Managerial  Personnel)  Rules,  2014  (including  any  statutory
modification(s) or re€nactment(s) thereof for the tine being in force) in respect of Directors/employee

of the Company is as follows:

The company director has forgone remuneration. Further no sitting fee has been paid to any director

during the financial year. The particulars of the employees who are covered by the provisions contained

in Rule 5(2) and rule 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

Rules, 2014 are:

(a)   Employed throughout the year                        Nil

a)  Employed for part of the year                          Nil

The increase in remuneration of employees other than the Key Managerial Personnel is considerably in

line with the increase in remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel. It is affirmed that the remuneration

paid to the Directors,  Key Management Personnel and senior management is as per the Nomination
and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: 11.

In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the reports and accounts are being sent to the members and others

entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees' particulars which is availal]le for inspection

by the members at the Registered office of the company during business hours on working days of the
company up to the date of ensuing Annual Genera`l Meeting. If any member is interested in inspecting

the same, such member may write to the Chief Financial Officer in advance.

3)   Nomination & Remuneration Policy: The Company has formulated and adopted the Nomination
and Remuneration Policy in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules

issued thereunder and the Listing Regulations. The said Policy of the Company,  !ater drto, provides

that  the  Nomination  and  Remuneration  Committee  shall  formulate  the  criteria for appointment  if

Executive,  Non-Executive  and  Independent  Directors  on  the  Board  of Directors  on  the  Board  of

Directors of the Company and persons in the Senior Management of the Company, their remuneration

including determination  of qualifications,  positive  attributes,  independence  of Directors  and  other

matters as provided under sub-section (3) of section 178 of the Companies Act,  2015  (including any

statutory modification(s) or re€nactment(s) thereof for the time being in force). The Policy is available

on the website of the Company at the fouowing link:
httos:/whrww.triochem|]roducts.comfuDloadsAnvestourelations/bdfothomination-and-remuneration-

coiicv-26.ndf

4)   Directors Appointment  and  Remuneration  Poricy:  The  Board  on  the  recommendation  of the
Nomination  and  Remuneration  Committee  has  framed  a  Policy for  selection  and  appointment  of

Directors  & Senior Management and  their remuneration.  The  Policy of the  Company on Directors

appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications,  positive attributes,\, 35
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independence of Directors and other matters provided under Section 178(5) of the Act and Regulation

19 of the Listing Regulations is avallable on the website of the Company at the following link:

https:/tww.triochemproducts.conrfuploadsAnvestor-relationstydf§fappointment--evaluationof

boardofrdirectors-kmos-and-senior-management-Dersonn-27.odf

5)   Performance Evaluation: The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company empowers the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee to formulate a process for evaluating the performance of
Directors, Committees of the Board and the Board as a whole, Pursuant to the applicable provisions of

the Act and the Listing Regulation, the Directors carried out the annual performance evaluation of the

Board,  Committees of Board and Individual Directors along with assessing the quality,  and quantity

and  timelines  of flow  of information  between  the  Company  management  and  the  Board  that  is
necessary for the  Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. An evaluation sheet was

given to each director wherein certain criteria were set out for which ratings are to be given.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2022, in Form MGT-7 in accordance with Section 92(3)

of the Act read with  the  Companies  (Mangement and Administration)  Rules,  2014,  is available  on the

website of the Company at the following link:

httos:/twww.triochemDroducts.comfuDloads/Investor-relations/bdfstdraft-annual-return-202122-506.odf

By virtue of amendment to Section 92(3)  of the  Companies Act,  2013,  the Company is not required to

provide extract of Annual Return (form MGT-9) as part of the Board's Report, voluntary basis is attached
as "Annexure 8" form parts of the Board's Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

In terms of Regulation 15 (2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 , states that, The Compliance with the corporate governance provisions as

specified in regulation 17,  [174]  18,19, 20, 21,22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 and clauses @) to (i)  [and (t)I of

sub-regulation  (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V shall not apply, to listed entities

having paid up equity share capital not exceeding rupees ten crore and net worth not exceeding rupees

twenty five crone, as on the last day of the previous financial year. We wish to inform you that in respect of

our Company as on the last audited balance sheet as at 31.03.2022 paid up equity capital of the company

is Rs. 24.50 lalth which is less than ten crores and net worth Rs.13 .05 Crone which is less than rupees twenty-

five  crore,  which  is within  the  limit as prescribed  in  Regulation  15(2)  of SEBI  (Listing Obligation  and

Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015.

Hence,  Regulation  15(2)  of Securities and Exchange  Board of India  (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 not be applicable to us. Further, when the provision of the said regulation

becomes applicable to the Company at a later date, the same shall be complied with, within six months

from the date on which the provisions become applicable to the Company.

coRpoRATE socEL REsroNslBILITy:
The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Respousibhity shall not be applicable to

mpanies having net worth not exceeding Rs.500 crore or more or tumovef not exceeding Rs.1,000 croreI.±`L
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The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility shall not be applicable to

companies having net worth not exceeding Rs.500 crore or more or turnover not exceeding Rs,1,000 crore

or net profit not exceeding Rs.5 crore or more during any financial year, as on the last day of the previous

financial year.  In this connection, we wish to inform you that in respect of our Company as on the last

audited balance sheet as at 31.03.2022 neither the net worth exceeds Rs.500 crores or turnover exceeds

Rsl,000 crore or net profit exceeding Rs.5 crore. Hence, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding

Corporate Social Responsibility would not be applicable.

AUDIT REPORTS AND AUDITORS:

1)    Statutory Auditors:  Pursuant to the provisions of Section  139 of the Companies Act,  2013 and the

Rules made thereunder, it is mandatory to rotate the statutory auditors on completion of the maximum
term permitted under the provisions of Companies Act,  2013.  In line with the requirements of the

Companies  Act,  2013,  M/s.  Kanu  Doshi  Associates  LLP,  Chartered  Accountants  was  appointed  as

Statutory Auditors  of the  Company to  hold  office  for  a  period  of five  consecutive  years  from  the

conclusion of the 45th AGM of the Company held on 26th August 2017 till the conclusion of the 50th

AGM to be held in the year 2022. The Board of directors of the company has recommended the re-

appointment of M/s. Kanu Doshi Associates LLP, ¢irm Registration No. 104746W/W100096) for second
term for a period of five consecutive years from the conclusion of ensuring AGM till the conclusion of

the AGM  to  be  held for the  financial year  2026-27.  The  requirement for the  annual  ratification  of

auditors' appointment at the AGM has been omitted pursuant to Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017,

notifled on May 7, 2018.

The auditors have confirmed their eligibility, limits as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013 and that

they are not disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company. In view of the above, based on

the recommendations of Audit Committee, The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at

Item No. 5 of the Notice of 50th AGM for approval of the Members.

The Auditors' Report for the financial year ended March 31,  2022 on the financial statements of the

Company forms a part of this Annual Report. The report does not contain any qualification, reservation,

adverse remark, disclaimer or modified opinion.

2)   Secretarial Auditors:  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act read with Rule  9 of the

Companies  (Appointment  and  Remuneration  of  Managerial  Personnel)  Rules,   2014,  M/s.  Ragivi

Chokshi & Co. (CP No. 1436), Practicing Company Secretaries was appointed to conduct the secretarial

audit of the Company for the financial year 2021-22.  The Company has received consent from M/s.

Ragini Chokshi & Co.  (CP No.  1436), Company Secretaries to act as the auditors for conducting audit

of the Secretarial records for the financial year ended 31St March 2023.

The report of the Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as "Annexure C" form parts of the Board's Report.

There has been no qualification,  reservation,  adverse remark,  or disclaimer given by the Secretarial

Auditors in their Report.

3)   Internal Auditors:  Pursuant to the provisions of Section  138 of the Companies Act,  2013 and rules
ade there under (including any amendment(s),  modification(s)  or re€nactment(s)  thereof for the
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time being in force), the Board of Directors of the Company, on recommendation of Audit Committee,

at their meeting held on 28th May 2022 have Re-appointed M/s. Haren Sanghvi & Associates, Chartered

Accountant as lnternal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23, to conduct Internal

Audit of the Company.

4)   Cost auditor: The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance the of cost records
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the company. Accordingly,

during the year, maintenance of Cost Records and Cost Audit was not applicable to the Company.

REIATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

In line with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, your Company has

formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions which  is available on the website  of the Company at

following link:

httDs:/whww.triochemDroducts.comfuDloads/Investor-relations/bdfo/related-oartv-transactions-29.pdf

The Policy intends to ensure that proper reporting; approval and disclosure processes are in place for all

transactions between the Company and Related Parties.

All  related  party  transactions  are  placed  before  the  Audit  Committee  for  its  review  and  approval.

Prior/Omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on an annual basis for a financial year, for the

transactions which are of a foreseen and repetitive in nature. The statement giving details of au related party

transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval together with relevant information are placed

before the Audit Committee for review and updated on quarterly basis.

AllRelatedPartyTransactionsenteredduringtheyearwereinOrdinaryCourseoftheBusinessandatArm's

Length basis. During the year under review, the Company has not entered into any contracts / arrangements

/ transactions with related parties which qualfty as material in accordance with the Policy of the Company
on materiality of related party transactions. Hence, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required

under Section 134(3)th) of the Companies Act, 2013 in `Form AOC-2' is not applicable.

a              The details of such related party transactions are available in the Notes to the financial statements section

of this Annual Report.

LOANS, GURANTEES OR INIS"ENTS:
During the year under review, the Company has not given/made any investment. Further, the Company has

not given any loans or corporate guarantee or provide any security covered under the provisions of section

186 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies 04eetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014,

RISK MANAGEMENT :

As per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as part of good Corporate Governance, the company has

long been followed the principle of risk minimization as is the norm in every industry, it has now become

a compulsion. Therefore, the Board members were informed about the risk assessment and minimization

procedures after which the Board formally adopted steps for framing, implementing, and monitoring the
management plan for the company. The Audit Committee of the Company has periodically reviewed
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thevariousriskassociateswithbusinessoftheCompany,Suchreviewincludesriskidentification,evaluation

and mitigation of the risk,

The main objective of this poliey is to ensure sustainal]le business growth with stabhity and to promote a

pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating, and resolving risks associated with the business. In order to
achieve  with  the  key  objectives,  the  policy  establishes  a  structured  and  disciplined  approach  to  Risk

Management,  in order to guide decisions on risk related issues.  In today's challenging and competitive

environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks in accomplishing the growth plans of the Company are

imperative.   The   common  risks   inter  alia  are   Regulations,   competitive,   Business   risk,   Technology

obsolescence, Investments, retention of talent and expansion of fachities. Business risk, inter-alia, further

includes financial risk, political risk, fidelity risk,  legal risk. As a matter of policy, these risks are assessed

and steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the same.

TThe  Company  has  implemented  Risk  Management  Policy  and  the  Board  of Directors  has  prepared  a

compreheusivc framework of risk management for assessment of risks and to determine the responses to
these risks so as to minimize their adverse impact on the organization. The policy as approved by the Board

of Directors, which is availal]le on the website of the Company at following link:

httos:/tw7ww.triochemoroducts.comfui]loads/Investor-relations/bdfe/risk-management-oolicv-25.odf

coNSERVATloN oF ENERGy, TECHNoroGT ABsoRPTloN AND FOREIGN ExcllANGE EARNINGs
AND OUTcO:

TThe information on  conversation of energy,  technology al]soaption  and foreign exchange  earnings and

outgo stipulated under Section 134(3) (in) of the Act read with Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014, in Form A is annexed herewith "Annexure-D".

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT:

The information on Research and Development in Form 8 is annexed herewith as "Annexure D".

INTERI\IAI, FII`IANCEL CONTROL AND THEIR ADEQUAor:

The Company has in place Internal Financial Control Systems, commensurate with the nature of its business

and the size, scale, and complexity of its operations to ensure proper recording of financial and operational
information  &  compliance  of  various  internal  controls,  statutory  compliances,  and  other  regulatory

compliances. The internal control procedures have been planned and designed to safeguard and protect

from  loss,  unauthorized  use,  or disposition  of its  assets.  All  the  transactions  are  probably  authorized,

recorded,  and  reported  to  the  Management.  The  Company  is  following  all  the  applicable Accounting

Standards for properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The internal

auditor of the company checks and verifies the internal control and monitors them in accordance with

policy adopted by the  company.  The  company continues to  ensure  proper and  adequate  systems and

procedures commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

As require by the Companies Act 2013, your Company has inplemented an lnternal Financial Control (IFC)

Framework. Section 134(5)(e) requires the Directors to make an assertion in the Directors Respousibhity

that your Company has laid down internal financial controls, which are in existence, adequate
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and operate  effectively.  Under Section  177(4)(vii),  the Audit Committee  evaluates the  internal financial

controls and makes a representation to the Board. The purpose of the IFC is to ensure that policies and

procedures adopted by your Company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business are
implemented, including policies for and the safeguarding its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and

errors,  accuracy  and  completeness  of accounting  records,  and  timely preparation  of relial)le  financial

information. The IFC implementation required all processes of your Company to be documented alongside

the controls within the process. All processes were satisfactorily tested for both design and effectiveness

during the year.

The  TPL  code  of  conduct  and  accompanying  tralhing,  seeks  to  ensure  everyone  in  your  Company

understands  how to  put values  into  practice.  Mandatory training on  the  Code  of Conduct  helps your

Company's employees gain the confidence to make the right decisions and become familiar with the policies

and procedures applicable to their areas of operation, avoid conflicts of interest and report all unethical

and illegal conduct. Additionally, employees are required to certfty in an annual basis whether there have

been any transactions which are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the Code of Conduct, Strong oversight and

self-monitoring  policies  and  procedures  demonstrate  your  Company's  commitment  to  the  highest

standards of integrity. Your Company has also successfully complemented its Internal Control Framework

with the test of design and effectiveness of all its processes across the organization as part of meeting the

requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, to ensure the existence and effectiveness of Internal Financial

Controls.

The  Audit   Committee   reviews  the   adequacy  and   effectiveness   of  the   Company's  internal   control

environment and monitors the  implcmentation of audit recommendations,  including those  relating to
strengthening of the Company' s risk management policies and systems. The ultimate objective being, a Zero

Surprise, RIsk controlled Organization.

WIIISTIE BLOWER POLICY AND VIGIL MECIIANISM:

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for directors

®              and employees in confrmation with section 177(9) of the Act and Regulation 22 ofsEBI Listing Regulations,
to report concerns al)out unethical behavior. The Company hereby affrms that no Director/employee has

been denied access to the Chairman and Audit Committee and that no complaints were received during the

year.

The said Policy provides for  (a)  adequate  safeguards against victimization of persons who use the VIgfl

Mechanism; and a) direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Board of the Company.

The Company believes in the conducts of the affairs of its constituents by adopting the highest standards of

professionalism, honest, integrity and ethical behavior, in line with the TPL Code of Conduct (`Code'). All
the stakeholders are encouraged to raise their concerns or make disclosures on being aware of any potential

or actual violation of the  Code,  policies,  or the law.  The  Company maintalns a website where detailed

information of the company and its products are provided.

In  order  to  ensure  that  the  activities  of the  company  and  its  employees  are  conducted  in  a fair  and

manner by adoption of highest standards of professionalism,  honesty,  integrity and ethical
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behavior the company has adopted a vigil mechanism policy. The aim of the poliey is to provide adequate

safeguards against victimization of whistle blower who avalls of the mechanism and also provide direct

access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, in appropriate or exceptional cases, Accordingly, `Whistle

Blower Polity has been formulated with a view to provide a mechanism for the Directors and employees

of the  Company  to  approach  the  Ethics  Counsellor  or  the  Chairman  of the  Audit  Committee  of the

Company. The purpose of this polity is to provide a framework to promote responsible and secure whistle

blowing, It protects employees willing to raise a concern al3out serious irregularities within the Company.

This policy is avallal]le on the website of the Company at following link:

httDs:/whrww.triochem|]roducts.comful]loads/Investor-relations/bdfofyial-mechanism-whistleblower-

coiicv-28.ndf

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL IIARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE:

a         #VIfd°u:P:oyrifrognfg: :ehecv::frpyro#:&a#:u::the=tToe:t :ede pw=¥::[tf:isr ia:hco:ieu::
endeavour of the Management of the Company to create and provide an environment to all its employees

that is free from discrimination and harassment including semal harassment. The Company has adopted a

policy  on  prevention,  prohibition  and  redressal  of  sexual  harassment  at  workplace  in  line  with  the

provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace ¢revention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 and the Rules made thereunder. The Company has arranged interactive awareness workshops in this

regard for the employees at the manufacturing sites & corporate office during the year under review.

During the year no complaints were received by lnternal  Complaints Committee  of the  Company.  The

Company has  complied with  provisions relating to  the  constitution  of Internal  Complaints Committee

under the Sexual Harassment of women at Wockplacc ¢revention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

a
This policy is available on the website of the Company at following link:

httos:/tw.triochemoroducts.comfuDloadsHnvestor-relations/bdfo/oreventionof-sexual-harasment-at-
workoalce-oolicv-78.Ddf

HUMAN RESOURCES:

Human resources policy is aimed at having a universal and scientific method to hire the best talent in the

industry with optimum skills and aptitude requhed for the job. The company has always recognized talent

and has judiciously followed the principle of rewarding performance. This requires the management and

the employees to fully understand and respect each other. On an ongoing basis the management identifies

and implements necessary measures to maintain a positive climate and improve perfomance levels. The

management has always carried out systematic appraisal of performance and imparted training at periodic
intervals. The Company continued the welfare activities for the employees, which include Medical Care,

Group Insurance and Canteen Facility. To enrich the skills of employees and enrich their experience, the

Company arranges, Practical Training Courses by Internal and External Faculty.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the dedication and commitment displayed
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT:

The Listing Regulations mandate the inclusion of the BRR as part of the Annual Report for the top 1,000

listed entities based on market capitalization, the same is not applicable to our Company for the year ended

March 31, 2022,

INSURANCE:

All the fixed assets, finished goods, semi-finished goods, raw material, packing material and goods of the

company lying at different locations have been adequately insured against fire and allied risks.

OTHER GENERAL DISCLOSURES:

1)   Secretarial Standards:  The Institute of Company Secretaries of India,  a Statutory Body, has issued
Secretarial Standards on various aspects of corporate law and practices. The Company has complied

with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

a             2)   Significant and Material order passed by the Regulators/CourtsAribunals: During the year there
are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which inpact the

going concern status and Company's operations in future.

3)   Reporting of Frauds by Auditors: During the year under review, neither the Statutory Auditors nor
the Secretarial Auditor have reported to the Board or Audit Committee, as required under Section 134

(3)  (ca)  and  143(12)  of the  Companies Act,  2013,  any  instances  of frauds  committed  against  the
Company by its officers or employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned in this Report.

4)   histing at stock Exchange: The equity shares of the Company continue to listed and traded in BSE
Limited. The Annual Listing fees for the year financial year 2021-22 and 2022-23 has been paid to the

stock exchanges. There was no suspension on shares of the Company during the year.

5)    Dematerialization: Your Company has tied up with National Securities Depository Ltd.  QVSDL) and
Central Depository Services ¢ndia) Ltd. (CDSL) to enable the shareholders to trade and hold share in

an electronic/dematerialized form. The shareholders are advised to take benefits of dematerialization.

6)   Awards: Your Company has not received any Award during the financial 2021-22.

7)   Financial Statements: As per Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India qisting
Obligations  and  Disclosure  Requirements)  Regulations,  2015   thereinafter  referred  to  as  "Listing

Regulations")  and  applicable  provisions  of the  Companies  Act,  2013  read  with  the  Rules  issued

thereunder, the Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 have been prepared

in compliance with applical]le Accounting Standards and approved by the Board of Directors,

8)   The Financial statements of the Company were not revised.

9)   Impaiment of Assets & Capital Work-in-Progress: In compliance with Accounting Standard AS-28
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relating to "Impairment of Assets", the company has reviewed the canying amount of its fixed assets as

attheendoftheyear.Basedonthestrategicplansandsuchvaluationoftheflxedassetsofthecompany,

on impairment of assets is envisaged at the balance sheet date.

10) Credit Rating: Credit Rating is not obtained sane is not require for obtaining credit facilities for bank.

11) Key Initiatives with respect to Stakeholder Relationship, Customer Relationship, Environment,
Sustainabifty,  Health and  Safety:  The Company to the  maximum extent possible under various

programmers initiated by the Company, e.g.  (a) The Company assists its vendors with prevention of
wastage and efficient utilization of resources.  a) All the Equipment and Machinery purchased in new

manufacturing plant are clean technology, energy efficient, etc. , with numerous stakeholders working

across the Company's different locations and operations, it is difficult to estinate the percentage.

12) The  Company  has  not  issued  any  warrants,  debentures,  bonds,  or  any  non{onvertible
securities.

13) The Company has not brought back its shares, pursuant to the provision of Section 68 of Act and the

Rules made thereunder.

14) The Company has not failed to implement any corporate action.

EI\IVIRONMENIAL, SAFETY AND HEALTH :

The Company is committed to ensure a sound Safety, Health and Environment (SHE) performance related

to  its  activities,  products,  and  services.  Your  Company had  been  continuously taking various  steps  to

develop and adopt Safer Process technologies and unit operations.  The Company has been investing in

areas such as Process Automation for increased safety and reduction of human error element, Enhanced

level  of training  on  Process  and  Behavior  based  safety,  adoption  of  safe  &  environmentally  friendly

production process,  Installation  of reactors,  Multiple  effect evaporator,  etc.  to reduce  the  discharge  of
effluents, commissioning of waste Heat recovery systems, and so on to ensure the Reduction, Recovery and

Reuse  of effluents  & other utilities.  Monitoring and periodic review of the  designed  SHE  Management

System are done on a continuous basis.

BANK AND CREDIT FACILITIES:

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the support from Company's bankers namely

State Bank of India. The Company's finance position continues to be robust. During the year under review,

the cash generation from operation reflect a substantial increase. This has been the Company's philosophy

throughout and can be vouched over the years. The Company is zero debt company. The borrowings are

taken for short term requirements.

INDUSTREL REIATIONS:

Industrial relations have been cordial at the manufacturing units and corporate office of the Company.`\+
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ACENOWIEDGEMENTS:

The Directors of the Company wish to acknowledge with gratitude and place on record their appreciation

to all stakeholders -shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers, business associates, Compadys bankers,

regulatory, business associates and governmental authorities for their cooperation, assistance and support,

Further they also wish to thank their employees for their dedicated services.

The Directors also wish to express their gratitude to investors for the falth that they continue to repose in

the Company.

By order of the Board of Directors

For Triochem Products Limited

faefrD?cor i~=Ranu S. Dcora

D irector                               Director

DIN: 00312080                     DIN: 00312369

Place: Mumbai

Dated:  28th May 2022

Regivtend office:
4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai: 400 001

Email : investor@triochemoroducts.com Website : www.triochemDroducts.com

a

No.: 9122  22663150; Fax No.:  9122  22024657
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1.   About the company
Triochem  Products  Limited  ¢ereinafter  referred  to  as  `the  Company'  or  `TPL")  is  a  Company an

existing  public  limited  company  incorporated  on  17/01/1972  under  the  provisions  of the  Indian

Companies Act,  1956 and deemed to exist within the purview of the Companies Act, 2013, having its

registered office at 4th Floor, Sambava Chamber, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai -400 001. It has been

engaged primarily in the  business of manufacturer and exporter of pharmaceuticals products, Apls

and chemicals. The equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited ("BSE").

2.    Objectives of the policy
2.1.  Securities and Exchange Board of India ¢ereinafter referred to as `SEBI') has, by its Notification

dated July  8,  2016,  inserted  Regulation  43A  in  the  SEBI  qisting  Obligations  and  Disclosure

Requirements)  Regulations,  2015,  including  any  statutory  modification(s)  or  re€nactment(s)

thereof for the time being in force. ¢ereinafter referred to as `the Listing Regulation')

2.2.  Regulation  43A  of  the  Listing  Regulations  requires  the  Company  to  formulate  a  Dividend

Distribution  Policy which  shall  be  disclosed  in  the Annual  Report  and  on  the website  of the

Company.

2.3.  In view of the  above,  the  Company has  framed  this Dividend Distribution Policy  thereinafter

referred to as `the Policy') to determine the parameters on the basis of which the Company may

or may not declare dividend.

2.4.  The Policy seeks to balance the objectives of rewarding the shareholders through dividends and

retalning capital to invest in the growth of the Company, while ensuring fairness, sustainability,

and consistency in distributing profit to the shareholders.

3.    Payment Frequency
The dividend shall, subject to the parameters hereinafter described, be payable annually and shall be

declared at the Annual General Meeting of the Company, based on the recommendation of the Board

of Directors of the Company ¢ereinafter referred to as `the Board'). The Board may declare interim

dividend during any financial year out of the surplus in the profit and loss account and out of profits

of  the  financial  year  in  which  the  interim  dividend  is  sought  to  be  declared.  The  Board  may

recommend special dividend in years of exceptional

4.    Declaration of Dividend
It  is  the  intention  of the  Board  of Directors,  subject  to  applicable  laws,  to  pay dividend  on  the

Company's outstanding Equity Shares.  The  Company does not have  any class of shares  other than

Equity Shares.

Parameters for Distribution of Dividend

EE
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5.1.  Your Company has a track record of steady dividend declaration and payment over its history.
The Board considers the yearly dividend based on the Net Profit After Tax (`PAT') available for

distribution. In addition, the Board reviews the capital expenditure needs, cash requirements for

investments in capability enhancements and future non organic growth initiatives.

5.2.  As in the past, subject to the provisions of the applicable law, the Company's dividend payout
will be determined based on awhlable flnancial resources,  investment requirements and taking

into account optimal shareholder return.  Based on the al]ove,  the Company will endeavour to

maintain the steady level of dividend per share over the medium term.

5.3.  Circumstances under which the shareholders of the Company may or may not expect
dividend:

The  Shareholders  may ordinarily expect dividend  if the  Company has  made  profits during the

current year. Recommending dividend out of profits of previous financial years or out of retained

earnings shall be at the discretion of the Board,  subject to the compliance with the Companies

@eclaration and Payment of Dividend)  Rules,  2014,  as amended from time to time. The Board
may not recommend a dividend if:

5.3.1.     Proposed expansion plans require higher allocation of capital; or

5.3.2.    Significantly higher working capital requirements adversely inpact free cash flow; or

5.3.3.    The  Company undertakes  any acquisitions  or  investments  including in joint ventures,
new product launches, etc., requiring significant capital outflow; or

5.3.4.    In case of proposal for buyback of shares; or

5.3.5.    In the event of inadequacy of profits.

5.3.6.    If the Board proposes not to distribute profit, the grounds thereof and information on
utilisation  of undistributed  profit,  if any,  shall  be  disclosed  to  the  shareholders  in  the

Annual Report of the Company.

5.4.  Financial Parameters for declaring dividend:
The Board shall consider the following financial parameters while declaring dividend:

5.4.1.     the company's Financial Results of operations and earnings.

5.4.2.    working  capital  requirements  for  the  operations  and  growth  of the  Company  and  its
subsidiaries.

5.4.3.     quantum of profits and liquidity position;

5.4.4.    future fund requirements,  including for brand building,  business acquisitions,  business
expansion, modemisation of existing business;

5.4.5.     level of debt;

5.4.6.    providing for unforeseen events and contingencies;

5.4.7.    any other financial factor as the Board may deem fit.

5.5.  Internal and External Factors for declaring dividend:
The Board may consider the following internal and external factors while declaring dividend:

5.5.1.    Internal Factors:

5.5.1.1.         the level of dividends paid historically;

46



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED __ ___ __ _;+__::                  _  -

CHEM

5.5.1.2.         contractual restrictions and financing agreement covenants;

5.5.1.3.         likelihood of crystallisation of contingent liabilities, if any.

5.5.2.    External Factors:

5.5.2.1.         general business conditions, risk and uncertainties;

5.5.2.2.         industry outlook and business cycles for underlying businesses;

5.5.2.3.         prevailing economic, competitive and regulatory environment;

5.5.2.4.         taxlaw and the company's taxpayer status;

5.5.2.5.          capitalmarket.

This is not intended to be an all-inclusive list,  but rather a representative list of factors which

may be considered while declaring dividend,

5.6.  Manner in which the retained earnings shall be utilised:
Retained  earnings  are  the  sum  of the  Company's  profits  after  dividend  payments,  since  the

Company's inception. The retained earnings of the Company will be utilised in one or more of

the following manner:

5.6.1.    for expansion and growth of business;

5.6.2.    for contributing towards the flxed as well as working capital needs of the Company;

5.6.3.    major repairs and maintenance, including replacement of old assets which have become
obsolete;

5.6.4.    renovation/modemisation  for  improving working  efficiency of plants  and  equipment's
and for capacity enhancements;

5.6.5.    to make the company serf dependent offinance from external sources;

5.6.6.    for redemption of loans and debentures (if any);

5.6.7.    for upgradation of technical knowhow;

5.6.8.    non organic growth initiatives, including acquisition of brandsfousinesses;

5.6.9.    for issuing fully pald-up bonus shares to the shareholders.

5.7.  Dividend Range:

5.8.  As in the past, subject to the provisions of applicable laws, the Company's dividend payout will
be  determined  based  on  availal>ility of financial  resources,  investment  requirements  and  also

take into account optimal shareholder return. The Company would endeavour to target a total

dividend payout ratio in the range of 30% to 50% of the Annual Standalone PAT of the Company.

6.    Review of pchey
This Policy has been adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company and the Board may review

and amend the Policy from time to time, pursuant to any change in law or otherwise.

7.    Disclosures
TPL shall disclose the Dividend Distribution Policy in the Board's Report forming part of the Annual

Report.     This     Policy    shall     also     be     disclosed     on    the    website     of    the     Company    at

www.triochemDroducts.com. Any changes in the Policy,  along with the rationale for the same, shall

allso be disclosed in the Annual Report and on the website of the Company.

L|+
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The  Company is  committed to  continuously reviewing and  updating our policies and  procedures.

Therefore,  this policy is subj.ect to modification. Any amendment(s)  of any provision of this policy

shall be carried out by the persons authorised by the Board in this regard.
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Annexune 0) to Board's Report

EXTRACT 0F ANNUAI, RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 0N MARCH 31, 2022

[Pursunt to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I          REGlsTRATION AND OTHER DEAlrs

icIN

ii Reristration Date

iii Name of the Company

iv Category of the Company
1  Public Company

L24249MH1972PLC015544

17                   01                  1972

Triochem Products Limited

Yes

Sub Category of the Company
9  Company having share capital                           Yes

v Address of the Rctistened Office and Contact Details
1  Company Name

2 Address

3  Town / City
4 State

5  Pin Cede

6  Country Name

7  Country Code

8 Telephone with STD Area Code Number

9 Fax Number
10  Email Address

11  Website, if any

Triochcm Products Limited

4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort

Mumbai

Mtwhetharashtra

40000 1

India

IND

(022)  22663150

(022) 22024657
urnn'.in\-estof(rt,lrlochcm|)roducts.com

T``\w'. triochi`mDroducts com

12  Name of the police station having jurisdiction where the ReSstered office is situated                          M. R. A. Margc, Police station

vi Whether shares nsted on recognized Stock Exchanges(s)
Details of the Stock Exchanges where shares are listed:

Sl. No.        StockExchanges(s)

1             BSE Limited Q}ombay stock Exchange Limited)

vii Name and Address of ReSstrar & Transfer Agent (RTA)

1RTA

2 Address

3  Town / City
4  State

5  Pin Code

6  Country Name

7  Country Code
8 Telephone with STD Area Code Number

9  Fax Number
10  Email Address

11  Website, if any

Yes

Stock Code(s)

512101

Mts. Link Intime India Private Limited

C - 101,  247 Park, L. 8. S. Marg, Vilholi Ovcst), Mumbal : 400083

Mumbal

Malrarashtra

400083

India

IND

(022) 49186270

(022) 49186060
rnt.helodesk@linkintime.co.in

www.Iinkinti.me.co.in

11        pRINclpAL BUslNEss ACTIVITIEs oF TIIE coMPAI\nr

All the business contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

Sl.                                      Name and Description of main products / Services                                        NIC code of the         % to total turnover of
No.                                                                                                                                                                         Product / Services                the company

100%



EXTRACT 0F ANNUAI, RETURN AS 0N THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 0N MARCH 31, 2022

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Ill      pARTlcuIARs oF HOLDING, sunslDIART ANI] AssocIATE coMPANIEs

Nil - Not applicchle

IV      SIIAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity share capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

A Category-wise Shaeholding

CategoryofShareholders

®

®

A     Promoters shaneholding
1    Indian

a Individual / Hindu
Undivided Family

b  Central Government

c State Goverrment
d Bodies Corporate

e  Bank / FI

f Any Other (Specify)

sub Total (A)(1)

2   Foreign
a  NRI Individuals

b  Other Individuals

c Bodies Corporate

d  Bank / FI

e Any other (Specify)

sub Total (A)(2)

Total shareholding of
Promoters and Promoter
Group (A)=(A)(1) +(A)(2)

8     Public sharcholding

1   lustitutious
a Mutual Funds / UTI

b Bank / FI

c  Central Government

d State Goverrment

e Venture Capital Funds

f Insurance Companies

g  FIIs
h  Foreign Venture Capital

Investors

i Provident Fundspeusion
Funds

j Any other (specify)
sub Total (Bxi)

No. of shares hold at the begivning of the       No. of shares hold at the end of the year (As

year (As on o1.04.2021)                                                          on 31.03.2022)

%of

Change

Demat       Physical         Total        %oftotal         Demat       physical         Total        %oftotal      duringthe
year

1,68,190                   0       1,68,190          68.649         1,68,190

0                 0                      0             0.00                        0

0                 0                     0             0.00                        0

0                 0                      0             0.00                        0

0                 0                     0             0.00                        0

0                 0                     0             0.00                        0

0      1,68,190          68.649

0                     0              0.00

0                      0              0.00

0                      0              0.00

0                     0              0.00

0                     0             0.00

1,68,190                   0      1,68,190          68.649         1,68,190                   0      1,68,190           68.649

0                  0                      0             0.00

0                 0                     0             0.00

0                 0                     0             0.00

0                 0                     0             0.00

0                 0                     0             0.00

0                 0                     0             0.00

1,68,190                   0      1,68,190          68.649

0              0.00

0             0.00

0              0.00

Sc)

0

0

0

0

0

0                     0              0.00

0                     0              0.00

0                     0              0.00

0                     0              0.00

0                     0              0.00

0                 0                     0             0.00

1,68,190 0      1,68,190          68.649

0               0.cO

0               0.cO

0              0.00



EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 0N MARCH 31, 2022

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares hold at the begivning of the

year (As on 01.04.2021)

Demat       Physical         Total        %oftotal
shares

No. of Shares hold at the end of the year (As
on 31.03.2022)

Demat       Physical         Total         %oftotal
shares

%of

Change
during the

year

a

a

2   Non-Institutions

a Bodies Corporate

i Indian

ii  Overseas

b Individual

i  Individual Shareholders
holding nomjnd share
capital up to 1 lakh

ii Individual Shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of 1 lalch

c Any other (specify)

i Non-resident India

ii  Overseas Corporate Bodies

iii  Foreign Nationals

iv NBFCs Retlstered with RBI

v Tust
vi Foreign Bodies

sub Total (8)(2)

Total pubhc sharcholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(BX2)

C      Share held by custodians
for GDRs & ADRs

GRAND TOTAI, (A+ B + C)

8 Shareholding of Promoters

Sl.   Sharcholder's Name

No.

1  Mr. Rajesh R. Deora

2  Mrs. Grace R. Deora

3  Mr. Ranu S. Deora

4  Mr. Rajiv R. Deora

5  Ramu M Deora HUF

Total

36,000             250           36,250          14.796

0                 0                     0             0.00

13,710       14,850            28,560           11.657

12,000                   0          12,000            4.898

00

00

00

00

00

00

0              0.cO

0              0.00

0             0.00

0             0.00

0             0.00

0             0.00

61,710        15,100            76,810           31.351

61,710        15,100            76,810          31.351

0.00           0.00                0.00             0.00

2,29,900       15,100       2,45,000        100.000

Shareholding at the beSnning of the year

(As on o1.04.2021)

No. of          %of       % ofsharespledged/

36,000             250           36,250           14.796

0                 0                      0              0.00

13,710       14,850            28,560           11.657

12,000                   0          12,coo             4.898

00

00

00

00

00

00

0              0.00

0              0.00

0               0.cO

0              0.00

0              0.00

0              0.00

61,710       15,100            76,810           31.351

61,710       15,100            76,810           31.351

0.00           0.00 0.00               0.cO

2,29,900       15,100       2,45,000        100.000

Sharcholding at the cnd of the year (As on

31.03.2022)

No. of          %of       %ofsharespledged/
Shares          total        encumbered to total          Shares          total        encumbered to total

shares                  shares*

36,000       14.694

36,000       14.694

34,500       14.082

34,270       13.988

27,420        11.191

shares                   shares*

0            36,000       14.694

0            36,000       14.694

0            34,500       14.082

0            34,270       13.988

0              27,420        11.191

0

0

0

0

0

1,68,190      68.649                                             0         1,68,190      68.649                                              0

0.00

%of

Change in
shareholdin

g during
the year

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Notes:

1  The term "encumbrance" has the sane meaning as assigned to it in Regulation 28(3) of the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations,  2011
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCRA YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2022

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

C  Change in Promotcrs' Sharcholding

Sl.   Shareholder's Name

No.

Shareholding at the begivhing of the year

No. of shares            % of total shares of
the company

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

(01.04.2021 to 31.03.2022)

No. of shares         % of total shares of the
C0mpany

Reason

a

a

1  Mr. Rajesh R. Deora

At the betlnning of the year
At the end of the year

2  Mrs. Grace R. Deora

At the begivning of the year

At the end of the year

3  Mr. Rajiv R. Deora

At the betlnning of the year

At the end of the year

4  M. Ranu S. Deora

At the begivning of the year

At the end of the year

5  Ramu M Deora HUF

At the begivning of the year

At the end of the year

36,000

36,000

36,000

36,000

34,270

34,270

34,500

34,500

27,420

27,420

14.694

14.694

14.694

14.694

13.988

13.988

14.082

14.082

11.192

11.192

36,000

36,000

36,000

36,000

34,270

34,270

34,5cO

34,5cO

27,420

27,420

Movement

14.694    duringthe

14.694    year-Nfl

Movement

14.694    during the

14.694    year-Nil

Movement

13.988    during the

13.988    year-Nil

Movement

14.o82    duringthe

14.082    year-Nil

Movement

11.192    during the

11.192    year-Nil

Notes:

1  Date of increase / decrease has been considered as  the  date  on which beneficiary position was  provided by the Depositories  to the
Company.

D Sharcholding pattcm of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl.   Shareholder's Name                                               Sharcholding Cumulative Shareholding during the year
No.

1  G Amprhay
Pharmaceuticals Pvt I,td

2  Triochem lchoratories Pvi
Ltd

3 Ambernath Plasto
Packagivg Pvt Ltd

4 Ranesh Rajaran Patil

5  Rajkumar Shriniwas Bajoria

6 Vinda S. Sharma

7 Savitri Nareshchandra /aln

8 Snchpral]ha Agarwal

9  N L Rungta HUF

10 Verma Shyan Sunder

No. of shares            % of total shares of
the company

12,000

12,000

12,000

12,000

7,200

2,500

2,500

2,500

2,000

1,800

No. of shares         % of total shares of the
Company

12,000

12,000

12,000

12,000

7,200

2,500

2,500

2,500

2,000

1,8cO

Notes:

1  The  shares  of the  Company are  not  traded  in  daily basis  and  hence  date  wise  increase  / decrease  in  shareholding is  not  indicted.
Shareholding is consolidated based on PAN of the Shareholder.
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS 0N THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2022

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

E Shaeholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnct:

Sl.   Shareholder's Name

No.

Shareholding at the begrrming of the year

No. of shares            % of total shares of
the company

Cumulative shareholding during the year           Reason

(01.04.2021 to 31.03.2022)

No. of shares         % of total shares of the
company

a

a

Directors

1  MI.. Raniu S. Deora *

At the begivning of the year

At the end of the year

2  Mrs. Grace R. Deora

At the betlnning of the year
At the end of the year

3  Mr. Rajesh R. Deora

At the begivning of the year

At the end of the year

4 Mr. Shyam S. Shama

At the betlnning of the year

At the end of the year

5  Mr. Sunil S. Jhunjhunwha

At the begivhing of the year

At the end of the year

6 Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalia

At the begivning of the year

At the end of the year

Key Managerial Persomcl

1  Mr. Ramu S. Deora *

At the begivning of the year

At the end of the year

34,500

34,500

36,000

36,000

36,000

36,000

34,500

34,500

14.082

14.082

14.694

14.694

14.694

14.694

14.082

14.082

2  Mr. Puran/. Parmar

At the bcgivning of the year

At the cnd of the year

3  Ms. Ureca Shirish Shirole
w.e.f.14.11.2019

At the end of the year

Notes:

1  * Mr. Ramu S. Deora7 Director has been included in the list of Directors as well as KMP.
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34,5cO

34,500

36,000

36,000

36,000

36,000

34,500

34,500

Movement

14.o82     duringthc

14.082     year-Nil

Movement

14.694     duringthe

14.694     year-Nil

Movement

14.6g4     duringthe

14.6g4     year-Nil

Movement
.         duringthe
-          year-Nil

Movement
.         duringthe

-          year-Nil

Movement
.         during the

.          year-Nil

Movement

14.082     duringthe

14.082     year-Nil

Movement
.         during the
-          year -Nfl

Movement
.         during the

-          year -Nil



EXTRACT 0F ANNUAL RETURN AS 0N THE FINANCIAL. YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2022

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

V         INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment:                                                      Amount in Its.

Secured Loans              Unsecurcd Loans                   Deposits                    Total Indebtness

¢xcluding deposits)

Indebtedness at the bqgivning of the financial year (As on 01.04.2021)
i        PrincipalAmount

ii      lnterestdue butnotpald

iii     Interest accrued but not due

Total(i+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
i       Addition

ii      Reduction (repayment)

Ner Change

a

®

3,901                          1,00,00,000                                                                        1,00,03,901

3,894                         1,00,00,000                                                                      1,00,03,894

77

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year (As on 31.03.2022)

i        PrincipalAmount

ii      lnterestduc butnotpaid

iii     Interest accrued but not due

Total(i+ii+iii) 77

VI       REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND REY MAI\IAGERIAI, PERSONNEI,

Sl.                Particulars of Rcmuneration               (A) Managivg Directors , Whole-
No.                                                                              tine Directors and / or Manager

Amount in Rs.

(B) Other Directors          (C) Key Managerial personnel
CEO                  CS                   CFO

1       Gross salary (excluding commission)

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income.tax Act,
1961

a) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
Income-tax Act,1961

(c) Profit in lieu of salary u/s 17(2) of the
Income-tax Act,1961

2      Stockoptious

3       SweatEquity

4       Commission
• as % of profit

- others,  specify ....

5       Others -Employer contribution to

provident and other funds

Total (A)

Ccfling as per the Companies Act, 2013

VII     PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPotJNDING OF OFFENCES (under the companies Act, 2013)

No penalties / punishment / compounding of offences were under Companies Act, 2013.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

May' 2022

ffaR¥oraivD
Director
DIN: 00312080

S+

cog-

2,40,000

2,40,000

C
Ranu S. Deora
Director

DIN: 00312369
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FORM No. rm-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ct MARCH 2022

I:Pursuant to Section 204(1) Of the Companies Act, 2013 a[nd Rule No.9 Of the Companies
(Appondinent and Remuneratiorn Of MLmagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014|

TO,

The Members,
TRIoCHEn¢ pRODuCTS LIMITED
4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P.M. Road
Fort Munbai-400 001.

We have conducted the seeretarial audit of the compliance of apphicable statutory
provisions  and  the adherence  to  good corporate practices by  Triochemproducts
Limited(CIN:L24249MH1972PLC015544)     quereinafter     called     the     Company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a inarmer that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company
has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year lsd April, 2021 to 31st March,
2022  compried  with  the  statutory  provisions  Hsted  hereunder  and  also  that  the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the malmer and sutyect to the reporting made hereinafter:

L¢,``
t'0.,     ;-.`.')
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Wehaveexaminedthebooks,papers,minutebooks,formsandretumsfiledandother
records maintained by Triochem Products  Limited("the Company") for the audit
period covering the Financial Year lot April, 2021 to 31st March, 2022 according to the
provisions of :

(i)     The companies Act, 2013 (``the Act") and the rules made thereunder;

(fi)    The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (`SCRA') and the rules made
thereunder;

(iii)   The   Depositories   Act,   1996   and   the   Regulations   and   Bye-laws   framed
thereunder;

(iv)   Foreigri Exchange Management Act,1999 and the Rules and Regulation made
there under to the extent of Exchange Commercial Borrowings;

(v)    The fouowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (`SEBI Act'):

a.   The Securities and  Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

b.  The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Fhohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015

c.   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during
the audit period);

d.  The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  hdia  (Share  Based  Employee
Benefits)  Regulations, 2014(Not applicable to the Company during the
audit period);

e.   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (issue and  Listing of Debt
Securities)  Regulations, 2008  (Not appHcable  as the  Company has  not
issued any debt securities during the period under review);

f.   The securities and Exchange Board of India aiegistrars to an Issue and share
Transfer  Agents)  Regulations,  1993  regarding  the  companies  act  and
dealing with client. (Not ap|}licable as the Company is not registered as
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Regisrar to an issue and Share Transfer Agent during the financial year
under review);

9.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debiting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable as the Company has not delisted its
equity shares from any stock exchange during the period under review)

h.  Securities   and   Exchange   Board   of   india   (Buy   Back   of   Securities)
Regulations, 2009(Not applicable as the Company has not bought back
any of its securities during the period under review)

We have retied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for
systems  and  mechanism  formed  by  the  Company  for  compriances  under  other
applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company.

We are of the opinion that the management has complied with the following laws
specifically applicable to the Company:

1. Factroies Act,1948
2. Drugs and Cosmetics Act 1940
3. The Pharrmcy Act 1948
4. Water (Hevention and Control of Pouution)Act, 1981
5. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution)Act, 1974
6. iv4inimum Wages Act, 1948

We have also examined compliance with the appncable dauses of the fouowing:

(a) Secretarial Standards issued by The hstitute of Company Secretaries of India.

a)) The Securities and Exchange Boal'd Of hdia (Listing obligation and "sdsoure
Requirements)Regulatious2015andtheListingAgreementsenteredintobythe
Company with Stock Exchanges.

During the period under review the Company has compHed with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive  Directors,  Non-Executive  Directors  and  hdependent  Directors.   The
changesinthecompositionoftheBoardofDirectorsthattookplaceduringtheperiod
under review were carried out in the compliance with the provision of the Act.
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, and the same
were sent at least seven days in advance, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent at least Seven days before the date of Meeting, and a eystem exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and darificatious on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable Financial laws
like Direct & Indirect tax laws, Service tax has not been reviewed in this audit since
the  same  has been  subject to  review  by  the  statutory  financial audit and  other
designated professionals.

As per the minutes of the Board duly recorded and signed by Chairman, the decisions
of the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

We furfuer report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compfiance with applicable laws, rules, regulation and guidehines.

We further report that during the audit period, there were no apecific events/ actions
having a major bearing on the Company's affair in pursuance of of the above referred
laws, rules, regulations, guiddine etc.

For Ragivichokshi& Co.
(Company Seuretaries)

(  I_`\j:':
Makarand Patwardhan

(Partner)
C.P. No. 9031

Membership  No.11872
UDIN: A011872D000419477

```-i...    ```\`.,   `

Place: Munbai
Date: 2ey05/2022

58



ANNEXURE T0 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To'
The Members,
TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMri.ED
4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P.M. Road
Fort Mumbai-400 001.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.   The maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management
of  the  Company.  Our  respousibihity  is  to  express  an  opinion  on  these
Secretarial records based on our audit.

2.   We have fonowed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to
obtain  reasonable  assurance  about  the  correctness  of  the  contents  of  the
Secretarial records.  The verification was done on test basis to ensure  that
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We bdieve that the processes
and practices, we fonowed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.   We have not verified the coITecthess and appropriateness of financial records
and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.   Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about
the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5.   The compliance of the provision of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of Management. Our examination
was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.   The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Munbai
Date:  2gro5rty22 For Ragini Chokshi & Co.

Company Secretaries

ky.
Makaran d Patwardhan

(Partner)
Membership No: 11872

CP No: 9031
UDIN: A011872D000419477
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Triochem Products Limited

Annual Report 2021 -2022                                                                                               Annexure (D) to Board's Report
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHNAGE EXRNINGS AND 0UTGO

[Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]
A        CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

a Energy conservations measures taken

The  manufacturing  units  of  the  Company  have  continued  their  efforts  to  reduce  the  energy  consumption.  Specific  energy
consumption and absolute unit's consumption are tracked on a real time basis at individual factory / block level and consolidated at
Supply Chain Level. This is being done with the help of Energy Management System at plant.

Some of the key measures taken in all the plants are as below:
1  Work done in improvement in shaft mechanics by installation of energy efficient screw compressor.

2  Conventional light replacement plan was implemented with LED Light in the area of flood light and plant with class fitting.

3  Condensate recovery systems to reuse water for enhancement of boiler efficiency and reduce water consumption.
4  Presence sensors and motion sensors used in cabins

5  Pressure based pumping system used for utilities
6 Arresting air leakage and optimization of air pressure network

7  By controlling process parameters and changivg process pipe line system.

b Utilising alternate sources of energy

1  Solar energy: Nil

2 Wind energy: Nil

c The capital investment on energy conservation equipment

Additional investments and proposals being implementcd for Energy: Rs.2,67,700/-

The  Company  is  engaged  in  the  continuous  review  of  energy  costs,  reduction  in  energy  generation  cost  through  improved
operational  and maintenance  practices.  We have  been  able  to  maintain the  power factor near of unity and  thereby availing the
rebate on electricity charges

d inpact of above measures on consumption of energy
Impact of the above measure for the reduction of energy consumption and consequent impact on the cost of production of the

goods; it is difficult to assess the definite impact of the measure as the total energy cost foms a small constituent of the overall
production costs.

e Power & fuel consumption

Sl.   Particulars

No.

®
1  Electricity

Purchase - Units

Purchase - Amount

Rate / Unit

2021 -2022                       2020 -2021

Amount in Rs.               Amount in Rs.

1,88,670                           3,78,420

23,29,874                          39,40,156

12.35                                          10.41

Own Generation through *
* Not Applicable, Since the Company does not have any Diesel Generator or Steam Turbine/Generator

2  Furnace Oil

Purchase - Litre

Purchase - Amount

Rate / Litre

3  Consumption per unit of products*
Electricity

Bulk Drug, Apls

Furnace Oil

Bulk Drug, Apls

Reason for variation **

Standards

131.56    NotApplicable

9.91    NotApplicable

* Temporarily no manufacturing activity carried our during the current year, due to the on-going impact of Covid-19 pandemic

in India as well as its customers markets. ** It is not feasible to maintain product category-wise energy consumption data, Since
e manufacture a large bulk drugs having different energy requirements.
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Annual Report 2021 -2022                                                                                               Annexure (D) to Board's Report
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOI.OGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHNAGE EXENINGS AND OUTGO

[Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
8        TECHNOI,OGy ABsORp'rloN

a The efforts made by the Company towards technology absorption

The  focus  of Research  &  Technology  function  continues  to  be  in  building  technological  self-reliance  by  promoting  in  house
research,  innovation and creativity to design, develop and upgrade its products pipeline continuously to support achieving short,
medium and long-ten business goals of the Company. The entire products  portfolio is based on in-house technology developed
by internal  scientists  without  support  from  external  partners  in  the  form  of technology,  collaboratioMicensing.  The  nature  of
activities carried out by Research & Technology functional the Company are as follows:

1  Upgradation of existing products with value added features to create product differentiation to retain market share.

2  Continuous value generation through formulation re€ngineering, sourcing efficiency, process optimization, new raw material
search, new manufacturing techniques, vendor collaboration to enhance profltabflity.

3  Support  sustairmbility  initiatives  of  the  company  by  undertaking  joint  projects  with  plant  to  reduce  cycle  time,  energy
consumption, water consumption and waste generation.

4  Development  of laboratory  simulation  techniques  to  support  products  validation  under  different  geographical  climate  and
usage practices.

5 Technical service and support related to customers for product scale up and standardization on customer lines.

6 Development of test methods for Plant QC that help speed up incoming raw material testing and approval.

7 Continues benchmarking of products against national/international competition.

8 Support technical capability building across organization through in-house seminars, technical training, etc.

9  Support in terms of technological due diligence to fulfil company's growth strategy through acquisition.

b The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or inport Substitution

1  Fresh water consumption reduced and ETT load minimized

2  Emission in the air is nealigivle and maintains all emission parameters.

3 Reduce fresh water consumption.

c ln case of imported technology (import during the last three years reckoned from the begivning of the fimncial year)

1  Not Applicable

d 'I'he expenditure incurred on Research and Development

Sl.    Particulars

No.

1  Capital

2  Recurring

3  Total

2021  -2022                       2020 -2021

Amount in Rs.               Amount in Rs.

c        FOREIGN ExcHANGE EARNINGS AND OurGO

Sl.   Particulars

No.

1  Earning : Export

2  0utgo : Import

3  0utgo : Bank Charges

28th May, 2022

2021  -2022                       2020 -2021

Amount in Rs.               Amount in Rs.

5,49,74,556                      5,96,00,435

9,000 83,734

0n behalf of Board of Directors

aoLOTUt-
Grace R. Deora

Director

DIN: 00312080
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Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
•..  Chartered  A€countants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'  REPORT

To the Members of TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Report on tlie Audit of the Financial Statements

Mumbai Address : 203, The Summit, Hanuman Road,

Western Express Highway, Vile Parle (E),  Mumbai - 400 057

T :  022-2615 0100 `  111  / 112 . F  : 022 2615 0113

Pune Address :  123, Sohrab Hall, 21  Sassoon Road,

Opp. Jehangir Hospital,  Pune -411001. T : 020 4906 7177

E  :  info@kdg.co.in . W : www.kdg.co,in

Opinion

We   have  audited  the  Financial  Statements  of  TRIOCHEM   PRODUCTS   LIMITED   ("the
Company), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Statement of
Profit  and  Loss  (including  Other  Comprehensive  Income),  Statement  of Changes  in  Equity
and Statement of Cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements,
including a summary of the  significant aceounting  policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as The    Financial Statements").

In  our opinion  and  to the  best  of our information  and  according to the  explanations  given to
us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view, in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in  India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March  31,  2022,  and  its  net profit including other comprehensive  income,  changes in  equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing  (SAs) specified under
Section  143(10)  of the Act.  Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements Section of our report.
We  are  independent  of the  Company  in  accordance with  the  Code  of  Ethics  issued  by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with ethical requirements that are relevant
to  our  audit  of the      Financial  Statements  under  the  provisions  of the  Act  and  the  Rules
thereunder,  and  we  have fulfilled  our other ethical  responsibilities in accordance  with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key  audit  matters  are  those   matters  that,   in   our  professional  i.udgment,   were   of  most
significance  in  our audit  of the     Financial  Statements of the  current  period.  These  matters
were  addressed  in the  context  of our audit of the   Financial  Statements as a whole,  and  in
forming our opinion thereon,  and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We
have  determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.
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Kanu  Doshi Associates LLP
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Continuation Sheet

Other Information

The  Company's   Management  and  the   Board   of  Directors  are  responsible  for  the  other
information.  The  other  information   comprises  the  information   included   in  the  Company's
annual report, but does not include the  Financial Statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial  Statements does not coverthe other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and,  in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the    Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to  be materially misstated.  If,  based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a  material  misstatement of this other information;  we  are  required to  report that  fact.  We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance forthe   Financial
Statements

The Company's management and the Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated
in  Section  134(5)  of the Act with  respect to the  preparation  of these     Financial  Statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial  position, the financial performance, the changes
in  equity  and  the  cash  flows  of the  Company  in  accordance  with  the  accounting  principles
generally  accepted  in  India,  including  the  Indian  Accounting  Standards  (lnd  AS)  specified
under  Section  133  of the  Act.  This  responsibility  also  includes  maintenance  of  adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application  of  appropriate  accounting  policies;  making  judgments  and  estimates  that  are
reasonable and  prudent; and design, implementation and  maintenance of adequate   internal
financial  controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the  accounting  records,  relevant  to  the  preparation  and  presentation  of the      Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and  are free from  material  misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In  preparing  the      Financial  Statements,  the  Management  and  the  Board  of Directors  are
responsible for assessing the Company's abilfty to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The  Board of Directors is also  responsible for overseeing the  Company's financial  reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain  reasonable assurance about whether the   Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but  is not a guarantee that an  audit conducted  in  accordance with  SAs will  always detect a
material  misstatement when  it  exists.  Misstatements  can  arise from fraud  or error and  are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could  reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these   Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and  maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material  misstatement of the   Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
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obtain  audit evidence that is  sufficient and  appropriate to  provide a  basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a  material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting   from   error,   as   fraud   may   involve   collusion,   forgery,   intentional   omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•  Obtain  an  understanding  of  internal  control  relevant  to  the  audit  in  order to  design  audit

procedures  that   are   appropriate   in   the   circumstances.   Under  section   143(3)(i)   of  the
Companies Act,  2013,  we  are  also  responsible for expressing  our opinion  on whether the
company  has   adequate   internal   financial   controls   system   in   place   and   the   operating
effectiveness of such controls.

•   Evaluate  the  appropriateness  of  accounting  policies  used  and  the  reasonableness  of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•  Conclude  on  the  appropriateness  of  management's  use  of  the  going  concern  basis  of
accounting and, based on the aud.it eviclence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related  to  events or conditions that  may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue  as  a  going  concern.  If  we  conclude  that  a  material  uncertainty  erdsts,  we  are
required  to  draw attention  in  our auditor's  report to the  related  disclosures in the financial
statements  or,  if such  disclosures are  inadequate,  to  modify our opinion.  Our conclusions
are  based  on  the audit evidence obtained  up to the date  of our auditor's  report.  However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•   Evaluate  the   overall   presentation,   structure  and  content  of  the   Financial   Statements,
including  the  disclosures,  and  whether the  financial  statements  represent  the  underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We  communicate  with those  charged  with  governance  regarding,  among  other matters, the
planned  scope and timing  of the audit and  significant audit findings,  including  any significant
deficiencies in  internal control that we  identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance w.ith a statement that we nave complied with
relevant  ethical  requirements  regarding  independence,  and  to  communicate  with  them  all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From  the  matters  communicated  with  those  charged  with  governance,  we  determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the ourrent
period  and  are therefore the  key audit matters.  We describe these  matters  in  our auditors
report  unless  law  or  regulation  precludes  public  disclosure  about  the  matter  or  when,  in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report  because  the  adverse  consequences  of doing  so  would  reasonably  be  expected  to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.       As  required  by the  Companies (Auditors'  Report)  Order,  2020  (.Lthe  Order")  issued  by
the  Central  Government of India in terms of Section  143  (11)  of the Act, we  give  in the
"Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in  paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

to the extent applicable.

2.        As required by section  143(3) of the Act, we reportthat:

a)   We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of  our  knowledge  and  belief were  necessary  for the  purposes  of our audit  of the
aforesaid    Financial statements.
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b)    ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the  aforesaid  Financial  Statements  have  been  kept  by the  Company  so  far as  it
appears from our examination of those books.

c)    The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income),  the  Statement  of Changes in  Equity  and  the  Cash  Flow  Statement  dealt
with  by this  Report  are  in  agreement with  the  books of account  maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the Financial Statements.

d)    ln  our  opinion,  the  aforesaid   Financial  Statements  comply  with  the  Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Account) Rules, 2014.

e)   On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31,  2022  and taken  on  record  by the  Board  of Directors,  none  of the  directors  is
disqualified  as  on  March  31,  2022 from  being  appointed  as  a  director in  terms  of
Section  164(2) of the Act.

f)     With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of  the  Company  and  the  operating  effectiveness  of  such  controls,  refer  to  our
separate Report in "Annexure 8".

g)   Vvith respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor`s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section  197(16) of the Act,  as amended, in our opinion and
to  the  best  of our information  and  according  to  the  explanations  given  to  us,  the
remuneration  paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section  197 of the Act.

h)   With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule  11  of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)  Rules,  2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information  and according to the explanations given to us:

i.     The  Company  has  disclosed  the  impact  of  pending  litigations  on  its  financial

position  in  its     Financial  Statements  (Refer Note.  24(a) to the  lnd As  Financial
Statements).

ii.    The   Company  did   not   have   any  material   foreseeable   losses   on   long-term
contracts including derivatives contracts.

iii.   There were  no  amounts which  were  required  to  be  transferred  to the  lnvestor
Education and Protection Fund by the company during the year ended March 31,
2022.

iv.   a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the

understanding,  whether recorded  in  writing  or otherwise,  that the  Intermediary
shall:
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•      directly or indirectly lend or invest in  other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on  behalf of
the Company or

•     provide any guarantee, securityorthe liketo oron behalfofthe ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b.  The  management  has  represented,  that,  to  the  best  of  its  knowledge  and
belief,  no  funds  have  been  received  by  the  Company  from  any  persons  or
entities,  including  foreign  entities  ("Funding  Parties"),  with  the  understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

•      directly or indirectly,  lend  or invest  in  other persons or entities identified
in  any  manner whatsoever  ("ultimate  Beneficiaries")  by  or on  behalf of
the Funding Party or

•      provide  any  guarantee.  security  or  the  like  from  or  on   behalf  of  the
ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under subclause  (d)  (i)  and  (d)  (ii)  contain any material
mis-statement.

v. The company has not paid any  dividend during the year.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN.  No.104746WAV100096B
Kunal Vakharia
Partner
Membership no.  148916
UDIN: 22148916AJTYDL7801

Place:  Mumbai
Date: 28th May, 2022
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ANNEXuRE A TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1  of `Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in our
Report of even date on the accounts of TRlocHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED for the year ended
March  31, 2022

i.         (a)  (A)  The  company  is  maintaining  proper  records  showing  full  particulars  including
quantitative details and situation of Property,  plant and equipment.

(a)   The   Company   has   maintained   proper   records   showing   full   particulars   of
Intangible assets.

(b)   The  fixed   assets  of  the  company  are   physically  verified   by  the   Management
according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of
three  years,  which,  in  our opinion,  is  reasonable  having  regard  to  the  size  of the
company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the
fixed  assets  has  been  physically verified  by the management during the year and
discrepancies noticed between the book records and the physical inventories were
not material and have been properly dealt with in the accounts.

(c)   According  to  information  and  explanations  given  to  us  and  on  the  basis  of  our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties
(other than  immovable  properties where the  Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements  are  duly  executed  in  favour  of the  lessee)  disclosed  in  the  financial
statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d)   According to the information  and explanations given to  us and  on the basis of our
examination  of  the  records  of the  Company,  the  Company  has  not  revalued  its
Property,  plant  and  equipment  (including  Right-of use  assets)  or Intangible  assets
or both during the year.

(e)   According  to  information  and  explanations  given  to  us  and  on  the  basis  of  our
examination  of the  records of the  Company,  there  are  no  proceedings  initiated  or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition
of Benami Property Transactions Act,  1988 and rules made thereunder

ii.         (a)    During the year, the inventories have been physically verified by the management.
In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage
as  followed   by  management  were   appropriate.   No   discrepancies  were  noticed  on
physical verification  of inventories and the  book records that were  10%  or more  in the
aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b)    According  to  information  and  explanations  given  to  us  and  on  the  basis  of  our
examination  of the  records  of the  Company,  there  is  no working  capital  availed  by the
company. Accordingly,  clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

iii.        According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of ourexamination
of the  records of the  Company,  the  Company  has  not  made  any investments,  provided
guarantee  or  security  or  granted   any  advances  in  the   nature  of  loans,   secured   or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained  under Section  189 of the Act.  Hence  sub  clauses (a) to  (f)  of clause
3(iii)  are not applicable to the Company.

lv. According   to   information   and   explanations   given   to   us   and   on   the   basis   of  our
examination  of the  records of the  Company, the  Company has not given  any loans,  or
provided  any guarantee  or security as  specified  under Section  185  of the  Companies
Act, 2013 and the Company has not provided any guarantee or security as specified
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under Section  186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the company has complied with
provisions  of Section  186  of the  Companies Act,  2013  in  respect  of  loans  given  and
investments  made  and  Section  185  of the  Companies  Act,  2013  is  not  applicable  as
there were no such loans, seourities or guarantees provided during the year.

The  Company  has  not  accepted  any  deposits  from  the  public  within  the  meaning  of
Sections 73,  74,  75  and  76  of the Act  and  the  rules framed  there  under to  the  extent
notified and therefore clause 3(v) is not applicable.

The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records for the company
under sub Section (1) of Section  148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for any of the products
of the Company. Therefore, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

vii.         (a)   The   Company   is   regular  in   depositing   with   appropriate   authorities   undisputed
statutory dues including  Provident Fund,  Employees' State Insurance,  Income Tax,
Customs  Duty,  Cess,  Goods &  Service Tax and any other material  statutory dues
applicable to it and there were no arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b)    According to the  records of the  Company, there are  no dues of GST,  Income Tax,
Sales  Tax  and  Excise  Duty  which  have  not  been  deposited  on  account  of  any
dispute except disclosed below

The disputed amount that have not been deposited in respect of Income Tax is as under:

Sr. Name   of  the Nature of the dues Forum  where  the  dues Rs.  In Lakhs

NO. Statute is pending

1. Income       tax Income tax Income  Tax  Appellate 3.21

Act,1961 Tribunal(A.Y.1993-1994)

Total 3.21

viii.        According  to  the  information  and  explanations  given  to  us  and  on  the  basis  of  our
examination  of  the  records  of  the  Company,  the  Company  has  not  surrendered  or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of acoount,  in
tax assessments under the Income tax Act,1961  as income during the year.

ix.         (a)  According  to  the  records  of  the  Company  examined   by  us  and  information  and
explanation  given to  us, the  Company has not defaulted  in  repayment of dues to  banks
during  the  year.  The  company  has  not taken  any  loan  or  borrowing  from  government,
financial institution and has not issued debentures during the year.

(b)  According  to  the  information  and  explanation  given  to  us  and  on  the  basis  of  our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a
wilful  defaulter  by  any  bank  or  financial  institution  or  government  or  government
authority.

(c)  According to  the  information  and  explanations given  to  us  by the  management,  the
Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3 (ix) (c ) of the Order
is not applicable.

(d)  According   to   the   information   and   explanation   given   to   us   and   on   an   overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on
short  term  basis  have  been  utilised  for  long  term  purposes.  Accordingly,  clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.
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(e)   According   to   the   information   and   explanation   given   to   us   and   on   an   overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company
has  not  taken  any  funds  from  any  entity  or  person  on  account  of  or to  meet  the
obligations of its subsidiaries as defined underthe Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(0   According to the information and explanation given to us and procedures performed
by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge
of  securities  held  in  its  subsidiaries  as  defined  under  the  Companies  Act,  2013.
Accordingly,  clause 3(ix)(fy of the Order is not applicable.

(a)  The  Company  has  not  raised  any  money  by  way  of  public  issue/  further  offer
(including  debt  instruments)  and  through  term  loans  during  the  year.  Accordingly,
clause 3 (x)(a) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)  According  to  the  information  and  explanation  given  to  us  and  on  the  basis  of  our
examinations  of  the  records  of  the  Company,  the  Company  has  not  made  any
preferential  allotment  or  private  placement  of  shares  or  fully  or  partly  convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a)  Based  upon the  audit procedures  performed and information and  explanation  given
by the  management,  considering  the  principles  of materiality outlined  in  Standards  on
Auditing, we  report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

(b)  According  to the  information  and  explanations given  to  us,  no  report  under Section
143  (12)  of the Companies Act,  2013 has  been filed  by the auditors  in  Form ADT-4
as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c)  There were no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

xii,         ln ouropinion and according to the information and  explanations given to us, the nature
of the  activities of the company does not attract any special  statue  applicable to  Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

xiii.         According to the information and explanation given to us, and based on our examination
of the  records of the  Company,  transactions with the  related  parties are  in  compliance
with  Sec  177  and  188  of  Companies  Act,  2013 where  applicable  and  details  of such
transactions  have  been  disclosed   in  the   Financial  Statements  as   required   by  the
applicable accounting standards.

xiv.         (a)  Based on  information and  explanations provided to us and our audit procedures,  in
our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b)  We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the
period  under audit.

xv.         In  our opinion and according to the information and  explanations given to us and  based
on  our examination  of the  records of the Company, the  company has not entered  into
any non-cash  transactions with  directors  or persons connected  with  him.  Accordingly,
clause 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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xvi.         (a) The company is not required to be registered under sec 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of  India Act,  1934.  Accordingly,  clause  3  (xvi)(a)  of the  Order is  not  applicable to the
Company.

(b)  The company is not required to  be  registered  under Sec 45-lA of the  Reserve  Bank
of India Act,1934. Accordingly,  clause 3  (xvi)(b)  of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
is  made by the  Reserve  Bank of India. Accordingly,  clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d)  According  to  the  information  and  explanations  provided  to  us  during the  course  of
audit, the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

xvii.       The  Company  has not  incurred  cash  losses in the  current yearand  in the  immediately
preceding financial year.

xviii.        There  has  been  no  resignation  of the  statutory  auditors  during  the  year.  Accordingly,
clause 3 (xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xix.       According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios,  ageing  and  expected  dates  of  realisation  of  financial  assets  and  payment  of
financial    liabilities,    other   information   accompanying   the   financial    statements,    our
knowledge   of  the   Board   of  Directors   and   management   plans   and   based   on   our
examination  of  the  evidence  supporting  the  assumptions,  nothing  has  come  to  our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting  its   liabilities   existing   at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date  of the  audit  report and  we  neither give  any  guarantee  nor any  assurance that all
liabilities falling  due  within  a  period  of  one  year from  the  balance  sheet  date,  will  get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx.        In ouropinion and according tothe information and explanations given to us, section  135
(5)  of the  Companies Act,  2013  is not applicable to the company.  Accordingly,  clauses
3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

Xxl. Based on the information  and explanation given to  us, there  have  been  no qualification
or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order
(CARO)  of the  subsidiary  company.  Accordingly,  clauses  3(xxi)  of the  Order  are  not
applicable,

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

jjzjrat'°nN0104746WAV|ooog6
Kunal Vakharia
Partner
Membership No:  148916
UDIN:  22148916AJTYDL7801

Place:  Mumbai
Date: 28th May, 2022
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ANNEXURE a TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) of `Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section
of our report of even date)

Report on the lntemal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Subsection 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We   have   audited  the  internal  financial   controls  over  financial   reporting   of  TRIOCHEM
PRODUCTS LIMITED (`1he Company") as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of
the Financial Statements of the Company forthe year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The  Company's Board of Directors are  responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal  Financial Controls over Financial  Reporting  issued  by the  Institute
of   Chartered   Accountants   of   India   (`lcAl').   These   responsibilities   include   the   design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensun.ng the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and   errors,  the  accuracy  and  completeness  of  the  accounting  records,   and  the  timely
preparation of reliable financial  information,  as required underthe Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial  reporting   based  on  our  audit.  We  conducted  our  audit  in  accordance  with  the
Guidance   Note   on   Audit   of   Internal   Financial   Controls   over   Financial   Reporting   (the
"Guidance   Note")   and  the   Standards  on  Auditing,   issued   by   lcAl   and   deemed  to   be

prescribed under Section  143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls both issued by the lcAl . Those Standards and the Guidance
Note  require  that  we  comply with  ethical  requirements  and  plan  and  perform  the  audit  to
obtain   reasonable   assurance   about  whether  adequate   internal   financial   controls   over
financial reporting was established and  maintained and  if such  controls operated  effectively
in all  material  respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial  controls system  over financial  reporting  and their operating effectiveness.
Our   audit   of   internal   financial   controls   over  financial   reporting   included   obtaining   an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of  internal  control  based  on  the  assessed  risk.  The  procedures  selected  depend  on  the
auditor's judgment,  including  the  assessment  of the  risks  of  material  misstatement  of the
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of lntemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A  Companys  internal  financial  control  over  financial  reporting  is  a  process  designed  to

provide   reasonable   assurance   regarding   the   reliability   of   financial   reporting   and   the
preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
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accepted   accounting   principles.   A   Companys   internal   financial   control   over   financial
reporting  includes  those  policies  and  procedures  that  (1)  pertain  to  the  maintenance  of
records   that,   in   reasonable   detail,   accurately   and   fairly   reflect  the   transactions   and
dispositions   of   the   assets   of   the   Company;   (2)   provide   reasonable   assurance   that
transactions are  recorded  as  necessary to  permit preparation  of     Financial  Statements  in
accordance    with    generally    accepted    accounting    principles,    and    that    receipts    and
expenditures  of the  Company  are  being  made  only  in  accordance  with  authorizations  of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention   or  timely   detection   of   unauthorized   acquisition,   use,   or   disposition   of  the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the    Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because  of  the  inherent  limitations  of  internal  financial  controls  over  financial  reporting,
including the  possibility of collusion  or improper management  override  of controls,  material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and  not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation  of  the  internal  financial  controls  over  financial  reporting  to  future  periods  are
subject  to  the  risk that  the  internal  financial  control  over financial  reporting  may  become
inadequate  because  of  changes  in  conditions,  or that  the  degree  of  compliance  with  the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln  our opinion, to the best of our information and  according to the explanations given to us,
the  Company  has,  in  all  material  respects,  an  adequate  internal  financial  controls  system
over  financial  reporting  and  such  internal  financial  controls  over  financial  reporting  were
operating  effectively  as  at  31st  March,  2022,  based  on  the  internal  control  over  financial
reporting  criteria  established  by  the  Company  considering  the  essential  components  of
internal  control  stated  in  the  Guidance  Note  on  Audit  of  Internal  Financial  Controls  Over
Financial Reporting issued  by the  lcAl.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FtiLif746WAviooog6

Kunal Vakharia
Partner
Membership no.148916
UDIN: 22148916AJTYDL7801

Place:  Mumbai
Date: 28th May, 2022
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS IIMIThD

(GIN: L24249MH1972PLC015544)
BAIANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

Particulars

ASSETS

( 1 )  Non - Current Assets

( a )  Property, plant and equipment

( b )  Capital work - in - progress

( c )  Investment property

( d )  Financial assets

(i) Other fimncial assets

( e )  Deferred tax Assets

( f )  Other non . current tax assets

( g )  Other non - current assets
Total Non. Curmt Assets

( 2 )  Current Assets

( a )  Inventories

( b )  Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

(iii) Other financial assets

( c )  Other tax assets

( d )  Other current assets
Total Current Assets

TOTAI, ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

( a )  Equity share capital

( b )  Other equity
Total Equity

LIABILlms

(  1  )  Non Curren( Lial]hitics

( a )  Deferred (ax liabilities ave[)
Total Non. Cument Liabilities

( 2 )  Current Liabilities

( a )  Financial tiabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Trade payables

( b )  Other financial hial]ilities

( c )  Other current hiabilities

( d )  Provisions
Total Current Lial]irities

TOTAI. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Summaryofsignificantaccountingpolicies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates LIJ'
Chartcned Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 104746WW100096

ItLrd
Kul Vthaha
Prmcr
Membersliip No.: 148916

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 28th May, 2022

•`i;I,I:'''''"'``l':'il''','''"'1;,Ill:11;:`:I",,,I,,I,I:1''1`''''1''''1':11``,'111

Grace R. Dcora
Director (DIN: 00312080)

I:,:lil;,:il:,''!'''':''''`li;I"`,'',,i"I:''`1!:';11;:;I",,'lj';l1'1,:,'.,1`',,Ill:::11,

Forand on banofBondofDircctors      i

i-ys+-i -;i -,--i-   --ap :---
Pum Parmarchigrer

Director (DIN: 00312369)
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

(GIN: L24249MH1972PLC015544)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Particulars

®

th

1         Revenue from operations

11        Other income

Ill      Totallncome(I+II)

IV      Expenses
Cost of material cousumed

Purchase for stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress
Employee benefit expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Other expenses
Total expenses (IV)

V        Profit before exceptional iteins and tar  (Ill-IV)
VI       Add: Exceptional Items

VII     Profit before tax ry+VI)

VIII    Less: Tax expense

(1) Cunent tax
ofCurrentyear
ofEarlieryears

(2) Deferred tax
of Cuent year

Total tax expense MII)

rx      Profit after tax qul-VIII)

X       Other comprcheusive income
a(i) Items that will  be reclassified [o profit or lass

a(ii) Income tax relating to items that will  be reclassified to profit or loss

b(i) Items that witl  not be redassified to profit or loss

b(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be redassified to profit or loss

Total other comprehensive income for the year

XI      Total comprehensive income for the year (H+xp

Earning per equity share ¢acc value of Rs.10/- each)

(1) Basic (in Its.)

(2) Diluted (in Its.)

Summary of sigrrificant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Kanu Doshi Assodates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 104746W/W100096r=-
rfeLj
Kund vanaria
Partner
Membership No.: 148916

Place: Munbal
Dated: 28th May, 2022

TL'

_iT '-.:-::---:----:=:llln[lllE .::....-=.:.-.-:::`.:....-il[nl[l;....

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
1

#ce.R=±9ts-  rsfaL
Director (DIN: 00312080)`-_-
I:                    I     ,ri

Director (DIN: 00312369)

chigrfficer

Urcca Shiri8h Shirole



TRIOCHDM PRODUCTS LIMITED

(GIN: L24249MH1972PLC015544)
CASH FI.OW STATEMENT FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

[Rs. in hkhs]
2020-2021

ch

A      CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before tax and Extraordinary Items

Adjustment for:

Depreciation/Amortisation

Interest Income

Redassification of remcasureme nt of employee benefits

lnteres( Expenses

Sundry balance wri[tcn back

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets

Investment Expenses

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAI, CHANGES

AD]USTMENTS FOR WORKING CAPITAI, CIIANGES :

I ncreaseroecrease in Assets

Changes in Inventories

I ncreaseoecrease Trade Receivable

I ncreaseoecrease Trade payablcs

lncreaseroecrease in other financial and non-financial ljabhities

lncreasero ecrease in Liabilities

Changes in Provision

Cash Generated from Operations

Direct taxes pald / (refund)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTrvlTIEs

8)     CASH FI,ow FROM INVESTING ACTrvITIEs

I>urchase of Fixed Assets including Capital Work in Progress

Sales of Fixed Assets

Investment Expenses

I nterest Received

NET GASH USED IN INVESTING ACTlvlrv

c)     GASH FLow FROM FINANclNG ACTrvlTIEs

Net @ecrease)/ Increase in Short Term Borrowings

Interest Paid

NET GASH USED IN FINANCING ACTrvlrv

NET CIIANGES IN CASH &' CASH EQUIVALENTS(A + 8 + C)

OPENING BAIANCE oF GASH & GASH EQurvALENTs

cl,OslNG BAIANCE OF CASH & GASH EQurvALENTs

TjJ



TRloclmM pRODucTs LIMITED

(CIN: L24249MH1972PLC015544)
CASH FLOW STATERENT FOR TIRE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Notes

Closinez Balance Of Casli & Cash Equivalents

1       Cash and cash Equivalents Includes:  (ReferNote No ll)

CASH IN -
BALANCE wlnl SCHEDULED  BANKs
• In Current Account

• In Fixed Deposit (including Accrued Interest)

fr`

din

1,180.92

[Rs. in Lckhs]

2020-2021

2       The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" set out in Accounting standard 3 -Cash Flows statement.

3       Previous year figures have been regrouped and reananged wherever considered necessary to make them comparable with those of the current
year.

As per our report of even date attached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates I,I,P
Cliartered Accountants
Firm ReSstration No.: 104746WW100096

J4Lrd
Kunal Vthaha
Partner
Membership No.: 148916

Place: Munbai
Dated: 28th May, 2022

Z¥Ira:oiar=ienLPuran Panar
Director (DIN: 00312080)                  Chief Firmcial officer

i -S. Deofa~'    Ureca shirish shirole
Director (DIN: 00312369)                  Company secretary
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TRlocmM pRODcUTs LIMITED

(GIN: L24249MH1972PLC015544)
STATEMENT OF CIIANGE IN EQuTY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

A. Equity Share Capital
[Rs. in Lins]

Particulars No. of Shares Amount

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 ¢ace Value of Rs.10/. each) 2,45,0002'45,0002'45,000 24.5024.5024.50

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as at 31st March, 2021

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

8. Other Equity

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other itcm§ of Othercomprchcnsive Total
CapitalReserve General Reserves Retained Earnings

Remeasurmcnt ofnetdcfroedbenefitplans

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 0.040.040.04 177.86177.86177.86 1,015.34 (0.10)(1.75)(1.85)1.20(0.65) 1,193.14

Profit for the year (44.70)970.64 (44.70)
Remeaurements of Defined Benefit PlanFairValueeffectoflnvesmcntsofsharesBalanceasat31stMarch,2021 (1.75)1,146.69

Profit for the year 132.281,102.92 132.28

Remcaurcmcnts of Defined Benefit PlanFairValueeffectofInvestmentsofsharesBalanceasat31stMarch,2022 1.201,280.16

As per our report of even date attached.
For Kanu Do§hi Associates LI.P
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 104746WIV100096

EEEIE
in      Kulvalkharia

Partner
Mend]ership No.: 148916

Place: Munbal
Dated: 28th May, 2022

For and on bchalfof Board of Directors    ,`

j7z-ELS~   \dq'{4~
Grace R. Deora                                           Ptmn pamar
Director (DIN: 00312080)                           Chief Finandal officer- [l!   , I
Ranu s. Deora                                            Ureca shiri§h shirole
Director (DIN: 00312369)                           Company secretary
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

I      Companyovervicw

Triochcm Products Linited  (the "Company")  is an existing public limited company incorporated on  17rol/1972 under the provisions of the
Indian Companies Act,  1956 and deemed  to exist within the purview of the  Companies Act,  2013,  having its rcdstcred office at 4th Floor,
Sambava Chamber,  Sir P.  M.  Road,  Fort,  Mumbai  -  400  001.  It has been engaged  primarily in  the business  of manufacturer and exporter of

phamaceuticals products, Apls and chcmjcals. The equity shares of the Company arc usted on BSE Limited  ("BSE"). The financial statements
are presented in Indian Rupcc (3.

2      Significant accounting poficies
This note provides a hot of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These polities have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

A     Basis of preparation offinancial statement

The  financial  statements  Complies  in  all  material  aspects with  Indian Accounting Standards  and AS)  notified   under the  Companies

¢ndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under Section  133 of the Companies Act, 2013  (the "Act") and other
relevant provisions of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted ln India.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 28th May, 2022.

These  financial  statements  arc  presented  in  Indian  Rupees  ¢NR),  which  is  also  the  functional  currency.  All  the  amounts  have  been
rounded off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

8     Use of estinates and judgements

The  preparation  of financial  statements  requires  manngcment  to  make  judgments,  estimates  and  assumptions  in  the  application  of
accounting  policies  that  affect  the  reported  amounts  of assets,  liabilities,  income  and  expenses.  Actual  results  may differ  from  these
estimates.  Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other factors,  including
expectations of future events that arc believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates arc recognised prospcctively.

C     Curr`ent and non<urrent classification

All assets and lial>flities have been classified as current or non{unent as per the Company's operating eycle and other criteria set out in
the  Schedule  Ill  to  the  Companies Act  2013.  Based  on  the  nature  of products  and  the  time  betwccn  the  acquisition  of assets  for

processing and  their  realisation  in  cash  and  cash  equivalents,  the  Company  has  ascertained  its  operating  cycle  as  12  months  for  the
purpose of current - non.curren( classification of assets and Liabhities.

D     Foreign ctLrrmcy translation

i  Functional and presentation currcmcy
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which  the  Company  operates  (`the  functional  currency`).  The  financial  statements  are  presented  in  Indian  rupee  QNR),  which  is
Company's functional and presentation currency.

ii Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and Losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the tfanslation of monetary assets and
lial]flities denominated in  foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally rccognised in profit or loss.   All the foreign
exchange gains and tosses are presented in the statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other expenses or other income as

applicable.

E     Property, plant and equipment

i Frechold land is carried at historical cost including cxpcnditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the land.

ii All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost indudes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

iii Subsequent  costs  arc  included  in  the  asset`s  canying amount  or rccogniscd  as a separate  asset,  as  appropriate,  only when  it is

probable that future economic benefits associated with the i[cm will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured
relial3ly. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit of loss during the reporting period in which they are incured.

iv  Cost of Capital Work in Progress (`CWIP') comprises amount paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding
as of each balance sheet date and construction expenditures, other expenditures necessary for the purpose of preparing the CWIP for
it intended use and borrowing cost incurred before the qualifying asset is ready for intended use. CWIP is not depreciated until such
time as the relevant asset is completed and ready for its intended use.

T8



TRI0CHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for tlie year ended March 31, 2022

v Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

(a) Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

a)  Depreciation  is  provided  on  a witten  down  value  method  at  the  rates  and  manner as  prescribed  under Schedule  11  to  the
Companies Act, 2013. The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in the Statement of Profit and I,oss, unless it is included
in the canying amount of any other asset. The useful life, residual value and the depreciation method are reviewed atleast at each
financial year end.  If the  expectations differ from  previous  estimates,  the  changes are accounted  for prospectivcly as a change in
accounting estimate.

vi Tangible assets which are not ready for their intended use on reporting date arc carried as capital work-in-progress.

vii The residual values are not more than 5% of the origival cost of the asset.
An assct`s carrying amount is whtten down immediately to its recoveral>lc amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable alnount.

Estimated  useful  lives,  residual  values  and  depreciation  methods  are  reviewed  annually,   taldng  into  account  colnmercial  and
technologival obsolescence as wen as nomal wear and tear and adjusted pro§pcctively, if appropriate.

Galas and tosses on disposals arc  determined  by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.  Thcsc  are included  in profit or loss
within other expenses or other income as applicable.

F     Investment property

I'roperty that is held for long.term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, is classified
as  Investment property.  Investment property is  measured initially at its cost,  including rclatcd  transaction casts and where applicable
borrowing costs.  Subsequent expenditure  is  capitaliscd  to the  assct's  carrying amount only when  it is  probable  that futiire  econotnic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
malntenancc costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced,  the carr)ing amount of the replaced

part  is  derecognised.  Investment  properties  (except freehold  land)  are  depreciated  using  the Written down  value  method  over  their
estlma(cd useful lives at the rates prescribed under Schcdulc 11 of the Companies Act, 2013.

G     Intangivle assets

i An  intangivle  asset  shall  be  recognised  if,  and  only  if:   (a)  it  is  probable  that  the  expected  furure  economic  benefits  that  are

attributablc to the asset whl flow to the Company and a) the cost of the asset can be measured rehiably.

ii  Computer softmare  is capitaliscd where  it is  expected  to  provide  future  enduring economic benefits.  Capitalisation  costs indude
Licence fees and  costs of implcmentation / system integration services.  The  costs are  capitalised  in the year in which the relevant
software is implemented for use. The sane is amortised over a period of 3 years on straicht-line method.

H     Borrowingcost

i Borrowings  are  initially  recogniscd  at  fir  value,  net  of transaction  costs  incunTed.  Borrowings  are  subsequently  measured  at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or
loss  over  the  period  of the  borrowings  using the  effective  interest method.  Fees  paid on  the cstabhehment of loan  facilities  are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to (he extent that it is probable that some or all of the fachity will be drawn down. In this
case,  the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there js no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for hiquidity services and amortiscd over the period of the facility to
whch it relates.

ii Borrowings are classified as current financial hial]ilfties unless the group has an unconditional righ( to defer settlement of the liabhity
for a[ least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on
or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the ljabflity becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the
entity does not dassfty the liabihity as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial
statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

I      Income tax, deferred tax and dividend distribution tax

The Income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on the current year's taxable income based on the applicable income tax
rate adjusted by changes in defened tax assets and liabilities attributal>le to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Cunent and deferred tax is recognised in the profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in equity or other compreheusivc income respectively.

i Curreiit income tax

Current tax charge is based on tanble profit for the year. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted,  at the reporting date where the  Company operates and

periodically  evaluates  positions  taken  in  tax  returns  with  respect  to  situations  in  which
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expecte
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TRloclmM pRODUcTs LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are ofket when there is a legally enforceal)le rigiv to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asse( and settle the liabitity §imultancously.

ii Defened tax

Deferred tax is provided using the ljabiljty method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and lial]flities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements at the reporting date.  Deferred tax assets are rccogniscd to the cxtcnt that it is

probable  that  future  taxal)lc  income  will  be  available  against  whch  the  deductible  temponry  differences,  unused  tax  losses,
depreciation cany-forwards and unused tax credits could be uthised.

Deferred income  tax is  not accounted  for if it arises from  initial recognition  of an asset or liar)ility in a  transaction other than  a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the  tax rates that arc expected to apply in the period when the asset is
realjscd or the ljal]ifity is settled, l]ascd on (ax rates and tax laus that have bccn enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date.

The  carrying amount of deferred  tax assets  is rcviewcd at each reporting date and adjusted  to reflect changes in probabhity that
sufficient taxable profits will be availal]le to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred  income tax assets  and ljabflities are off-set against each  other and the resultan( net amount is presented  in  the Balance
Sheet, if and only when, (a) the Company has a legally enforceal)le richt to set-off the current income tax assets and uabilities, and ®
the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income tax levied by the sane taxation authority.

Minimum Altcmate Tax credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company
will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of
the MAT credit asset is whtten down to the cxtcnt there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay
nomal income tax during the specified period.

/      Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the cousidcration received or receival]le. Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise
duty and net of returns, trade discount taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company rccogniscs revenue as under:

I  Sales

(i) The Company recognizes revenue from sale of goods when:

(a) The Significant risks and rewards of ownership in the goods arc transfened to the buyer as per the terms of the contrac(, which
coincides with the delivery of goods.

a)  The  Company  rcLaius  neither  continuing  managerial  involvement  to  the  degree  usually  associated  with  the  ownership  nor
effective control over the goods sold.

(c) The amount of rcvcnue can be reliably measured.

(d) It is probable tha( future econofnic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company.

(e) The cost incuned or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

® The company bases its estimates on his(orical results, taldng into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifics of each arrangement.

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied lnd AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive homework for determining whether,
how much and when revenue is to be rccognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and lnd AS 11 Construction Contracts. The
Company has adopted lnd AS  115  using the cumulative effect method.  The effect of iultially applying this standard is recognised at
the date of initial application (i.e. Aprfl 1, 2018). There are no material impact on revenue recogivtion by applying this standard.

11  Other income

(i) lntcrcst income
Interest income from debt irrsmments is recognised using the effective interest rate method.  The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts througiv the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a
financial  asset.  When  calculating  the  effective  interest  rate,  the  group  estimates  the  expected  cash  flous  by  considering  all  the
contractual  terms of the financial instrument (for example,  prepayment,  extension, call and similar options)  but does not consider
the expected credit los§es.

(if ) Divideiids
Dividends are recognised  in profit or loss only when the richt to receive payment is established,  it is probal)le that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the group, and the amount of the dividend can be

8c,



TRlcroHEM pRODucTs LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for tlie year ended March 31, 2022

(hi) Export benefits
Export incentives are accounted for on export of goods if the entitlements can be estimated with reasonable accuracy and conditions

preccdcnt to claim are fulfilled.

K     Inventories valuation

i Raw materials, components, stores & spares, packing material, semi-finished goods & finished goods are valued at lower of cost and
net realisable value.

ri  Cost of Raw Materials,  components,  stores & spares and  packing material  is arrived  at Weighted Average  Cast and  Cost of  scmj-
finished good  and finished good comprises, raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads.

iii Scrap  is valued at net realisal>lc value.

iv Due  allowances  are  made  in  respect  of slow  moving,   non-moving  and  obsolete  inventories  based  on  estimate  made  by  the
Management.

I     Impaiment ofAsscts

Intangible  assets  that  have  an  indefinlte  useful  life  are  not sub).ect  to  amortization  and  arc  tested  annually  for  inpaimen(  or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they mjgh( be inpaircd. Other assets are [csted for impaimcnt whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoveral)le. An impaiment loss is recogniscd for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its rccovcrable amount. The recoverable amount is the hichcr of an asset's fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use, For the purposes of assessing impairmcn(, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which  are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets  (cash-

generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impaimcnt at the end of each
reportingpcriod.

M    Fair value Measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each balance shcct date. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabhity in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the lial)hity takes place either:

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabihty

The  principal  or  the  most  advantageous  market  must  be  accessible  by  the  Company.  The  fair  value  of an  asset  or  a  lial]flity  is
measured  using  the  assumptions  (hat  market  participants  would  use  when  pricing  the  asset  or  hiabillty,  assuming  (hat  market

participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurcmcnt of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's al]iljty to gcncrate economic benefits by
using the asset in its hichest and best use or by scuing it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The  Company uses valuation  tcchhiques  that are  appropriate  in  the  circumstances and  for which sufficient  data are  available  to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant obscrvablc inputs and minimizing the use of unob§erwhle inputs.

All assets and nabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant [o the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 :   Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or lial>tljtics in active markets

Level 2:  Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable

Level 3:  Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable

For assets  and  liabihities  that  are  recognised  in  the  financial  statements  on  a recurring basis,  the  Company  determines whether
transfers  have  occured  between  levels  in  the  hierarchy  by  re-assessing  categorization  Oased  on  the  lowest  level  input  that  is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the  purpose  of fair value  disdasures,  the  Company has  detemined  classes  of assets  &  hiabhities  on  the  basis of the  nature,
characteristics and the risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as cxplalned al]ove.

N     Finandal lnstrtiment

a    Recognition, classification and pre§entatiou

The financial instruments are recognised in the balance shcct when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

The Company determines the classification of its financial instruments at iultial recognition.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mard 31, 2022

The  Company classifies  its  financial assets  in  the  fouowing categories:  a)  those  to be  measured subsequently at fall value  (either
through other comprehensive income, or throuch profit or loss), and b)  those to be measured at anortizcd cost. The classification
dependsonthecntity'sbusinessmodclformanagivgthefinancialassetsandthecontractualtermsofthecashflous.

Financial  assets  and  liabilities  arising  from  different  transactions  arc  off-set  against  each  other  and  the  resultant  net  amount  is

presented  in  the  balance  sheet,  if and  only when,  the  Company  currently has  a  legally  enforceable  right  to  set.off the  related
recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities slmultancously.

b   Measurement

(A) Initial measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures financial instruments at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss,  transaction costs that are directly attributal]le to the acquition of the financial assets.  Othcrwisc transaction
costs are expeused in the statement of profit and lass.

(8) Subsequent measurement . financial assets
The subsequent measurement of the financial assets depends on their classification as fouows:

(i) Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (`EIR`) method (if the inpact of discounting / any transaction costs is
significant). Interes( income from these financial assets is included in finance income.

(ii) Financial assets at fair value tlirou9li other comprehensive income (`FvrocI')
Equity investments which are not held for trading and for which the Company has elected to present the change in the fall value in
other comprehensive income and debt iustrumcnts that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets' cash flow represent solely payment of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI.

The  changes  in  fair value  are  taken  through  OCI,  except  for  the  impairment,  interest  Oasis  EIR method),  dividend  and foreign
exchange differences which are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

When the financial asset is derecognized,  the related accumulated fair value adjustments in OCI as at the date of derecognition are
reclassificd from equity and recognised in the statement of profit and loss.  However,  there is no subsequent redassification of fair
value gains and tosses to statement of profit and loss in case of equity iustrumcnts.

(iii) Financial assets at fair value tlirough profit or loss (`FVTPL')

All  equity instruments and  financial  assets  that do  not meet  the  criteria for alnortizcd  cost or FVTOCI are  measured at  fair value
through profit or loss. Interest Oasis EIR method) and dividend income from FV". is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
within finance income / finance costs separately from the other gaiusAosses arising from changes in the fair value.

Impai-eat
The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortized cost and
debt instniment carried at FVTOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase
in  credit  risk  since  initial  recognition.  If  credi(  risk  has  not  increased  significantly,  twelve  month  ECL  js  used  to  provide  for
impairment loss, otherwise lifetime ECL is used.

However, only in case of trade receival]les,  the company applies the simplified approach which requires expected lifetime losscs to
be recognized from initial recognition of the receival]les.

(c) Subsequent measurement . financial lial]hities
Other financial hiabilities are  initially recognised  at fair value less  any directly attributable transaction  costs.  They are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the EIR method (if the impact of discounting / any transaction costs is significant) .

c   De.rccogivtion

The  financial  lial]iljties  are  de-recognised  from  the  balance  sheet  when  the  under-lying  obli8atious  arc  extinguished,  discharged,
Lapsed, cancelled, expires or legally released. The financial assets arc de-rccogniscd from the balance sheet when the richts to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired, or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. A financial justrumcnt is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liabhity or
equity justrument of another entity.

o     Cash and cash cquivalent§

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits with banks, other short term highly hiquid invesments with origival maturi(ies
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

For the purpose  of presentation in the statement of cash  flous,  cash  and cash equivalents indudes outstanding hank overdraft shown
within current lial]hities in statement of financial balance sheet and which are conejdcred as integral part of company's cash management

policy.

P     Investments

Equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Other Comprehensive Income, except for those mutual
fund for which the Company has elected to present the fair value changes in the Statement of Profit and Lcrs.

Q     Trade receival>les
Trade  receival]les  are  recognised  initially at their fur value  and Subsequently  measured  at  anortiscd  cost  using the  effective  interest
method, less provision for expected credit Loss.

R     Trade and other paychles

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the cnd of financial year which are unpaid.
Trade and other payables are recognised, initially at fair value, and subsequently measured  at amortiscd cost using effective interest rate
method.

S     Provisions, contingent hahihties and contingent assets

i Provisions:

A provision is recognized, when company has a present obligation aegal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is probal>lc
that an outflow of resources embodying economic bcncfits will be required to settle the obligation,  in rcspcct of which a reliable
estimate can bc made for the amount of obligation. The expense relating to the provision is prescntcd in the profit and loss net of
any reinbusement.

If the  effect  of the  time  value  of money  is  material,  provisions  are  discounted  using a  cllrrent  pre-tax  rate  that  reflects,  when

appropriate,  the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,  the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
rccognised as a finance cost.

ii Contingent Liabinty

A contingent ljal]ility is a possible obligrtion (hat arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain furure events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of rcsourccs will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent lial]fljty also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot bc measured reliably. The Company docs
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent ljal]ilitics,  if material,  arc disclosed by way of notes and contingent assets,  if any, are disdosed in the notes to financial
statements.

iii Contingent Assets

Contingent Assets are disdosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

T     Earningspershare

i Basic eanrings per share

Basic earnings per shac is calculated by dividing:

- the profit attributablc to owners Of the Company; and

• by the iveighted average  number of equity Shares  outstanding during the  financial year,  adjusted  for bonus  elements  in equity

shares issued during the year.

ii Diluted camings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the detemination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares; and

- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dflutive

potential equity shares.

U     LcaseAccounting

As  a  lessee,  the  Company  previously  classified  leases  as  operating  or  finance  leases  based  on  its  assessment  of whether  the  Jcase
transferred significantly all of the risks and reunrds incidental to ownership of the undedying asset to the Company. Under lnd AS 116,
the Company recognizes right of ii§e assets and lease Ljabflitics for most leases i.e. these leases are on balance sheet.

On transition, the Company has applied following practical expedients:

i Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environm
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

ii Applied [hc expcmption not to recognise richt-of-use-assets and lial)illties for leases with lee than  12 months of lease term on the
date of transition.

iii Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the rightof -use-asset at the date of transition.

iv Grandfathcred the assessment of which transactions are, or contain leases. Accordingiv, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases under End AS 17.

v Relied on its asessment of whether leases are onerous, applying Ind AS 37 immediately before the date of initial application as an
alternative to perfoming an impairment review.

vi  Used hindsight when dcterminjng the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lcasc,

V     Employee benefits

i Short.ten obrigations

Liabihities for wages, salaries and leave encashment including non-monetary bcncfits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
months  after  the  end  c>f the  period  in which  the  employees  render  the  related  service  are  recognised  in  respect  of employees'
services up to the end of the repordng period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the ljabhities are settled.
The liabilities arc presented as current employee bcncfit obljgatious in the balance sheet.

ii other long.temi employee benefit omgatious

The  liabilities for earned  leave  are  not expected  to be settled whouy within  12  months after the cnd of the  period  in wliich  the
employees render the related service. They arc therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the cnd of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits
are discounted using the appropriate market yields at the end of the reporting period that have tens approxlmating to the terms of
the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions arc recognised in

profit or loss.

The obligations arc prcscntcd as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity docs not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlcmcnt is expected to occur.

iii Po§tenployment obhigatious

The group operates the following post{mployment schemes:

a Defined benefit gratuity plan:

Gratuity  and   Leave  encashment  which   are  defined  benefits  are  accrued  based  on  actuarial  valuation  working  provided  by
Independent actuary. The Contribution is charged to profit and loss.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan. The defined benefit obligation is calculated armually
as  per  the  report on independent  ac[uary.  The  present value  of the  defined benefit obligrtion  is  dctemined by discounting the
estimated future cash outl]ows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have tens
approximatin8 to  the  terms of the rclatcd  obligation.  The  net interest cost  is calculated  by applying the discount rate to  the  net
balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets.  This cost is included in employee benefit expense ln the
statement  of  profit  and  loss.   Remcasurcment  gains  and  losses  arising  from  experience  adjustments  and  changes  in  actoarial
assumptions  are  recogni§ed  in  the  period  in  which  they  occur,  directly  in  other comprehensive  income.  They are  included  in
retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

b Defined Contribution plan:

Contribution payal]le to recognised provident fund and superannuation scheme which is defined contribution scheme is charged to
Statement of Profit & Loss. The company has no further obligation to the plan beyond its contribution.

W    Cash Flowstatemcnt

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature,  any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

X     Opcratingcyde

Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the normal tine between acquisition of assets and their realjsation in cash
or cash  equivalents,  the  Company has  determined  its  operating cycle  as  12  months  for  the  purpose  of classification  of its  assets and
lial)ilities as current and non current.

Y     Rounding ofanounts

All amounts disclosed ln the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearcs[ Rupees
otherwise stated as per the requirement of schedule Ill @ivision 11).
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[Rs. in Lakhs]
NOTE NO. 3 : PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPRENT

Particulars Freehold land Building Plant andmachinery Furniture &fixtures Vchides Officecquipmcnts Total

Gross block
As at March 31,2020 0.39 I.34 173.83 I.30 0.12 8.16 185.13

AdditionsDisposals 2i7 2.37

As at March 31,2021 0.39 1.34 176.20 1.30 0.12 8.160.74 187.50

Additious 5.92 5.92

Disposals 0.74

As at Marcli 31,2022 0.39 1.34 182.11 1.30 0.12 7.41 192.67

Particulars Freehold land Budding Plant andmrdinery FundtLne &firfue§ Vehicles Officeequipments Total

deoumulated depreciation
As at March 31,2020 0.03 80.59 0.66 6.33 87.62

Depreciation charge during the yearDisposals 0.01 13.06 0.07 0.35 13.49

As at March 31,2021 0.04 93.65 0.74 6.68 101.11

Depreciation change during the yearDisposals 0.01 11.38 0.06 0.10 11,55

As at March 31,2022 0.04 105.03 0.79 6.79 112.65

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 0.39 I.30 82.55 0.56 0.12 1.47 86.39

Net carrying amount as at March 31, Z022 0.39 1.30 77.08 0.50 0.12 0.63 80.02

NOTE NO. 4 : CAPITAL WORK-IN-I'ROGRESS
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Note No 4.2: Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule

(a) CWIP aging schedule as at March 31, 2022
Capital Work - in - I'rogress Amount of CWIP for the pcried of Total

less than 1 year 1 - 2 yeas 2 - 3 years More than 3 years

Project in progress

a) CWIP aging schedule as al March 31, 2021
Capital Work - in - Progress Amount of CWIP for the period of Total

less than 1 year 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years

Project in progress 3.24 3.24

NOTE NO. 5 : INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Particulars                                                                                          Bunding                   Total
Gross block

As at March 31,2020 9.89 9.89

Additious

D]sposals

As at March 31,2021 9.89 9.89

Additions

Disposals
As at March 31,2022 9.89 9.89

Particulars Building Total
Accumulated depreciation

As at March 31,2020 1.78 1.78

Depreciation charge during (hc year 0.39 0.39

Disposals

As at March 31,2021 2.17 2.17

Depreciation charge during the year 0.37 0.37

Disposals

As at March 31,2022 2.55 2.55

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 7.72 7.72

RIet carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 7.35 7.35

66

[R§. in Lakhs]

`culars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

k-cau]ncomc Nil Nil
-Wt operating expenses from property that did not generate rental income.

3.42 3.17

are no restrictions on the realisal]hity of investment property.
e company is using same life for the same class of asset as applicable for property plant and equii)ment.

Fair Value
Investment i>ropcrty - Residential building, the market value has not been ascertained.
The range of estimates within which fair value is highly likely to lie-Between Rs. 4.00 Crore to 4.20 Crorc
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Notes to the financhl statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

6      OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAI, ASSETS

th

Ps. in Lakhs]

Particulas                                                                                                                                      Mardi 31, 2022                                   March 31, 2021

qunsecured consider good, unless other wise specified)
Deposits

7       DEFERRED TAXASSETS
Name of the shareholder                                                                                                             Mardi 31, 2022                                    Mal`ch 31, 2021

Deferred tax assets 04et)  Qefer Note No.18.1)

8       0THERNON CURRENT TAXASSIITS
Partioulans                                                                                                                                           Mardi 31, 2022                                     March 31, 2021

Balance with government authorities

9      0THERNON CURRENTASSETS
Particulars                                                                                                                                           March 31, 2022                                     March 31, 2021

qunsecured consider good, unless other wise specified)
Advance recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received

10    INVENTORIES

Particulars                                                                                                                                         Mach 31, 2022                                    March 31, 2021

Raw Material

Packing Material

Finished Goods

11    TRADE RECEIVABLES

Paticulars                                                                                                                                        Marcli 31, 2022                                    March 31, 2021

qunsecured )
Considered Good Qefer Note No.11.1  and 40)

Less.. Allowance for Expected Credit Loss

Note No. 11.1: Trade Reccival>les ageing schedule

(a) Trade Recievables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2021 (Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Of payment Total

I.ess than 6 montths - 1-2 2-3 More than
6 months 1  year years years 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade reccivables -
considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade rcceivablcs -
considcrcd doubtful

(iii) Disputed Trade reccival>les .
considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade rcceivables -
considered doubtfu I

12    CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

139.06 139.06

Particulars March 31, 2022                                    Mach 31, 2021

Balance With Banks
• On Current account

-Fixed Deposit qncluding Accrued Interest)  a`efer Note No.12.1)

Cach on Hand

Note No.12.1: All the fixed deposits having maturit)r of less than  12 months.
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Notes to the financial 8tatcmcnts for tlie year ended March 31, 2022

13    OTHER FINANCIAI,ASSETS

Pis. in rms]

Particuho                                                                                                                                   Mndi 31, 2022                                   Manch 31, 2021

qunsecured consider good, unless other wise specified)
Other reccivables

Interest Receivable

14    OTHER TAX ASSETS
Paniculars                                                                                                                                            Marcli 31, 2022                                     March 31, 2021

Advance Tar and Tax Dcductcd at Source (Net of Provision for Taxation)

15    OTHER CURRENTASSETS

Particulars                                                                                                                                        Mardi 31, 2022                                    March 31, 2021

(Unsecured consider good, unless other wise specified)
Balance with Central Excise and GST

Export Duty Draw Back

Advance to suppliers and service providers

Advance recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received

Advance to Graruity Fund @cfcr Note No. 38)

UITY SHARE CAPITAL

2.10

Particulars                                                                                                                                          March 31, 2022                                    March 31, 2021

Aiithorized Share Capital
2,50,000 Equity shares, Rs.10/-par value

(31 March 2020: 2,50,000 equity shares Rs.10/-each)

Iss`ied, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Shares
2,45,000 Equity shares, Rs.10/-par value fully paid up

(31 March 2020: 2,45,000 equity shares Rs.10/-each)

Note No.16.1: The reconcilation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period 3103-2022:

Particulars hrfu 31, 2022
No. of Shares Amount

Number of shares at the beginning

Add: Shares issued during the year

Less : Shares bought back (if any)

Number of Shares at the end

2,45,000                          24.50

2,45,000                         24.50

Marl 31, 2021
No. of Shares Amount

2,45,OcO                          24,50

2,45,OcO                          24.50

Note No. 16.2: Terms / rights attached [o equity shares

(A) The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/-per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

(8)  In  the  event  of Liquida(ion  of (he  company,  the  holders of eqility shares will  be  entitled  (o  reccivc  remaining assets  of the  company,  after
distribution of all preferential amoiints. The distribution will bc in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Note No.16.3: The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

Nape of the sharcholdcr hrfu 31, 2022
Nunder Ofshamehad % held as at

Mr. Ranu S. Deora

Mr. Rajesh R. Dcora

Mr.  Rajiv R.  Deora

Ranu M Dcora HUF

Mrs. Grace R. Deora

Note No. 16.4: The details of shareholders holding of promoters

(a) Shares held by promoters at March 31, 2022

98

34,500                        14.08%

36,000                        14.69%

34,270                         13.99%

27,420                          11.19%

36,000                        14.69%

Mud 31, 2021
Number Of % held as at

shams held

34,5cO                        14.08%

36,000                       14.69%

34,270                        13.99%

27,420                          11.19%

36,000                       14.69%
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Ps. in Lds]

Promoter Name No. of Shares % of total shares % Change during the year, % of total shacs

1) Mr. Ranu S. Deora

2)  Mr. Rajesh R. Dcora

3) Mr.  Rajiv R. Dcora

4) Ranu M Dcora HUF

5) Mrs. Grace R.  Deora

Total

a) Shai.es held by promoters at March 31,  2021

34,5cO                          14.08%

36,OcO                          14.69%

34,270                         13.99%

27,420                          11.19%

36,000                        14.69%

1,68,190                        68.64%

Promoter Name No. of shares % of total shares % Change during the year, % oftotal shares

1) Mr, Ranu S. Deora

2) Mr.  Rajesh R.  Deora

3) Mr. Rajiv R.  Dcora

4) Ranu M Dcora HUF

5) Mrs.  Grace R.  Deora

Total

17    0THEREQUITY

34,500                         14.08%

36,000                        14.69%

34,270                        13.99%

27,420                            11.1996

36,000                        14.69%

1,68,190                        68.64%

Name of the slndolder                                                                                                      March 31, 2022                                 March 31, 202l

Reserves & suxplus*

Capind Reserve #

General Reserves ##
Retained Cam ings

Other Comorehensive Income (OCI)
•Remeasurement Of net defined benefit plans

I,280.16 1,146.69

# Capital reserve mainly represents amount on capital account.

## General rcscrvc rclfccts amount transfcned from statement of profit and loss in accordance with regulations of the Companies Act, 2013.
* For movement, refer statement of changes in equity.

18    DEFERRED TAX I,IABILITIES
Name of the Shareholder                                                                                                              March 31, 2022                                    March 31, 2021

Deferred tax liabilities Qvet)  Qefer Note No,18.1)

Note No.: 18.1
Particuhe Net bahace asatAprfu01,2021 Rccogrrised instatementOfprofitandIces

Defened Tar hiabirities/(Assets)
Property,  plant and equipment / Investment Property / Other Intangible 9.94 (1.01)

Assets

Fair Value through P&I. (11.56) 11.54

Fair Value through OCI (0.60)

Others Matter

Expenses auowable under income tax on payment basis (1.70) 0.07

(3.92) 10.60

Particulas Net halhace asatApril01,2020 Recqgrrised instatementOfprofitandloss

Defened Tax Liabilities/(Assets)
Property, plant and equipment / Investment Property / Other Intangible 11.07 (1.14)

Assets

Fair Value throuch P&L (11.56)

Fair Value through OCI (0.01)

Others Matter

Expenses allowable under income tax on payment basis (1.74) 0.03

9.33 (12.66)

8e

Rccogrrised in Net bahocc as
OCI at

Mad 31, 2022

8.92

(0.02)
0.40 (0.19)

(1.63)
0.40 7.08

Recogrdsed inOCI Net brfucc asat

-31' 2021
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Marl 31, 2022

Income tax
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 March, 2022

Ps. in Lakhs]

Particulars hrfu 31, 2022 Mrfu 31, 2021

Profit and Loss:
Current tax . net of effect of earlier years : Rs.  0.00 Lakhs (31 March 2021  : Rs.0.75 Lakhs)

Deferred tax -net of reversal of earlier years : Rs. Nil (31 March 2021  : Rs. Nil)

Reconciliation Of tax cxpcnsc and the accounting profit multipned by domestic tax rate
I]articulas

Profit before income tax cxpcnse

Tax at the lnd an tar rate @ 25.17% (31 March 2021  @ 25.17%)

Add: Items divine rise to difference in tax
Permancn ( diference

Others

Tax for earlier years

Total Tax Expenses

19    BORROWINGS

33.44 (0.75)
10.60 (12.66)

44.04 (13.41)

For the year For the yen
ended brfu ended hrfu
31, 2022 31, 2021

176.32 (58.11)

44.38

0.92

(1.26)

(0.00)
44.04

Particuhas                                                                                                                                           March 31, 2022                                    March 31, 2021

Secured (Refer Note No. 19.1)

From Bank
Export Packing Credit

Note No.  19.1:  The  above  loan  from  State  Bank of India,  Banker of the  Company,  is  secured  primarily against  lst  charge on  the  Compadys
Current Assets.

20    TRADE I'AYABLES

Par(iculars                                                                                                                                          Mardi 31, 2022                                    March 31, 2021

Ct-t
Dues of micro and small enterprises acfer Note No. 20. I and 20.2)

Dues other than micro and smau enterprises @efer Note No. 20. I  and 20.2) 17.10                                                                        32.44

17.10                                                                        32.44

Note No.  20.1: The company has not received information from vendors regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprisc§
Developmen( Act,2006  and  hence  disclosures  relating  to  amounts  unpaid  as  a(  the  year end  together with  in(Crest  paid / payable  under this
Act,have not been given.

Note No.  20.2: The said information and Trade Payables regarding Micro and Small Entcrpriscs has been determined to the extent such parties
have been identified on the basis of information available with the company.

Particulars                                                                                                                                                                      Mard 31, 2022   nhawh 31, 2021

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to suppliers

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any suppher as at the end of each accounting year;

(ii) In(Crest due on (1) above remining unpaid to the supplier as at the end of each accounting year;

(iii)  Interest  paid  by  the  Company  in  terms  of section  16  of the  Micro,  Small  and  Medium  En(exprises
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accoiinting year;

(iv) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the  appointed  day during the year)  but without  adding  the  interest specified under the  Micro,  Small  and
Medium Enterprises Devclopmcn( Ac(, 2006;

(v) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

(vi)  In[cres( remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such da(e when the interest dues
as  above  are  actually  paid  to   the  small  erilerprise,   for  the  purpose  of  disallowance  as   a  deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium En[caprises Development Act, 2006.

Note No. 20.3: Trade Payables due for payment



TRIOCH" PRODUCTS IIMIThD

Notc§ to the financial strtcments for the year ended Mardi 31, 2022

(a) Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2022

pis. in hakhs]

Particuke Outstanding for fouowing periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 montths - 1'2 2.3 More than
6 months 1  year years years 3 ycas

(i) MSME

(ii)  Others

(iii)  Disputed dues -MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - others

Total

9.14                               0.03                               4.33 13.51

9.14                                0.03                                4.33                                                                                                                   13.51

Add; Accrued Expense

Total Trade Payables

a) Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2021

Particulars outstanding for fouowing periods from due date of payment Total
Iess than 6 montths . 1-2 2.3 More than
6 months 1  year ysas y- 3 years

(i)  MSME

(Ii)  Others

(iii)  Disputed dues -MSME

(iv) Disputed dues . others

Total

Add: Accrued Expense

Total Trade Payal>les

21   o"ER HNANcm LIABIImEs

14.89 14.78 0.52                             30.18

14.89                                                                     14.78                                                                          0.52                            30.18

Particulars                                                                                                                                          March 31, 2022                                    Mardi 31, 2021

Sundry Creditors for Capital Goods

22    OTHER CURRENT LIABILnlEs
Particulars                                                                                                                                         Mardi 31, 2022                                    Mareh 31, 2021

Statutory Dues Payable

23    PROVISIONS
Particulars                                                                                                                                         March 31, 2022                                    March 31, 2021

Provision for Emolovee Benefits

For leave Encashment qunfunded)

For Gratuity @efer Note No. 38)

CONTIGENT LIABILITh #
Particulars                                                                                                                                          March 31, 2022                                     March 31, 2021

1) Disputed Tax Liabilty

Income Tax Dispute - 438 Disallowance

Income  Tax  Act,   1961   pending  with  The  Appellate  Tribunal  for  the
Assessment Year 1993-1994

counTMENTs

3.21 3.21

Particulars                                                                                                                                       Mach 31, 2022                                    Mawh 31, 2021

1) Estinated Amounts of Contrac( remaining to be executed on  Capital
account and not provided for

Note:
#  The  management  does  not  expect  these  demands  /  claims  to  Succeed.  Claims,  where  the  possibility  of outflow
economic benefits i§ remote, have not been considered in contingent lial]ihity.

€1



TRloclmM pRODucTs LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

25   REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Pis. in hakhs]

Partiailans                                                                                                                                   March 31, 2022                                       March 31, 2021

Sale of Products

Other Oi]eratin£ Revenue
Export I ncentive

26  OTrm lNcOME

882.16

1,393.84

Particulars                                                                                                                                  March 31, 2022                                       March 31, 2021

Interest Income Qefer Note No. 26.1)

Misccuaneous Receipt

Sundry Balance Written Back quet)

Exchange Fluctuation Gain quet)

Note No. 26.1  : Break-up of Interest Income

Interest income on other deposits

ln(Crest income on income tax refund

Interest income on fixed deposit with bank

27   COST 0F MATERIAI.S CONSUMED
Particulars                                                                                                                          Mach 3l, 2022 March 31, 2021

Raw Material
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Transfer to Purchase for Stock in Trade

I.ess: Inventory at the end of the year

Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars March 31, Z022                                        March 31, 2021

Packing Material
Inventory at the beginning of the year

Add: Purchases during the year

I.ess: Transfer to Purchase for Stock in Trade

Less: Inventory at the end of the year

Cost of Materials Cousumcd

28   PtJRCHASE FOR STOCK IN TRADE

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Traded Goods

29   CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Inventories at the berinnin2 Of the
Finished Goods

ILcss: Transfer to Raw Material

Inventories at the end of the vcar
Finished Goods

92-

136.70



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

30   EMPLOREE BENEFIT EXPENSES

pus. in Lakhs)

Particulars                                                                                                                                   March 31, 2022                                       March 31, 2021

Salaries, Wages and Bonus

Contribution to I'rovident and other fund

Staff Welfare Expeuscs

31   FINANCE COST
Particulars                                                                                                                                  March 31, 2022                                       March 31, 2021

Interest Expense on Short Term Bank Borrowing

Interest Expense on Income Tax Payment

Interest Expense on I.oan from Direc(or

32   DEPRECIATION a AMORTIZATION EXPENSES
Particulars                                                                                                                                 March 3 I , 2022                                       March 31, 2021

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation on Investment Property

33   OTHER EXPENSES
Particulars                                                                                                                              March 31, 2022                                      Mndi 31, 2021

Power & Fuel

Repairs & Maintenance

Plant & Machinery

Building

Others
lusurmce Charges

Rates & Taxes

Rent

Payment to Statutory Auditor aefer Note No. 33.1)

Water Charge

Labour Charges

Freight and Forwarding

Listing Fees

Postage and Tclephonc

Interest on TDS & Excise

Penalty on TDS and  Excise

Legal & Professional

ReSstrar & Share Transfer Fee
Bank Charges

Interest Expense on GST

Miscellaneous expenses

Loss on Sale of Investment

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets

Investment Expenses

Note No. 33.1  : Payment to Statutory Auditors

As Auditors :

Audit Fees (including I.imitcd Review)

Towaids GSTrservice Tax *

23.30

93

42.37



TRIOclnM PROI)ucrs HnnTBD
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

In Other Caoacity :

Out of pocket expcuses
Towards GSTrscrvice Tax *

Total Auditors Rcmuneration
* Note: Out of above GST/ Service Tax credit of Rs.35,190/- ¢rcvious Year Rs.28,575/-) has been taken and the sane has not been debited to

Scatemen[ of Profit & Loss.

34   EARNING PER SHARE
Particulars                                                                                                                                   March 31, 2022                                       March 31, 2021

(a) Profit attributable to Equity Sharcholdcrs

a) No. of Equity Share outstanding during the year.
(c) Face Value of each Equity Share (Rs.)

(d) Basic & Diluted canning per Share (Rs.)

132.28

2,45,000

10

53.99

(44.70)
2,45,000

10

(18.25)

35   Financial Risk Management
The Company's activities expose it to credit risk, hiquidity risk and price risk.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the inpact thereof in the financial
statements.

fl

Risk Exposue         arisingfrom Measuement Management

Credit Risk Cash         and          cash Credit ratings, Review of aging analysis,Strict  credit  control  and  mohitoring
equivalents,            trade on quarterly basis. system,              diversification             a

recejvables                 andfinancialassets. counterparties, on quarterly basis.

Liquidity Risk Trade     payables    and Maturity         analysis,         cash         flowMalntalning   sufficient    cash   /   cash

other                  financial projections. equivalents  and   marketable  security
liabilities. and      focus      on      realisation      oreceivables.

Market Risk - Foreign Exchange Financial     assets     and Foreign currency exposure review and The  company  partly  hedged  due  to
liabihities                      not sensitivity analysis. natural   hedge   and   is   exploring  to
denominated in INR. hedge its unhedged pasitious.

Interest RIsk Long  Tcm  BorrowingatVarial>lcRates SeusitivityAnalysis Interest rate swaps

Price Risk Change in price of raw The   company   sourcing   components The   company   is   able   to   pass   on
material from  vendors  directly,  hence  it  doessubstantial  price  hike  if  any  to  the

not hedge  its exposure  to  commoditypricerisk. customers.

The Board provides guiding principles for overall risk management,  as well as pohicies covering specific areas such as credi( risk, liquidity risk,

price risk and foreign exchange risk cffectin8 business operation, The company`s risk management is carried out by the management as per
guidelines and policies approved by the Board of Directors.

(A) Credit RIsk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not mcct its obligations under a financial iustrumen( or customer contract, leading to a financial
loss. Credit risk encompasses the direct risk of default, risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks.  The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities ®rimarily trade receivables), deposits with banks and loans given,

Credit RIsk Management
The company's credit risk mainly from trade receival)les as these are typically uusecured. This credit risk has always been managed through
credit approvals,  establishing credit limits and continuous monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to whom credit js extended in the
normal course of business. The Company estimates the expected credit loss based on past data,  availal)lc information on public domain and
experience.  Expected credit losses  of financial  assets  receivable  are  estinated  based  on  his(orical  data of the  Company.  The  company has

provisioning policy for expected credit losses.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at March 31, 2022 and  March 31, 2021 is the carrying value of such trade receivables as shown in note
11 of the financials.

On adoption of lnd AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain.

9+



TRIOCIREM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

The company's exposure to credit risk for trade receival]les is as follows:

prs. in I.akhs]

Particulars Gross Ctrying amount Gross Carrprg anount
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

1 - 180 days past due* 139.06

181. 365 days past due

More than 365 days pas due#
Total 139.06

* The Company believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due I)y more than  180 days are still collcctible in fun, based on historical

payment behaviour.

# The Company based upon past trends determine an impairmcnt allowance for loss on receivables outstanding for more than 180 days past

(8) Liquidity RIsk
Liquidity risk represents the inability of the Company to meet its financial obligations within stipulated time, To mitigate this risk, the Company
maintains sufficient liquidity by way of working capital limits from banks.

The  table  below  provides  details  regarding  the  remalnjng  contractual  maturitles  of  financial  liabiljtics  at  (he  reporting  date  based  on
contractual undiscou nted payments :

Particulars I,c§s tlun 1 year More than 1 year Total

As at March 31, 2022

Borrowings 0.00 0.00

Trade payal>les 17.10 17.10

Total 17.10 17.10

Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

As at March 31, 2021

Borrowhgs
Trade payal]le§ 32.44 32.44

Total 32.44 32.44

(C) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fir value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. In order to optinrizc the Company's position with rcgrrd [o interes( income and intcrcst cxpenscs and to manage the interest rate risk,
treasury performs a comprchensjve corporate  interest rate risk management by balancing the  proportion of the fixed rate  and floating rate
financial instruments in its total portfolio.

in
The exposure of company borrowings to interest rate changes at the cnd of reporting period are as fouows:
Particulas March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Variable rate borrowings 0.00

Fixed rate borrowings
Total borrowings 0.00

SeusitivityAnalysis
Profitloss is sensitive to higherAower interest expcnee from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.
Particulars BasisPoints Impact on Profit before Tax

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Increase in Basis points +50 0.00

Decrease in Basis points -50 (0.00) _
(D) Foreign Currency risk disdosure
A. Cunency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will  fluctuate because of changes in foreign  exchange rates. The
Company is exposed to the  effects of fluctuation in the prcvaling foreign currency exchange rates on its financial  position and  cash flows.
Exposure  arises  primarily  due  to  exchange  rate  fluctuations  between  the  functional  currency  and  other  currencies  from  the  Company's
operating,  investing and financing activi(ies. For the year ended 31st March 2022,  no outstanding trade receival]les and trade payables lying in
foreign currency.

(E)  Price risk
The company is exposed  to price risk in basic ingrediants of Company's raw material and is procuring materials from vendors directly. The
Company monitors its price risk and factors the price increase in pricing of the products.

j5



TRIOcHEM pRODucTs IIMlm]

Notes to the finaiichl statements for the year ended Mndi 31, 2022

36  Rchted party disclosures as required ilindcr lnd AS 24, "Rchted Party Disclosures", are given below:

a) Name of the related party and description of relationship.

Sl. No. Rchted Parties Nature of Rehatiouship

(i) Mr. Ranu S. Deora Director and CE0 quey Managerial Personnel)

(ii) Ms. Ureca Shirish Shirole Company Sccretay

(iii) G Amphray Laboratories Key managerial person is proprietor

(iv) G Amphray Pharmaceuticals in Ltd Relative of key managerial person have control

(v) Triochem Lal>oratories Pvt Ltd Relative of key managerial person have control

(vi) Triochem Products Gratuity Fund Key managerial person is trustee

Ps. in Lakhs]

b) Details of Transactions during the year with related par(ies.

Sl. No. Rclatcd parties Nature of Transactions during the yen twrfu 31, 2022 Mad 31, 2021

(i) G Amphray Laboratories Purchaseofgoods 1.14

Sales of goods 519.89 1,378.73

(ii) Triochem Laboratories Pvl Ltd Purchaseofgoods 512.55

(iii) G Amphray Pharmaceuticals Pvt Ltd sales of goods 130.20

(iv) Triochem Products Gratuity Fund Contribution paid 0.46 3.20

(v) Mr. Ranu S. Deora Loan taken during the year 100.00 500.00

Loan repaid during the year 100.00 625.00

In(crest paid I.52 5.86

(vi) Ms. Urcca Shirish Shirole Salay Paid 2.40 2.40

c) Balances at end of the year with rela(ed particS.

Sl. No. Rchted par(ies Nature of Transactions during the year Mid 31, 2022 brfu 31, 2021

(i) G Amphray Laboratories Trade Receivable 139.06

(iii) Triochem Products Gratuity Fund Advance for Gratuity 6.20

Payable to Gratuity 1.38

37   Employee Bciicfit§
As per IND AS 19 "Employee Benefits", the disclosures of Employee benefits as defined in the said Accounting Standards are given below :

(i) Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan includes Providend Fund. The expenses reco8nised for (he year are as under :

Particuhe nrfu 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Employer's Contribution to Providend Fund 2.49 2.98

(fi) Defined Bcncfit Pha
'a) Gratuity:

The Company operates gratuity plan wherein every employee i§ entitled to the benefit equivalent to  15 days / one month salary last drawn for each
completed year of service depending on the date of joining. The Sane is payal)le on termination of service, retirement or death, whichever is earlier.
The benefit vests after 5 years of continuous service.

a) The following tables set out the assump(ions taken, s(aLus of the gratuity plan, the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as
a( 31 Mach 2022 and 31 March 2021,

Sl. No. Particulars 2021 -2022 2020 . 2021

Valuation Results as at Mid 31, 2022 Mad 31, 2021
I Change in present value of obligations

PVO at beginning of period 10.25 6.73

Interest cost 0.38 0.46

Current service cost 1.14 0.86

I'ast service cost - (non vested benefits)

Fas( service cost - (vested bencfit§)

Bencfits paid (8.52)

Contribution by plan participants

Business combinations

Curtailmcnts

Settelements

Acruarial (Gain) / Loss on obligation (1.63) 2,21

rvo at end of period 1.63 10.25

11 Intcnest Expenses
Interest cost oLagrprocf".46

•zl86€ ,.mba{°6=\
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TRIOCIIEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial §tatcments for tlie year ended March 31, 2022

Ps. in Lakhs]
Ill Fdrwhieofplanassets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 7.05 5.59

Interest cost 0.38 0.46

rv Net hability
rvo at beginning of period 10.25 6.73

Fair value of the assets at beginning report 7.05 5.59

Net liability 3.20 I.14

V Net intcmst
Interest expenses 0.38 0.46

Interest income 0.38 0.46

Net interest

VI Actual rctum on plan assets
Actual return on plan assets 0.35 0.33

Less interest income included above 0.38 0.46

Return on plan assets excluding interest income (0.03) (0.13)
VII Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on omgation

Due to demographic assumption*

Due to financial assumption (0,18) 0.28

Due to experience (1.45) 1.93

Total actuarial (Gain) /  Loss (1.63) 2.21

* This figure does not reflect interrelationship between demographic assumption and financial assumption when a limit is applied on the

benefit the effect will be shown as an experience

VIII Fair value of pha assets
Opening fair value of plan assets 7.05 5.59

Adjustment to opening fair value of plaii assets 3.20 1.14

Return on plan assets excluding interes( income (0.03) (0.13)
Interest income 0.38 0.46

Contribution by employer

Contribution by cmployec

Benefit paid (8.52)
Fair value of plan assets at end 2.09 7.05

K I>ast service cost recognised
Past service cost - (non vested benefits)

Past service cost - (vestcd benefits)

Average remaining furure service till vesting of the benefit

Rccogniscd past service cost - non vested benefits

Recognised past service cost - vestcd benefits

Unrecognised past service cost - non vestcd benefits
X Amount to be recognized in tlie balance sheet and §tatenent of profit and less account

rvo at end of period 1.63 10.25

Fair value of plan assets at end of period 2.09 7.05

Funded starus 0.46 (3.20)
Net Assets / Liability recognized in (he balance sheet 0,46 (3.20)

XI Expense recognized in tlie statement of profit and loss account
Current service cost 1.14 0.86

Net intercs(

Past service cost - (non vested benefits)

Past service cost - (vcsted bcneftts)

Cu rtailme nts effect

Settelements effect

Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss account 1.14 0.86
XII other comprchensive income (OCD

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss recognized for the period (1.63) 2,21

Asset limit effect

Rerurn on plan assets excluding net interest 0.03 0.13

Unrecognised ac[uarial fGain) / Loss from previous period

Total actuarial (Gain) /  Loss recognized in (OCI) (1. i3foriyise.34
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mardi 31, 2022
ps. in Lams)

XIII Movcment§ in the liability rocognizcd in balance sheet
Opcnin8 net liablity 3.20 1.14

Adjusment to opening balance (,.20) (1.14)

Expenses as above 1.14 0.86

Contribution paid

Other comprenchsive income (OCI) (1.60) 2.34

Closing net ljablliry (0.46) 3.20

AV Schedtile Ill of the Compares act 2013
Curren t liabitiry 3.20

Non - current liability I.63 7.05

AV Projected service cost 31st March 2023 0.94

XVI Asset informtion Target Total Amou nt

Allocatiion % Auocatiion %

Cash and cash equivalents 0.00%

Gratuity fund (The Trustees of the Scheme) 100.00% 2.09

Debt Security - Government bond 0.00%

Equity Securities - Corporate debt securities 0.00%

Other insurance contracts oTrustees of the Company) 0.00%

Property 0.00%

Total itemized assets 100.00% 2.09

XVII Assunptious as at 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Mortality lALM (2012-14)Ult. ELM (2012-14)Ult.

Interest / Discount rate 7.10% 6.32%

Rate of increase in compensation 4.00% 4.00%

Annual iricrease in healthcare costs

Future changes in maximum state healthcare benefits

Expcctcd average remaining service 11.52 11.91

Retircmcnt age 58 years
Ermployee attrition rate Age 0 to 45  :  2%

Age 46 to 58  :  1%
XVIII Sensitivity analysis DR:  Discount Rate ER: Salay Escalation Rate

rvo DR+1% rvo DR-i% PV0 ER  +  1% rvo ER . 1%
rvo 1.43 1.86 1.86 1.42

XH Expectedpayout
Year                                                            Expected Expcctcd Expected Expected Expected Expected

Out8O Out80 Outgo Outgo Outgo Outgo Six to
first second third fourth fifth ten years

rvo payouts                                                      0.06 0.05 0.05 0.04 0.05 0.25
XX Assets hibflity comparisous

Year 3l-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 3l-Mar-22
pVo at end of period 7.32 7.12 6.73 10,25 1.63

Plan assets 6.07 6.21 5.59 7.05 2.09
Surplus / @eficit) (1.24) (0.91) (1.14) (3.20) 0.46
Experience adjustments in plan assets (0.13) (0.16) (0.12) (0,13) (0.03)
Weighted average remaining duration of Defined Benefit obhigation                                                                                                                         14.99

XXI Narrations
1) Analysis of defined benefit omgation

The number of members under the scheme have decreased by 33.33%.

The total salary has decreased by 6.70% during the accounting period.

The resultant ljabihity at the end of the period over the beginning of the period has decreased by 84.13%

2) Expected rate of rctum basis
EROA is [he discount rate as at previous valua(ion date as per the accounting standard.

3) Description Of the Plan Asscts and Reimbunsemcnt Conditions
100% of the plan Assets is entrusted to The Trustees ofthc scheme under their Group Gramity scheme. The                       cnt is subject

to insurer's surrender pohcy.                                                                                                                                   ^ Plo_d4.A

3 8                                 !]`` whbal-f5)
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TRI0CHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year cmded March 31, 2022
Pis. in Lakh§]

4) Investment / hterest REk
The Company is exposed to Investment / Interest risk if the return on the invested fund falls below the discount rate used to arrive at

present value of the benefit.
5) Ii]ngcvity RIsk

The Company is not exposed to risk of the employees living longer as the benefit under the scheme ceases on the employee separating
from the employer for any reason.

6) RIsk of Sky Incrcasc
The Company is exposed to higher Liability if the future salaries rise more than assumption of salary escalation.

7) Discount Rate
The discount rate has decreased from 6.32% to 7.10% and hence there is a decrease in tiability lending to actuarial gain due to change

in discount rate.

38   Tralisition to Ind AS 116

The company has identified that there were no leases which arc in the nature of Right-to-use and hence no lease liability is recognised in the financial
statements.

Disclosure relating to provisions . The movement in the following provisions is summrised as under :
Note No.** I.revision Related to OpeningBalance Additions Utihation Reverd Clochg Bahace

1. Covid-19 Incentive to Employees 14.72 14.72

Total 14.72 14.72

** Note:

The Company gives long terms service award to its employee based on the period survived by them and performance of the company.

40   Balances of Trade Payables and Loans and Advances are subject to confimation and consequential adjustment, if any.

41   The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

Particulars                             Numerator                               Denominator 2021. 2022 2020 ' 2021 Vrfuce
(a)  Current Ratio

a) Debt-Equity Ratio

(c) Debt Service Coverage
Ratio

(d) Rctum on Equity Ratio

(e) Inventory turnover ratio

(0 Trade Receivables
turnover ratio

Curfen t Assets

Debt

Net profit plus finance cost

Profit for the year less
Preference Dividend, if any

Cost of Goods Sold

Revenue from operations

Cu rrent Liabili(ies

Equity

Cost of debt

Average Shareholder's  Equity

Average Inventory

Average Trade Rcceivables

(g)  Trade  payables  turnover Purchases of Goods and other  Average Trade Payables
rat io* *                                             expenses

(h) Net capital rumover ratio  Revenue from operations

(i)  Net Profit Ratio

0) Return on Capital
employed

(k) Return on Investment
Unquoted

Quoted

Profit for the year

Profit before tares and
Finance Cost

Income generated from
inves[mcnts

Income generated from
investments

Average Working Capital (Total
Current Assets less Total Current
Liabilities)

Revenue from operations

Capital Employed = Net worth  +
Defened tax
liabilities+Borrowing

Time weigh(ed average
investments

Time weighted average
investments

56.62                           28.20

0.00                          0. 00

0. 00                          0.00

0.11                            (0.04)

12.15                             10.29

12.69                             2.00

24.99                           25.22

0.75                               1.30

loo.79%

-385.51%

18.08%

534.47%

0.90%

42.62%

0.15                             (0.03)                    -562.49%

0.14                          (0.04)                   J£36.57%

NA                            NA                    Not Applicable

Not Appiical]ic

Note: Analysis for variances of more than 2 5%

1.) As at Balance sheet date the Company has paid of majority of trade payables and because of that Current Ratio has improved.

2.) During the year, the Companies major sales i§ from (faded goods in which the Company has earned higher margin and because of the all profit

linked ratios has been increased.
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the fiiiancial statements for tlie year ended Mardi 31, 2022
Pis. in Lakhs]

42   Capital Management

(i) RIsk Management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity

holders. The primary objective of the Company capital management is to maxjmise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital s(ructure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic condi(ions and the requirements of the financial
covenants.  The Company monitors capital using a gcaring ratio and js measured by net debt divided by Equity.  The Company's Debt is defined as
long-tcrrn and short-term borrowings including current maruri(ies of long term borrowings and total equity (as shown  in balance sheet)  includes
issued capital and all o(her reserves.

(fi) Gearfug Ratio
The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows.
Particuhe Mid 31, 2022 Mad 31, 2021
Borrowing 0.00

Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,180.92 819.72

Net Debt (1,180.92) (819.72)

Total Equity 1,304.66 1,171.19

Total Equity and Net Debt 123.73 351.47

Geachg ratio

43  Squent Rqurting
The Company i§ engaged prinarily in the business of manufacturing and export of pharmaceuticals products, AP]s and chemicals. All other activities
of the  company  revolve  around  the  main  business  and  hence  there  is  no  reportable  primary  segment.  Also  the  Company  does  not  have  any
reportable gco8raphical segment. Hence, disclosures pursuant to the Indian Accounting Standard 108 "Operating Segment" arc not applicable.

44  fair value mcasurcment.
The management assessed tha( Cash and Cash equivalents, loans, other balances with Banks, trade reccival)les, (fade payablcs and other current
liabilities/assets approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the Short-term maturities of these instruments.

45   COVII)-19 Impact
The Companys operations for the financial year have been impacted by the the spread of Covid-19. The Management of the Company has assessed
the impact of the pandemic on its financial s(atonents/ position such as trade receivablcs,  investments,  inventories,  trade payables and based on its
best judgement and reasonable estimate,  has concluded that there are no material adjustments required in the Financial Statements.The Company
has carried out this assessment based on available internal and external sources of information upto the date of approval of these financial statements
and  believes  that  the  inpact  of COVID-19  is  not  rna(erial  to  these  financial statements  and  cxpec[s  [o  recover the carrying  amount  of its  assets

However the impact assessment of Covid-19 is a continuous process, given the uncertainties associa(ed with its duration and narurc, it is not possible
to estimate the future impact as a( the date of approval of this financial sta(ement. The Company continues to monitor the economic effects of the

pandemic while taking steps to improve its execution efficiencies and the financial outcome.

46   The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security.  2020 which would impact the contributions by the company  towards Provident

Fund and Gramity.  The Ministry of Labour and Employment has rclcascd draft rules for the Code on Social Security,  2020 on  November 13,  2020,
and has  invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active  consideration by the Ministry.  The  Company will assess the impact and its
evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial s[aternents in (he period in which, the Code becomes
effective and the related rules to determine the financial inpact are published.

47   The previous year figures have bccn  regrouped/reelassified,  whcrcver necessary to conform to the current presentation  as per the schedule Ill of
Companies Act,  2013.

As per our naport of even date attached.
For Kinu Doslii Associates LIP
Cliartcned Accountants
Fin Registration No.: 104746W100096

Jed
Knd Vakharia
Prmer
Membership No.: 14891

Phace: Muhori
Dated: 28th May, 2022
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For and on behalf Of Board of Directors
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Form lsR - 1
(-SEBI  circular No. SEBl/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated  November 03, 2021 on Common and Simplified  Norms for

processing investor's service request by RTAs and  norms for furnishing PAN, KYC details and Nomination)

REQUEST FOR REGISTERING  PAN, KYC DETAILS OR CHANGES / UPDATION THEREOF

[For Securities (Shares / Debentures / Bonds, etc.) of listed companies held  in physical form]

A.  I / We, request you to Register/ Change/ Updatethe following (Tick /relevant box)                      Date   :         /           /

HPAN H   Signature H    Mobile Number

I   Bank details H   Registered Address I    E-mail address

a.  Security and KYC Details [ to be filled  in  by the  First Holder I

Name of the lssuer Company Folio No(s)

Face value of Securities Number of Securities

Distinctive number ofSecurities(Optional) From To

E-mail Address
Mobile Number

C.  I/We are submitting documents as per Table below (tick/as relevant, refer to the instructions):
Name(s) of the Security holder(s) in Capital as per  PAN PAN PAN Linked to
Copies of PAN of all the Holder(s) duly self-attested with date to be enclosed with this Form. Aadhaar  -Y/NTickanyoneM  *

1. Yes / No

2. Yes / No

3. Yes / No

4. Yes / No

Note: * PAN shall be valid only if it is linked to Aadhaar by March 31, 2022, or any other date as may be specified by CBDT.
To know the status Of your PAN  Linked to Aadhaar check on this link: httus://www.incometax.gov.intiec/foDortal

Bank Account Details of First Holder
Name  of the Bank &Branch lFSC

Bank A/c  No.
Tick any one I/I-Acct type  I Savings   lturrent
HNRO  I  NRE     HAnyother[                               I

Note:  Original  cancelled  cheque  leaf  bearing  the  name  of  the  first  holder  is  mandatory,  failing  which  first  security  holder  shall  submit  copy  of  bank

passbook / statement attested by the Bank for registering the Bank Account details.

Demat Account Number 16digitDP/CL     I                                                                                                                                  I

Also provide Client Master List (CML) of your Demat Account, provided by the Depository Participant.

Authorization:  I / We authorise you (RTA) to update the above PAN and KYC details in my / our above folio(s) (use Separate Annexure if extra
space is required) in which I / we are the holder(s).                                                                                                                            [ strike off what is not applicable ]
Declaration: AIl the above facts and documents enclosed are true and conect.

First Holder Joint Holder - 1 Joint Holder -2 Joint Holder -3

i
!1

il

PIN

Note: lf the addr®se m®ntlon®d above differs from the address roglst®rod w]th the Company, you are requ®st®d to record the now address by submlttlng the
documents as sp®clfl®d ]n point (3) ov®rl®af.                                                                     I O|

LINK I ;  1 i  I .-7 `,,-\ Pg  :   1/2



I/We are submitting documents as per Table below (tick/as relevant, refer to the instructions):

No. / Document/Information/Details Instruction/Remark

1 I PAN of (all) the tl.oint) holder(s)

PAN copies of all the holder(s) duly self-attested with date to be enclosed.

PAN  shall  be valid only if it is linked to Aadhaar by March  31,  2022, or any date as

may be specified by the CBDT.  For Exemptions / clarifications on PAN, please

refer to Objection Memo as specified in SEBl circular,

2 I Demat Account Number
Provide Client Master List (CML) of your Demat Account, provided  by the

Depository Participant.

3 Proof of Address of the first Holder

Provide self attested copy of any ONE of the documents, issued by a Govt. Authority,
only if there is change in the address;

I       Client Master List (CML) of your Demat Account, provided by
the Depository Participant.

H       Valid passport/ Registered Lease or sale Agreement of Residence/
Driving License/Flat Maintenance Bill*

I        Utilitybills  likeTelephone  Bill  (onlyland  line),  Electricity  bill  or

Gas bill -Not more than 3 months old.

I      Identity card (with photo) /document with address, issued by
Central/State Government and its Departments, Statutory /

Regulatory Authorities, Public Sector Undertakings, Scheduled

Commercial  Banks,  Public  Financial  Institutions.

H        ForFll/sub account,  PowerofAttorneygiven byFll/sub-
account to the Custodians (which are duly notarized and / or

apostilled or consularised) that gives the registered address

should  be taken.

I      The proofofaddress inthe nameofthespouse*
* Kindly provide additional self-attested copy of Identity Proof of the holder/

claimant.

4 I Bank details

Provide the latest copy of the bank statement with details of bank name, branch,

account number and  lFSC  or Original cancelled cheque leaf bearing the name of

first holder. Alternatively,  Bank details available in the CML as enclosed will  be

updated in the folio.

5 I E-mail address
As mentioned on Form lsR-1, alternatively the E-mail address available in the

CML as enclosed will  be updated  in the folio.

6 I Mobile
As mentioned on  Form lsR-1, alternatively the mobile number available in the

CML as enclosed will  be updated  in the folio.

7 I Specimen Signature
Provide banker's attestation of the signature of the holder(s) as per Form  lsR -2

and   Original cancelled cheque leaf bearing the name of the first holder.

8 Nomination

Submit Form(s) as per any ONE of the following options.

I  SH-13 For First Time Nomination

[  SH-14 For Cancellation or Variation in Nomination

I  SH-14 and lsR-3 For Cancellation of  Nomination and to "Opt-Out"

I   ISR-3 To "OPT-Out" of Nomination or if No-Nomination is required

Note: All the above foms are also available on  our website„

LINK i ?  :( !tl -;+
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Form lsR -2
(SEBI circular No. SEBl/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated  November 03,2021)

Confirmation of Signature of Securities Holder by the Banker

log
LINK i, `, t , n  , 4-,



TO,

Name of the Company :
Address of the Company:

Form No. SH-13

Nomination Form
Pursuant to section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule

19(1) of the companies (Share capital and Debentures) Rules 2014]      Date:         /         /

I/We, the holder(s) of the securities particulars of which are given hereunder, wish to make nomination and do hereby nominate the
following persons in whom shall vest, all the rights in respect of such securities in the event of my/our death.

(1) PARTICULARS OF THE SECURITIES (in  respect of which nomination  is being made)  :

Nature of SecuritiesTick/asrelevant Folio No. No. of Securities* Certificate No.
Distinctive No(s)(From-To)

Equity / Debs/Bonds

(2)  PARTICULARS 0F NOMI NEE/S -[Use I)hctocopies of this blank nomination form in case of additional Multiple Nominations in the same folio I

Name of Nominee

Address of Nominee Date of Birth (-)

Father's/Mother's/Spouse'sname
Occupation

Relationship withthesecurityholder
Nationality

E-mail   id Mobile No

(3) lN CASE NOMINEE IS A MINOR -
Name ofGuardian

Date of Birth (-)

Address  ofGuardian Date Of attainingmaJ`Ority
(-)

Signature(s) as per Specimen recorded wlth the Company.

First Holder Joint Holder -1 Joint Holder -Z Joint Holder -3

9=€Et®

ia=

Witness Details:

Name of Witness
Signature

Address of Witness
Pin:

Date
*  Nomination will be registered tor entire holding jn the folio. In case Of more than one nominee, the ratio should be furnished & separate form to be filled for each

nominee.

LINrc I ; il in i r
lot



Form SH-13 -INSTRUCTIONS

[Please follow the instructions given below very carefully while filling in your Nomination request.]

a

a

1. Nomination   can   be   made   onlyby   individuals applying/holding   securities   on   their   own  behalf,

singly   orjointly.    Non-individuals   including  Society,   Trust,   Body   Corporate,   Partnership   Firm,  Karta

of  Hindu   Undivided   Family, holder  of  Power  of  Attorney  cannot   nominate. The nomination will be

registered only when  it is complete in all  respects including the signature of (a) all  registered  holder(s)

(as  per  specimen  lodged  with  the  Company)  /RTA  and  (b)  the  complete  details  of the  nominee  and
witness being furnished.

Z. A minor can  be  nominated  by a  holder(s)  of securities  and  in that event the  name and  address of the

Guardian shall  be furnished by the holder(s).

3. The  nominee shall  not be a trust, society,  body corporate,  partnership firm,   Karta of Hindu  Undivided

Family,  or a  power of attorney holder.   A Non-Resident  Indian  can  be a  nominee on  re-patriable  basis

provided RBl approval granted to the nominee is registered with the Company / RTA.

4. ln case you have multiple   folios, then you may take a  photocopy of this Form.

5. Nomination request would  be considered for securities held in physical form only.

6. The nomination will be valid, if the registration of Nomination is done before the demise of the holder.

7. The    nomination   stands   rescinded   whenever   the   securities   in   the   given   folio   are   transposed

/transmitted/ amalgamated,  in  such  a  scenario  a  new  Nomination  Form  will  have to  be  filled  by the
security holder(s).

8. The  Holder(s)  can  override  (delete  or change)  an  earlier  nomination  by executing a  fresh  Nomination

Form   SH-14  for   which   a   fresh   registration   number   will   be   allotted.   The   earlier   nomination   will

automatically stand  cancelled.

9. ln  case  the   holder(s)   desires  to   nominate  more  than   one   person  as   nominee,  the   ratio  shall   be

mentioned and separate form to be filled for each  nominee.

10.   Nomination registration number will be allotted upon successful registration.

11.   The Company / RTA will  entertain claims of registered  nominees only.

12.   The Nominee will  be entitled to all the rights in the securities upon demise of all holders in the folio.

13.   Kindly  note  that  the  nomination  being  a  legal  document  the  same  should  be  dated  by  the  security

holder.  Furthermore,  the  date  of  execution  on  the  Nomination  Form  should  match  with  the  date  of

witness, witnessing the document.

I For Office Use Only

I Nomination  Registration  Number

I Date of Registration

I Checked and Signature of Employee   :

LINr( i, ,t , , ,
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TO,

Form No. SH-14

Cancellation  or Variation  of Nomination
[Pursuant to sub-section  (3) of section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and  rule 19(9) of the Companies

(Share  Capital  and Debentures)  Rules 2014)
Da^fi..           I             I

Name of the company     :  -------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Address of the Compa ny:  ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------

I/We, hereby cancel the nomination(s)  made by me/us in favour of

(name  and address of the nominee)  in respect of the below mentioned  securities.

Or
I/We     hereby     nominate     the     following     person     in      place     of as nominee  in

respect of the below mentioned securities  in whom  shall vest all  rights  in respect of such securities  in the event of my/our death.

(1) PARTICULARS 0F THE SECURITIES  (in  respect of which nomination  is being cancelled / varied):

Nature of SecuritiesTick/asrelevant Folio No. No. of Securities* Certificate No.
Distinctive No(s)(From-To)

Equity / Debs/Bonds

(2)  PARTICULARS OF THE  NEW NOMINEE/S -[Use photocopies Of this Form-SH-14 in case Of additional Multiple New Nominations in the same folio I

Name of Nominee

Address of Nominee Date of Birth (-)

Father's/Mother's/Spouse'sname
Occupation

Relationship withthesecurityholder
Nationality

E-mail   id Mobile No

(3) IN CASE NEW NOMINEE  IS A MINOR -
Name ofGuardian

Date of Birth (-)

Address  ofGuardian Date Of attainingmajority
(-)

Signature(s) as per Specimen recorded with the Company.

First Holder Joint Holder -1 Joint Holder -2 Joint Holdel' -3

.i
a'E0Z

Witness Details:

Name of Witness

SignatureAddress ofWitness
Pin

Date
*  N®w Nomlnatlon wlll be roglsterod for ®ntlre holdlng ln the follo. In case of more than one new-nom]noe, the ratlo should be furn[sh®d & separate forth to be

f]IIed for each of the new-nomlnee.

LINK!,-,i  ,

166



Form SH-14 -INSTRUCTIONS

[Please follow the instructions given  below very carefully while filling in your request for Cancellation/Variation

in    Nomination registered.]

UDon successful execution  of SH-14. the earlier Nomination shall stand cancelled.

1.      The   New-Nomination   can   be   made   only  by   individuals  applying/holding   securities   on   their   own

behalf   singly   orjointly.     Non-individuals   including   Society,   Trust,    Body   Corporate,    Partnership   Firm,

Karta   of   Hindu   Undivided   Family, holder  of  Power  of  Attorney   cannot   nominate. The new nomination

will  be  registered  only  when  it  is  complete  in  all   respects  including  the  signature  of  (a)  all   registered

holders  (as  per  specimen   lodged  with  the  Company  /  RTA  )  and   (b)  the  complete  details  of  the  new

nominee and witness   being  furnished.

2.      A  minor can  be  nominated  as  a  new  nominee  by  holder(s)  of securities  and  in  that  event the  name  and

address of the Guardian shall be furnished by the holder(s).

3.      The new  nominee shall  not be a trust, society,  body corporate,  partnership firm,  Karta  of Hindu  Undivided

Family,  or a  power of attorney holder.   A Non-Resident  Indian  can  be a  new  nominee on  re-patriable basis

provided RBl approval granted to the new nominee is registered with the Company.

4.      In  case  you  have  many  folios,then  you may  take a photocopy  of  this  form.

5.      Request  for  Change/Cancellation  in  Nomination  in  Form  SH-14  will  be  considered  for  securities  held  in

physical form only.

6.      The  new  nomination  will  be  valid,  if the  registration  of  Nomination  is  done  before the  demise  of all  the

holders in the folio.

7.     The  nomination  stands  rescinded  whenever the  securities  in  the given  folio  are transposed /transmitted/

amalgamated, in such a scenario a new Nomination Form will have to be filled  by the security holder(s).

8.      In  case the holder(s) desires to  nominate more than  one  person as  nominee, the ratio shall  be mentioned

and separate form to be filled for each nominee.

9.      Fresh  Nomination registration number will  be allotted upon successful registration.

10.   The Company / RTA will entertain claims of registered nominees only.

11.   The new nominee will  be entitled to all the rights in the securities upon demise of all holders in the folio.

12.    In   case   the   nomination   already   registered   is   being   cancelled   by   submission   of   SH-14   and   a   fresh

nomination is not being registered, the security holder(s) is/are mandatorily required to submit Form  lsR-3

to `Opt Out' of Nomination.

13.   Kindly note that the  nomination  being a  legal  document the same should  be dated  by the security holder.

Furthermore,  the  date  of  execution  on  the  Nomination  Form  should  match  with  the  date  of  witness,

witnessing the document.

I       FOROFFICEUSEONLY

I      Nomination Registration  Number

I      DateofRegistration

I      CheckedandsignatureofEmployee   :

LINrcl, ,,i  , \
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TO,

Nameofthecompany     :

Address of the Company :

Form lsR - 3
Declaration Form for Opting-out of Nomination

by Holders of Physical Securities in Listed Companies
(SEBl circular No. SEBl/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated  November 03, 2021}

PARTICULARS OF THE SECURITIES (in respect of which nomination is being opted out}

I)aitf:.,          I               I

Nature of SecuritiesTick/asrelevant Folio No. No. of Securities * Certificate No.
Distinctive No(s)(From-To)

Equity / Debentures

I / We the holder(s) of the securities particulars of which are given hereinabove, do not w/.sh to nom/.note any

person(s) in whom shall vest, all the rights in respect of such securities in the event of my /our death.

I/ We understand the issues involved in non-appointment of nominee(s) and further are aware that in case of
my / our death, my / our legal heir(s) / representative(s) are required to furnish the requisite documents /
details, including, Will or documents issued by the Court like Decree or Succession Certificate or Letter of
Administration / Probate of Will or any other document as may be prescribed by the competent authority, for
claiming my / our aforesaid securities.

Signature(s) as per Specimen recorded with the Company.

First Holder Joint Holder -1 Joint Holder -2 Joint Holder -3

.i

a

Witness Details:

Name of Witness
Signature

Address of Witness
Pin:

Date

*  Use of ISR-3  (ie to opt-Out of Nomination oR  if ``No_Nomination" is  required  bythe investor )  will be applied  for the entire securities against the said Folio.

LINrcl,   ,  I   `
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Form lsR-4
(see circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 on lssuance of

Securities in dematerialized form in case of lnvestor Service Requests)

Request for issue of Duplicate Certificate and other Service Requests
(for Securities -Shares / Debentures / Bonds, etc., held in physical form)

r)atf5;._I_I

A.      Mandatory Documents/ details required for processing all service request:
I  / We  are  submitting the following documents / details and  undertake to  request the
Depository Participant to dematerialize my / our securities within 120 days from the date
of issuance  of  Letter of Confirmation,  received from the  RTA/lssuer Company (tick  /as
relevant, refer to the instructions):

•    DematAccountNo.(If available):     EEEEEEEE    EEHEEEEE

Provide Client Master List (CML) of your Demat Account from the Depository Participant*

•     Provide  the  following  details,  if they  are  not  already  available  with  the  RTA  (see  §EEJ

circular  dated  November 03,  2021  in this regard)

PAN

in-6'in~i''h-aie'i-a-n7.-I;€€-i~;'r-a-i.rb-hi6~~6..b=6-ui
men Signature

*  (Your address,  e-mail  address,  mobile  number  and  bank details  shall  be  updated  in  your

folio from the information  available jn your CML).   You  can authorize the RTA to update the

above  details  for  all  your folios.  In  this  regard,  please  refer to  and

circular  dated  November 03,  2021,

8.       I/Werequestyouforthefol

I  Issue of Duplicate certificate

use  Form  lsR-1 in   SEBl

/ relevant box)

Eclaim      from       Unclaimed       Suspense

Account---.--.- ` ------.------------------------- _ --------------------------.-- ` ----------------------------- _-

I   Replacement  /  Renewal  /  Exchange  of :  I  Endorsement

securities certificate                                           i--...-..--.......-...--.-......-.....-..---..---..-.-...-.-..-,---...-..--...-...--.-.--.--..---.-..---.----+--.-.--.--.-----.-..----.-..-.-----.

I    Sub-division   /   Splitting   of   securities  ;   I   Consolidationof Folios

certificate                                                                 i..__..-.._.._-....-__._.___.__._~"...._-.__.______-.____._~.~.__._._.-__I_.._-~_.._"._____.-......_".~-_____

I  Consolidation ofsecuritiescertificate        :   I  Transmission

FI  Transposttiion (Mention the new order of holders here)

C.       I /We are enclosing certificate(s) as detailed below**:
Name of the lssuer Company

Folio  Number

Name(s)       of      the       security 1.

holder(s)         as          per         the 2.

certificate(s) 3.

lo8                                                                        Page I 1
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Certificate numbers

Distinctive numbers

Number     &     Face     value     of

securities

** Wherever applicable / whichever details are available

D.      Document / details required for specific service request:
I.        I  Duplicatesecuritiescertificate

11.        I  claim from unclaimedsuspenseAccount

I

i Securities claimed
)

1

(in numbers)
(in words)

Ill.        I  Replacement/ Renewal / Exchange of securities certificate

(that  is  defaced,  mutilated,  torn,  decrepit,  worn  out  or where  the  page  on  the
reverse is fully utilized)

lv.        I  Endorsement

V.        I  Subrdivision / Splitting of securities certificate

Vl.        I  Consolidation of securities certificate/Folios

Vll.        I  Transmission

Vlll.         I  Transposition

Provide / attach or.Iginal securities certificate(s) for request for item numbers Ill to VIII above.

Declaration: All the above facts stated are true and correct to best of my / our knowledge and
belief.

Secur£::i::I:terl/      ;         SecurityHolder2        i      SecurityHolder3

Signature      i  /

Name            i  /

i-u-ltd-d-dras+7

PIN            !v   EEEEEE   !EHEEEE           iEEEEEE

After  processing  the  service  request,  the  RTA  shall  issue  a  `Letter of Confirmation'  to  the
securities holder/claimant, which is valid only for 120 days. Using this 'Letter of Confirmation',

the  securities  holder/claimant  shall  request  the  DP  to  dematerialize  the  securities,  failing

which the securities shall be credited to the Suspense Escrow Demat Account of the Company.
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Registered Office: 4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort,

Mumbai, Maharashtra, PIN: 400001. Telephone: 00 91  (22) 2266 3150

Trio
C H E ful

Fax: 00 91  (22)  2202 4657 E-mail: info@amohrav.com

Website : www. triochem|]roducts.com Corporate Identity Number: L24249MH 1972PLC015 544

Fom No.: MGT .11

PROXY FORM

¢ursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

Regd. Folio No. *DP ID

No. of Shares held *CL ID

Shares of the above-named Company, hereby appoint:

or fading him / herSienature

or failing him / herSienature

or failing him / herSienature

a

a

I / We, being the member(s)

1),  Name  & Address:

Email ld:

2). Name & Address:

Email Id:

3). Nane & Address:

Emall Id:

and whose signature are appended below as my / our proxy to attend and vote for me / us and on my /

our behalf at  the  50th Annual  General Meeting of the  Company,  to  be  held  on  Friday,  the  26th day of

August, 2022 at 03,00 p.in. at 4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai -400001 and at

any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as are indicated below:

Sl. No. of Resolution (as in the Notice annexed)

ITick Mark the Sl. No. of Resolution of Which the Proxy is appointed)

Signed this_ day of

Member's Foliorop ID-Client ID No.:

Signature of Shareholder(s)

ature of Proxy holder(s)

2022

lil

Affix Rcrmue StamD



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Registered Office: 4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort,
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Fax: 00 91  (22)  2202 4657 E.mail: info@amohrav.com
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BALLOT FORM

Sr. No. Particulars Details

1. Name and Registered Address of the

SoleITirst named Shareholder

2. Name(s) of the Joint Holder(s) (if any)

3. Registered Folio No./

DP ID No. and Client ID No.

4. Number of Share(s) held

a

a

I / We hereby exercise my / our vote(s)  in respect of the Resolutions set out in the  Notice of the Fifty

Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company to be held on Friday, 26th August, 2022, by sending my /

our assent or dissent to the said Resolution by placing the tick (Y) mark at the appropriate box below:

Item Resolution No. of ¢OR) (AGAINST)
No. Shares I/Weassenttotheresolution I/Wedissentfromtheresolution

1' To   receive,   consider   and   adopt   the   Audited   Financial

Statements  of the  Company  for  the  financial  year  ended

March 31,  2022  together with the Reports of the  Board of

Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr.  Rajcsh Ramu  Deora

@IN: 00312316), who retires by rotation, and being eligible
offers himself for re-appointment.

3. Re-appointment   of  Statutory  Auditors   M/s.   Kanu   Doshi

Associates LLP,  Chartered Accountants, Mumbal  ¢CAI Firm

Registration      No.104746W100096)      and      fen      their

remuneration.

4' To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ramu Sitaram Deora

@IN: 00312369), who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

5. Authorization  for  related  party  transaction  u/s  188  of the

Companies Act, 2013.

Place:

Date :                                                                                                                /Sienature of the shareholder`

Note: Please rend the instructions printed below carefully before exercising your vote
Instruction
1.    The  Ballot  Form  is  provided  for  the  benefit  of the  Members who  do  not  have  access  to  e-voting

fachity.

2.    A Member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through e-voting or by Ballot. If a Member

cast votes by both modes, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail and Ballot shall be treated

invalid.
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5.    For detailed instruction on e-voting, please refer to the notes appended to the Notice of the AGM.
4.    The  Scrutinizer  will  collate  the  votes  downloaded  from  the  e-voting  system  and  votes  received

through post to declare the final result for each of the Resolution forming part of the Notice of the

AGM.

Process and manner for Member opting to vote by using the Ballot Fom
1.    Please  complete  and sign the  Ballot Form  (no other form or photocopy thereof is permitted)  and

send it so as to reach the Scrutinizer appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, Mrs. Rigini

Chokshi,  Practicing  Company  Secretary  quembership  No.:  FCS1436)  at  the  office  of  Company's

Registrar & Transfer Agent.

2.    The  Form  should  be  signed  by  the  Member  as  per  the  Specimen  signature  realstered  with  the

Companyroepositories.  In case  of joint holding,  the Form should be completed and singed by the

first named Member and in histher absence, by the next named joint holder. A power of Attorney

¢OA)  holder  may vote  on  behalf of a  member,  mentioning  the  registration  number  of the  POA
registered with the Company or enclosing an attested copy of the POA. Exercise of vote by Ballots not

permitted through proxy.
5.    In case the shares are held by companies, trusts, societies, etc. the duly completed Ballot Form should

be accompanied by a certified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution/Authorization.

4.    Votes should be cast in case of each resolution, either in favor or against by putting the tick (Y) marks

in the column provided in the Ballot.

5,    The voting rights of shareholders shall be  in proportion  of the  share held by them in the paid-up
equity share capital of the company as on 19th August 2022 and as per the Retlster of Members of the

Company'

6.    Duly completed Ballot Form should reach the Scrutinizer not later than Thursday, August 25,  2022

(05.00 p.in.  IST).  Ballot Form received  after August  25,  2022,  will be  strictly treated as  if the  reply
form the Members has not been received.

7.    A Member may request for a duplicate Ballot Form, if so required. However, duly filled in and signed

duplicate Form should reach the Scrutinizer not later than the date and time specified in serial no. 6

above.

8.    Unsigned, incomplete, improperly, or incorrectly tick marked Ballot Forms will be rejected. A Form

will also be rejected if it is received torn, defaced, or mutilated to an extent which makes it difficult

for the Scrutinizer to identfty either the Member or as to whether the votes are in favor or against or if

the signature cannot be verified.

9.    The decision of the Scrutinizer on the validity of the Ballot Form and any other related matter shall be
final.

10. The Results on above resolutions shall be declared not later than 48 hours from the conclusion of the

AGM of the Company and the resolutions will be deemed to be passed on the AGM date subject to

receipt of the requisite number of votes in favor of the Resolutions.

11.  The  Results  declared  along with  the  Scrutinizer's  Report(s)  will  be  available  on  the  website  of the

Company (www.triochemproducts.com) and on Service Provider's website  (www.cdslindia.com) and

communication of the same to the BSE Limited within 48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM.
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Fom No.: MGT . 12
pouing Paper

(Pursuant to Section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 21(1)(c) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

Name of the Company: Triochem Products Limited
Registered Office: 4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai -400001

GIN:  L24249MH1972PLC015544

BALLOT PAPER

Sr. No. Particulars Details
1' Name of the First named Shareholder

(in Block Letters)
2. Postal address

3. Retlstered Folio No. / *Client ID No.

(*applicable    to    investors    holding    shares    in
dematerialized form)

4. Class of Share Equity Shares

I hereby exercise my vote in respect of Ordinary / Special Resolutions enumerated below by recording my
assent or dissent to the said resolution in the following manner:
No. Item No. No. of I assent I dissent

Shares to the from the
held by me resolution resolution

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial

Statements  of  the  Company  for  the  financial  year

ended March  31,  2022  together with the  Reports  of

the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To  appoint  a Director  in  place  of Mr.  Rajesh  Ramu

Deora @IN:  00312316), who retires by rotation,  and

being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

3. Re-appointment   of  Statutory  Auditors   M/s.   Kanu

Doshi     Associates     LLP,     Chartered     Accountants,

Mumbai   qcAI   Firm   Registration   No.    104746W   /

W100096) and fix their remuneration.

4. To  appoint a Director in place  of Mr.  Ramu Sitaram

Deora  PIN:  00312369), who retires by rotation and

being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

5. Authorization for related party transaction u/s 188 of

the Companies Act, 2015.

Place:

Date :                                                                                                                    (Signature of the shareholder*)
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ATTENDANCE SI,IP

®

®

Name of the Attending Member(s) :

*Folio No. :

DP ID No.:

Client ID No,:

No. of Shares:

I hereby record my presence at the 50th ANNUAI GENERAL MEETING of the Company held at 4'h Floor,

Sambava Chambers,  Sir P.M.  Road,  Fort,  Mumbal -  400  001,  at  03.00  p.in.  on  Friday,  the  26th August

2022.

Name of the attending Shareholder#rony

Signature of the attending

ShareholderAroxy

Notes:

1)   A Member / Proxy holder attending the meeting must bring the Attendance Slip to the meeting

and hand it over at the entrance duly signed.

2)   A Member / Proxy holder attending the  meeting should bring copy of the Annual Report for

reference at the meeting.
*Applicable in case of share held in Physical Form

Cut Here

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICUALRS

EVSN User ID CAN / Sequence Number)

¢lectronic Voting Sequence Number)

NOTE:  Please  read  the  complete  instructions given under the  Note  ¢he  instructions for shareholders

voting electronicauy)  to the  Notice  of Annual  General Meeting.  The Voting time  starts from  25rd August

2022 from 09.00 a.in. to ends on 25th August 2022 at 05.00 p.in. The voting module shall be disabled by

CDSL for voting thereafter

||f
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Date & Time of Download : 26/08/202219:20:04

BSE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Acknowledgement Number 4436883

Date and Time of Submission 8/26/2022 7:19:54 PM

Scripcode and Company Name 512101  -TRIOCHEM  PRODUCTS LTD.

Subject / Compliance Regulation Announcement under Regulation 30 (LODR)-Meeting Updates

Submitted By Puran Jaykisan Parmar

Designation Designated Officer for Filing

Disclaimer : -Contents of filings has not been verified at the time of submission.
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